
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Executive 
 

Thursday, 15th October, 2020 at 5.00 pm 
 

This meeting will be held in a virtual format in accordance with The Local 
Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local 
Authority and Police and Crime Panels Meetings) (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2020 

  
Please note: The Council will be live streaming its meetings.  
 
This meeting can be streamed live here: https://westberks.gov.uk/executivelive 
 
You can view all streamed Council meetings here: 
https://www.westberks.gov.uk/councilmeetingslive 
 
 
 
Date of despatch of Agenda:  Wednesday, 7 October 2020 
 
For further information about this Agenda, or to inspect any background documents 
referred to in Part I reports, please contact Democratic Services Team on (01635) 
519462 
e-mail: executivecycle@westberks.gov.uk 
 
Further information and Minutes are also available on the Council’s website at 
www.westberks.gov.uk  

 
 

Scan here to access the public 
documents for this meeting 

Public Document Pack

https://westberks.gov.uk/executivelive
https://www.westberks.gov.uk/councilmeetingslive
http://www.westberks.gov.uk/


Agenda - Executive to be held on Thursday, 15 October 2020 (continued) 
 

 
 

 

To: Councillors Steve Ardagh-Walter, Dominic Boeck, Graham Bridgman, 
Hilary Cole, Lynne Doherty, Ross Mackinnon, Richard Somner, 
Joanne Stewart and Howard Woollaston 

  

 

Agenda 
 

Part I Pages 
 

1.    Apologies for Absence  
 To receive apologies for inability to attend the meeting (if any).  

2.    Minutes 5 - 16 
 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the 

Executive held on 3 September 2020. 
 

3.    Declarations of Interest  
 To remind Members of the need to record the existence and nature of any 

personal, disclosable pecuniary or other registrable interests in items on 
the agenda, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct. 

 

4.    Public Questions 17 - 20 
 Members of the Executive to answer questions submitted by members of 

the public in accordance with the Executive Procedure Rules contained in 
the Council’s Constitution.  

Please note that the list of public questions is shown under item 4 in the 
agenda pack. 

 

5.    Petitions  
 Councillors or Members of the public may present any petition which they 

have received. These will normally be referred to the appropriate 
Committee without discussion. 

 

 

Items as timetabled in the Forward Plan 

  Page(s) 

6.    Communications and Engagement Strategy 2020-2023 (EX3951) 21 - 116 
 Purpose:  To set out a proposed Strategy for enhancing the Council’s 

communications and engagement activities over the coming three years. 

 

 

 

 

http://info.westberks.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=38477&p=0


Agenda - Executive to be held on Thursday, 15 October 2020 (continued) 
 

 
 

7.    Proposals for future Community Infrastructure Levy spending 
(EX3965) 

117 - 128 

 Purpose:  To reshape the priorities that CIL income is used to support. 
The reports seeks to review CIL income to provide further support for 
community led schemes as well as reshape support so that it is more 
closely aligned to the Council Strategy approved last year, which in turn 
reflects the Adopted Local Plan. 

 

8.    Response to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 
Task Group Report on the London Road Industrial Estate (EX3956) 

129 - 168 

 Purpose:  To provide a response to the recommendations made in the 
report from the Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission (OSMC) 
task group on the London Road Industrial Estate (LRIE) that was 
presented to Members of the OSMC in July 2020. 

 

 

Item not timetabled in the Forward Plan 

  Page(s) 

9.    4 The Sector - new lease (Urgent Item) 169 - 174 
 Purpose:  To recommend the creation of a new lease, for 8,000 sq. ft. 

(circa 28%) of the office building in Newbury, 4 The Sector, which forms 
part of the Council’s commercial property portfolio. 

 

10.    Members' Questions 175 - 178 
 Members of the Executive to answer questions submitted by Councillors 

in accordance with the Executive Procedure Rules contained in the 
Council’s Constitution. 

Please note that the list of Member questions is shown under item 10 in 
the agenda pack. 

 

11.    Exclusion of Press and Public  
 RECOMMENDATION: That members of the press and public be excluded 

from the meeting during consideration of the following items as it is likely 
that there would be disclosure of exempt information of the description 
contained in the paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972 specified in brackets in the heading of each item. Rule 8.10.4 of 
the Constitution refers. 

 

 

http://decisionmaking.westberks.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13206&path=13197
http://decisionmaking.westberks.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13206&path=13197


Agenda - Executive to be held on Thursday, 15 October 2020 (continued) 
 

 
 

Part II 
Item not timetabled in the Forward Plan 
 

12.    4 The Sector - New Lease (Urgent Item) 179 - 196 
 (Paragraph 3 - information relating to financial/business affairs of 

particular person) 
Purpose:  To recommend the creation of a new lease, for 8,000 sq. ft. 
(circa 28%) of the office building in Newbury, 4 The Sector, which forms 
part of the Council’s commercial property portfolio. 

 

 
Sarah Clarke 
Service Director: Strategy and Governance 
 

West Berkshire Council Strategy Priorities 

Council Strategy Priorities: 

PC1: Ensure our vulnerable children and adults achieve better outcomes 
PC2: Support everyone to reach their full potential 
OFB1: Support businesses to start, develop and thrive in West Berkshire 
GP1: Develop local infrastructure to support and grow the local economy 
GP2: Maintain a green district 
SIT1: Ensure sustainable services through innovation and partnerships 

 

If you require this information in a different format or translation, please contact 
Moira Fraser on telephone (01635) 519045. 



DRAFT 

Note: These Minutes will remain DRAFT until approved at the next meeting of the Committee 

 

EXECUTIVE 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 

THURSDAY, 3 SEPTEMBER 2020 

Councillors Present: Steve Ardagh-Walter, Dominic Boeck, Graham Bridgman, Hilary Cole, 
Lynne Doherty, Ross Mackinnon, Richard Somner, Joanne Stewart and Howard Woollaston 

Also Present: Nick Carter (Chief Executive), Joseph Holmes (Executive Director - Resources), 
Shiraz Sheikh (Legal Services Manager), Councillor Adrian Abbs, Councillor Jeff Brooks, 
Councillor Carolyne Culver, Councillor Lee Dillon, Councillor Clive Hooker, Councillor Owen 
Jeffery, Councillor Rick Jones, Councillor Alan Law, Councillor Alan Macro, Councillor Thomas 
Marino, Councillor David Marsh, Councillor Steve Masters, Councillor Erik Pattenden, Linda Pye 
(Principal Policy Officer), Councillor Claire Rowles, Phil Rumens (Digital Services Manager), 
Councillor Garth Simpson, Councillor Martha Vickers and Councillor Tony Vickers 

Apologies for inability to attend the meeting: John Ashworth (Executive Director - Place) 
and Andy Sharp (Executive Director – People) 

 

PART I 

15. Minutes 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 16 July 2020 were approved as a true and correct 
record and signed by the Leader subject to the following amendment: 

Page 18, Item 11 – Future Arrangements for the provision of Public Health across 
West Berkshire, Wokingham and Reading - third sentence, third paragraph should 
read: 

‘They recommended dissolving the current arrangement and moving to two hub and 
spoke arrangements across three borough geographies.’ 

16. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest received. 

17. Public Questions 

There were no public questions submitted. 

A full transcription of the public and Member question and answer sessions are available 
from the following link: Transcription of Q&As.  

(a) Question submitted by Mr Ian Hall to the Portfolio Holder for Planning and 
Housing 

A question standing in the name of Mr Ian Hall on the subject of the London Road 
Industrial Estate would receive a written response from the Executive Member for 
Planning and Housing. 

(b) Question submitted by Mr Ian Hall to the Portfolio Holder for Planning and 
Housing 

A question standing in the name of Mr Ian Hall on the subject of reports on the London 
Road Industrial Estate would receive a written response from the Executive Member for 
Planning and Housing. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2.

http://decisionmaking.westberks.gov.uk/documents/b19179/Executive%20Questions%20and%20Answers%2003rd-Sep-2020%2017.00%20Executive.pdf?T=9


EXECUTIVE - 3 SEPTEMBER 2020 - MINUTES 
 

(c) Question submitted by Mr Ian Hall to the Portfolio Holder for Planning and 
Housing 

A question standing in the name of Mr Ian Hall on the subject of Compulsory Purchase 
Orders in relation to the London Road Industrial Estate would receive a written response 
from the Executive Member for Planning and Housing. 

(d) Question submitted by Mr Ian Hall to the Portfolio Holder for Planning and 
Housing 

A question standing in the name of Mr Ian Hall on the subject of replacement premises 
for businesses on the London Road Industrial Estate would receive a written response 
from the Executive Member for Planning and Housing. 

(e) Question submitted by Mr John Gotelee to the Portfolio Holder for Planning 
and Housing 

A question standing in the name of Mr John Gotelee on the subject of qualifications held 
by the Portfolio Holder for Planning and Housing would receive a written response from 
the Executive Member for Planning and Housing. 

(f) Question submitted by Mr Peter Gower to the Portfolio Holder for Planning 
and Housing 

A question standing in the name of Mr Peter Gower on the subject of preventing people 
becoming homeless would receive a written response from the Executive Member for 
Planning and Housing. 

(g) Question submitted by Mr Simon Pike to the Portfolio Holder for Transport 
and Countryside 

A question standing in the name of Mr Simon Pike on the subject of Mandatory Cycle 
Lanes would receive a written response from the Executive Member for Transport and 
Countryside. 

18. Petitions 

There were no petitions presented to the Executive.  

19. London Road Industrial Estate - Draft Development Brief (EX3946) 

The Executive considered a report (Agenda Item 6) concerning the draft Development 
Brief for the London Road Industrial Estate (LRIE) as submitted by Avison Young.  

The Council had a new draft Development Brief that confirmed regeneration of the LRIE 
remained a viable proposition. It was acknowledged that the process would be long, 
challenging and potentially risky depending on whether the Council considered any 
element of self-delivery.  Nonetheless, bringing forward regeneration was within the 
Council’s capability. 

The draft Development Brief set out a number of delivery options that represented 
different balances between financial risk and reward and corresponding levels of control. 
This level of information should give the Council confidence to now present the draft 
Development Brief to the public for comment and where the aim should be to 
appropriately acknowledge feedback on the draft Development Brief and publish it in its 
final form later in the year.  At that point the Council could review matters again and 
consider in detail the next technical steps to be taken should the Council decide to 
proceed further in the process of bringing forward regeneration on the LRIE. 

Councillor Ross Mackinnon stated that the report sought approval to publish the 
document and to launch a public consultation exercise. It had been a long held vision of 

Page 6



EXECUTIVE - 3 SEPTEMBER 2020 - MINUTES 
 

the Council to regenerate the site and it was hoped to attract high quality development 
with a mix of office and residential accommodation. The development of this area was 
linked to the Recovery Strategy.  

The Development Brief confirmed that regeneration of the site was still viable and set out 
two overarching approaches – a ‘Baseline Masterplan’ which presumed a progressive 
plot by plot development or a ‘Comprehensive Masterplan’ which was holistic and where 
all elements were interrelated. Councillor Mackinnon confirmed that the Council was 
committed to supporting the existing businesses on the site.   

Councillor Lynne Doherty seconded the report and stated that it confirmed the fact that 
West Berkshire was open for business and would secure job opportunities for future 
generations.  

Councillor Tony Vickers raised concerns that the Council was looking at a masterplan 
which was business led. It would have no formal status as a planning document and 
therefore it presented as considerable risk. He noted that there seemed to be a number 
of gaps in the brief such as flood risk which was an important factor.  He was also 
concerned about displacing existing business community assets who might incur a loss 
of revenue or constraints of moving from the current site. Councillor Ross Mackinnon 
responded that the Development Brief was silent on the planning issue was that the local 
authority had an interest as landowner which could be a conflict of interest and therefore 
it was proper to keep it separate. However, he acknowledged that Councillor Vickers had 
made valid points but he stressed that this report was merely asking for permission to go 
out to consultation and a further report would be produced for further consideration once 
the consultation exercise had completed and all responses had been taken into account.  

Councillor Alan Macro stated that there were a large number of businesses on the estate 
who would be worried out their future and he asked what the Council would be doing to 
reassure businesses. Councillor Ross Mackinnon stated that the Council would commit 
to supporting businesses to remain on the site or to move to alternative premises.  

Councillor Steve Masters referred to paragraph 9.45 of the Development Brief and asked 
whether there was any further detail which had been provided on the 
figures/assumptions. For example, how were the values arrived at, what was the cost of 
relocating the football ground, cost of SUDs and clean-up of the site and the 
compensation for businesses? Councillor Ross Mackinnon replied that these were very 
specific questions and this was not the forum for that level of detail. All of these queries 
would be answered by Officers through the consultation process.  

RESOLVED that the publication of the draft Development Brief be approved and the 
public consultation on the draft Development Brief would be launched in order to bring 
forward regeneration on the London Road Industrial Estate.  

Reason for the decision: To launch the public consultation on the Development Brief for 
the London Road Industrial Estate.  

Other options considered:  

(1) To sell the Council’s freehold interest in the London Road Industrial Estate.  
(2) To note the contents of the Development Brief and for the Council to decide not to 

initiate and drive forward regeneration on the London Road Industrial Estate.  

20. West Berkshire Ultra Low Emission Vehicle Strategy (EX3944) 

The Executive considered a report (Agenda Item 7) concerning the proposed Ultra-Low 
Emission Vehicle Strategy.  

Page 7



EXECUTIVE - 3 SEPTEMBER 2020 - MINUTES 
 

Councillor Richard Somner stated that this Strategy sat underneath the Environment 
Strategy and set out the Council’s current direction to promote and develop low emission 
vehicles and charging infrastructure in West Berkshire. It provided a sound platform to 
build upon. Vehicle licensing data from the Department for Transport set out that there 
were 119,664 vehicles registered in the district in 2019 of which 1,007 were ULEV 
(0.84%). In 2019 for the UK as a whole ULEV’s represented 0.68% of the vehicles 
registered which suggested that West Berkshire was slightly above the average ULEV 
uptake.  

It was noted that work needed to begin on the actions within this proposed Strategy as 
soon as practical in order to build on existing use and improve uptake in the district 
promptly.  

The Government might bring forward the requirement for all new vehicles to be electric to 
2035, however, if the aims of the Environment Strategy were to be achieved, transport 
emissions needed to decrease rapidly and ideally be zero by 2030. Any delay effectively 
reduced the chance of achieving this by delaying measures to increase low emission 
vehicle uptake.  

Councillor Somner in summarising stated that this was a rapidly changing sector but the 
strategy enabled the Council to plan and build upon the work already started and to keep 
it under review.  

The report was seconded by Councillor Steve Ardagh-Walter who fully endorsed the 
report. He agreed that this was a rapidly evolving sector which provided a number of 
consumer choices. He anticipated that over the next 3-4 years there would be even more 
purchases of electric vehicles. Hopefully the Strategy would encourage people to buy 
electric as it set out a framework.  

Councillor Adrian Abbs noted that the Government was thinking about bringing forward 
the date for all new vehicles to be electric from 2035 to 2030. The Council’s aim was to 
have zero emissions in the district by 2030. He felt that there seemed to be a lack of 
ambition and the Council should have a Zero Emission Strategy in place as otherwise the 
target date of 2030 would not be achievable.  He also queried when the document had 
been drafted as it seemed to be out of date in some places and he therefore felt that the 
document should remain in draft form. Councillor Richard Somner agreed that this was 
an area which was evolving rapidly. Not everyone would be able to afford an electric 
vehicle and consequently there was a need to be realistic in order to bring the public and 
businesses on board. The strategy had been in draft form for some time and had been 
through various Boards and therefore the document would look slightly dated. However, 
it was a snapshot in time and would be reviewed on a regular basis through the 
Transport Advisory Group and the Environment Advisory Group. He would take the 
comments made by Councillor Abbs on board and he welcomed his engagement on this 
issue. Councillor Abbs stated that the outcome that all Members were aiming for was the 
same but he was asking Councillor Somner to consider a change in order to get ultra-
levels down to zero.  

Councillor David Marsh stated that the biggest problem was that some charging points 
were inaccessible as people tended to park in them who were not using electric vehicles. 
He felt that dedicated bays should be provided and he asked how that process could be 
accelerated in order to encourage people to take up the purchase of electric vehicles. 
Councillor Somner disagreed as he felt that the reason people were not buying electric 
cars was due to the cost – the cost needed to come down. The Council had a strategy 
and a plan in place and it could look at moving some of the charging units if necessary – 
this was something that would be reviewed regularly. However, it was possible for people 
to have a charge point in their home.  

Page 8



EXECUTIVE - 3 SEPTEMBER 2020 - MINUTES 
 

Councillor David Marsh also asked if consideration could be given to taxis and the 
possibility of having more attractive licence fees if an operator used electric vehicles. The 
strategy seemed to be vague on this and he felt that this was an area where the Council 
should move more quickly as there was a willingness to embrace this by the taxi 
operators. Councillor Somner did not dispute the issue with taxis, however, a wide 
spectrum of discussion was required in terms of licensing, location and charging rates but 
he would ensure that this was something which was implemented as quickly as possible. 
Councillor Graham Bridgman referred to a discussion which had taken place at a 
Licensing Committee and his recollection was that there had been an issue with different 
fees for different vehicles but he would need to come back to Councillor Marsh on that.  

RESOLVED that the Strategy and its actions be approved as the Council’s direction for 
aiding the uptake of low emission vehicles in West Berkshire.  

Reason for the decision: To approve the Ultra-Low Emission Vehicle Strategy which 
would enable Officers involved to work to a plan of action to help assist vehicle take up 
and annually report back to Environment Board on progress.  

Other options considered: To do nothing. 

21. 2020/21 Performance Report Quarter One (EX3883) 

The Executive considered a report (Agenda Item 8) concerning the provision of 
assurance that the core business and Council priorities for improvement measures were 
being managed effectively as at Quarter One of 2020/21. The report also highlighted 
successes and where performance had fallen below the expected level, presented 
information on any remedial action taken, and the impact of that action. 

Councillor Jo Stewart stated that in Quarter One it was possible to see the impact of 
Covid-19 in some areas but there were many core business areas which had retained a 
‘green’ position due to resilience in the workforce. One area which had been particularly 
challenging was the collection of non-domestic rates as this had been impacted by the 
Council’s conscious measures put in place to support local businesses. Councillor 
Stewart highlighted a number of areas where performance had improved such as the 
Library Service, reduction in staff sickness and the launch of the Employee Assistance 
Programme.  

Councillor Graham Bridgman seconded the report and stated that it included some 
interesting information. He referred to the significant drop in the number of people 
receiving long term services in Adult Social Care. This was largely due to Covid and it 
was an area where there had been a particularly high number of deaths. There had also 
been a reduction of 24.8% in the number of new adult safeguarding enquiries. The Care 
Quality Commission had not been operating as it had prior to Covid in terms of inspecting 
service providers as it had not wanted to add to the burden on care homes.  

Councillor Lynne Doherty thanked Officers for their hard work in providing and 
contributing to the Quarter One report particularly as many had been involved in 
supporting the Covid response. The majority of indicators were positive but one area of 
concern that she raised was the increase in the number of reported domestic abuse 
cases which aligned with the national trend. There was a 36.8% rise in cases compared 
to the Quarter One figure for 2019/20. She was surprised to see this level of increase as 
the Council had done a lot of hard work in raising awareness around domestic abuse. 
Councillor Howard Woollaston confirmed that he had also been alarmed by this figure 
and he had raised the issue with Thames Valley Police. There was a difference between 
domestic crime and abuse. There was always more which could be done in this area and 
it would be necessary to ensure that thinking was joined up with other partner agencies. 

Page 9



EXECUTIVE - 3 SEPTEMBER 2020 - MINUTES 
 

He would look at the background to the figure quoted in conjunction with Councillor Jo 
Stewart as he agreed that it did not feel right.  

Councillor Lee Dillon thanked Officers for all their hard work and he was pleased to see 
such a positive report as he was sure that most Members would have expected to see a 
decrease in performance over this period. The focus around staff wellbeing was also 
welcomed. He noted that there had been a downturn in figures in a lot of areas and he 
was concerned that once services re-opened there would be a backlog which might be 
challenging for staff to accommodate. He supported the Business Rate exemptions but 
felt that the paper had not been updated as the decision around that had been made in 
August. Councillor Stewart confirmed that her focus was to ensure that staff felt 
supported at all times. She would also update the report to reflect the position around the 
Business Rate decision.  

Councillor Erik Pattenden referred to paragraph 5.10 where it stated that referrals to 
Children and Family Services had reduced across the board. With the re-opening of 
schools there could be more referrals and he queried what capacity there was to cope 
with that. Councillor Dominic Boeck responded that the resources were the same as it 
had always been but this was a situation which needed to be monitored. However, the 
local authority also relied on partners to deliver services and if a peak did arise then it 
would need to be managed appropriately.  

Councillor Alan Macro referred to paragraph 5.12 relating to the reduction in the number 
of new adult safeguarding enquiries and the fact that the focus had been on ensuring a 
thorough triage process. He queried whether all valid cases were getting through. 
Councillor Graham Bridgman responded that this was an area of uncertainty as it often 
relied on someone else to make the enquiry. However, those that presented were being 
dealt with properly. He would ask Officers to provide a more developed response to 
Councillor Macro.  

Councillor Alan Macro also mentioned the exception reports and in particular the CQC 
rating for care homes. The report did not say much about Walnut Close and he asked for 
assurance that other domains would be addressed in the immediate future. Councillor 
Graham Bridgman confirmed that there was ongoing consultation taking place to look at 
the future of Walnut Close as the fabric of the building was not fit for purpose. Consultant 
were also looking at the whole provision of services at Birchwood.  

Councillor Tony Vickers raised a number of issues in relation to increase in the number of 
households on the Common Housing Register and the likely further demand in the future; 
the drop in the number of permanent carriage repairs and the slippage of submitting a 
new Local Plan for examination by December 2022. Councillor Hilary Cole stated that the 
Housing Team were working closely with providers and there were financial packages in 
place. The expectation was that the numbers would rise. Councillor Vickers stressed the 
need for more affordable housing to accommodate people who might lose their homes. In 
relation to the carriage repairs Councillor Somner confirmed that a different scale of 
criteria would be used to review that as there had been a fewer cases of damage being 
reported to the Council. Councillor Hilary Cole confirmed that there had been slippage 
and this had been raised at Planning Advisory Group some months ago. This was due to 
vacancies in the Planning Policy Team but she was confident that the deadline of 
December 2022 would be achieved.  

Councillor Adrian Abbs referred to paragraph 5.18 and the increase in fly tipping of 38%. 
He asked if the Portfolio Holder could explain the reason for that. Councillor Steve 
Ardagh-Walter agreed that fly tipping was unwelcome at any time. However, incidents of 
fly tipping in this area remained low. West Berkshire was starting from a low base when 
compared with neighbouring authorities. Any rise was unwelcome but it was not green 

Page 10



EXECUTIVE - 3 SEPTEMBER 2020 - MINUTES 
 

waste which had been fly tipped but more general rubbish. The charge for the green 
waste collection service had not increased the fly tipping of green waste.  

Councillor Alan Law confirmed that he was chair of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Committee and had been involved in setting the targets. However, this was 
the first time that he had seen the results. He specifically referred to the target around 
supporting local employers which should state that Senior Officers and Members should 
meet with the Chief Executive of the top ten businesses on a regular basis. He therefore 
asked if Councillors Jo Stewart and Ross Mackinnon could review and change this 
target. Councillor Mackinnon confirmed that he would give consideration to amending this 
prior to Quarter Two along with a number of other KPI’s.  

Councillor Martha Vickers referred to the figures around domestic abuse and she stated 
that it was good to see that these were being looked into but she asked when it was likely 
to get a report back on what action was being taken. Would the report go to the Health 
and Wellbeing Board? Councillor Lynne Doherty confirmed that the Health and Wellbeing 
Board would be the best place to take it. It would be necessary to look at where the figure 
was coming from and if it was realistic. She was aware that work was ongoing on this 
issue but she agreed that the report should be directed to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board.  

RESOLVED that progress and achievements be noted and to review the 
appropriateness of any remedial actions taken to improve performance, in particular in 
relation to non-domestic rates collected as a percentage of non-domestic rates due.  

Reason for the decision: To note progress and achievements.  

Other options considered: None. 

22. Treasury Management Annual Report 2019/20 (EX3947) 

The Executive considered a report (Agenda Item 9) concerning the results of the 
Council’s management of cash-flow, borrowing and investments in the financial year 
2019/20. 

Councillor Ross Mackinnon confirmed that the report dealt with borrowing and 
investments. The Council’s revenue cost of borrowing and investment was £10.8m which 
was £78k less than had been budgeted for. Interest earned on investments was higher 
than expected because the Council had gained more than expected from the pre-
payment of pension contributions because the amount set aside in 2019/20 to contribute 
to the pension fund deficit was slightly higher than the amount required to be paid to the 
Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead.  

The Council’s borrowing and investment strategy set a limit of £5m to be invested at one 
time with any one institution. On two occasions the amount held in the Council’s current 
account exceeded this amount by a maximum of £364k due to the fact that an 
unexpected sum of income had been paid in late in the day.  This issue had been 
resolved within one working day.  

Councillor Jeff Brooks referred to paragraph 5.41 and queried whether IT systems had 
flagged this issue up or had it relied on human diligence in picking it up. Councillor 
Mackinnon did not know the answer to this question but would find out and report back. 
Councillor Brooks also referred to the £10.8m revenue cost of borrowing and investment 
which was 8% of the budget and he queried whether this was acceptable. It was good to 
see the table in respect of assets against borrowing but he felt that it would be useful to 
also have a mini balance sheet included in the report and he asked if that could be taken 
into consideration. Councillor Mackinnon confirmed that that would not be a problem. 

Page 11



EXECUTIVE - 3 SEPTEMBER 2020 - MINUTES 
 

Councillor Dominic Boeck seconded this report which was an indication of the prudent 
management of the Council’s investment and borrowing by the Portfolio Holder with the 
support of Officers.  

RESOLVED that the report be noted.  

Reason for the decision: To ensure that sufficient funds were available on a day to day 
basis to enable the Council’s business to continue.  

Other options considered: None. 

23. 2020/21 Revenue Financial Performance Report Quarter One (EX3905) 

The Executive considered a report (Agenda Item 10) concerning the in-year performance 
of the Council’s revenue budgets as at Quarter One of 2020/21. 

The Council was forecasting an under spend of £590k. The report highlighted each 
directorate position and any implications for budget setting in 2021/22. There was a 
£3.2m savings and income generation programme which was forecasting 82% achieved 
at Quarter One. The Covid-19 grant funding received from Government to date, and the 
Council’s level of general fund reserves meant that the Council was well placed to focus 
its efforts on response and recovery from the Covid-19 in the current financial year. 

Councillor Graham Bridgman referred to the first bullet point in paragraph 4.2 which 
noted that long term services was forecast to be £844k under spent which was a result of 
a higher level of deceased clients compared to the same quarter in the previous year. It 
was stressed that this was a prediction and not an actual outturn figure. He confirmed 
that he would look in more detail at the long term services model with Officers.  

Councillor Jeff Brooks noted that car park income was under considerable pressure and 
the budget seemed to be a moveable feast. Councillor Brooks would like to see further 
detail on a consolidated summary of all Government grants within the report. Councillor 
Ross Mackinnon agreed that the budget was moveable and that he was happy to 
consider the format changes proposed.  

Councillor Alan Macro referred to paragraph 4.2 which stated that there would be an 
income pressure of £311k in the four Council care homes due to falling occupancy and 
yet on page 267 in Appendix A there was a forecast increase in income of around £800k 
within the Directorate and he queried why that was the case. Councillor Bridgman 
confirmed that he would have a discussion off-line with Councillor Macro on that.  

RESOLVED that the Quarter One forecast of £590k under spend be noted.  

Reason for the decision: To monitor performance of the Council’s revenue budgets.  

Other options considered: None. 

24. 2020/21 Capital Financial Performance Report Quarter One (EX3906) 

The Executive considered a report (Agenda Item 11) concerning the under or over 
spends against the Council’s approved capital budget as at Quarter One of 2020/21.  

It was noted that at the end of Quarter One expenditure of £50.9million had been forecast 
against a revised budget of £56.4million, an overall forecast underspend of £5.5 million or 
9% of the approved Capital Programme. This was due to the fact that Covid had started 
to have an impact causing delays on projects.  

The main contributing factors to the forecast position were: 

 A £2.3m underspend in Education Services mainly due to a delay in the Eastern Area 
PRU project and a forecast underspend against the planned maintenance budget.  

Page 12



EXECUTIVE - 3 SEPTEMBER 2020 - MINUTES 
 

 Transport and Countryside were forecasting a £3.1m underspend primarily relating to 
the Robinhood Roundabout and A4 development.  

Councillor Dominic Boeck seconded the report and reported that Education Services was 
largely responsible for the underspend due to delays to construction. This seemed to be 
getting back on track and he referred specifically to the recent completion and opening of 
Theale Primary School. Councillor Alan Macro agreed that Theale Primary School was 
an excellent facility and he congratulated all staff involved in getting the school up and 
running. The Leader of the Council echoed that comment.  

Councillor Ross Mackinnon confirmed that the Council had recently received £124k of 
Active Travel funding from the Government and a further bid had been submitted.  

RESOLVED that the report be noted and in particular: 

(1) The forecast financial position as at Quarter One. 
(2) £124k of additional external funding from the Phase One of the Emergency Active 

Travel Fund had been received by the Council.  Under delegated authority, the 
S151 Officer and Portfolio Holder agreed allocation of the funding to the Transport 
and Countryside programme in 2020/21. 

(3) A further application was to be submitted (August 2020) for Phase Two Emergency 
Active Travel funding, with an indicative sum of £495k.    

Reason for the decision: To monitor the Council’s Capital budget.  

Other options considered: None. 

25. Members' Questions 

A full transcription of the public and Member question and answer sessions are available 
from the following link: Transcription of Q&As.  

(a) Question submitted by Councillor Carolyne Culver to the Portfolio Holder for 
Finance and Economic Development 

A question standing in the name of Councillor Carolyne Culver on the subject of 
investment of pension funds was answered by the Executive Member for Finance and 
Economic Development. 

(b) Question submitted by Councillor Carolyne Culver to the Portfolio Holder for 
Environment 

A question standing in the name of Councillor Carolyne Culver on the subject of the 
creation of a working group of local environmental experts to deliver the Environment 
Strategy was answered by the Executive Member for Environment. 

(c) Question submitted by Councillor Carolyne Culver to the Leader of the 
Council 

A question standing in the name of Councillor Carolyne Culver on the subject of meeting 
arrangements was answered by the Leader of the Council. 

(d) Question submitted by Councillor Carolyne Culver to the Portfolio Holder for 
Environment 

A question standing in the name of Councillor Carolyne Culver on the subject of training 
for Members on the Council’s ambition to be carbon neutral by 2030 was answered by 
the Executive Member for Environment. 

Page 13

http://decisionmaking.westberks.gov.uk/documents/b19179/Executive%20Questions%20and%20Answers%2003rd-Sep-2020%2017.00%20Executive.pdf?T=9


EXECUTIVE - 3 SEPTEMBER 2020 - MINUTES 
 

(e) Question submitted by Councillor Carolyne Culver to the Portfolio Holder for 
Planning and Housing 

A question standing in the name of Councillor Carolyne Culver on the subject of the Joint 
Venture for Local Housing was answered by the Executive Member for Planning and 
Housing. 

(f) Question submitted by Councillor David Marsh to the Portfolio Holder for 
Transport and Countryside 

A question standing in the name of Councillor David Marsh on the subject of extending 
pedestrianisation of the town centre was answered by the Executive Member for 
Transport and Countryside. 

(g) Question submitted by Councillor David Marsh to the Portfolio Holder for 
Planning and Housing 

A question standing in the name of Councillor David Marsh on the subject of the 
development of Sandleford Park was answered by the Executive Member for Planning 
and Housing. 

(h) Question submitted by Councillor Steve Masters to the Portfolio Holder for 
Internal Governance 

A question standing in the name of Councillor Steve Masters on the subject of the OSMC 
task group report in relation to the London Road Industrial Estate was answered by the 
Executive Member for Internal Governance. 

(i) Question submitted by Councillor Erik Pattenden to the Portfolio Holder for 
Children, Young People and Education 

A question standing in the name of Councillor Erik Pattenden on the subject of impact of 
exam results on schools and colleges in West Berkshire was answered by the Executive 
Member for Children, Young People and Education. 

(j) Question submitted by Councillor Erik Pattenden to the Portfolio Holder for 
Children, Young People and Education 

A question standing in the name of Councillor Erik Pattenden on the subject of use of 
funding from a youth charity for the Waterside Centre was answered by the Executive 
Member for Children, Young People and Education. 

(k) Question submitted by Councillor Tony Vickers to the Portfolio Holder for 
Planning and Housing 

A question standing in the name of Councillor Tony Vickers on the subject of the 
extension of the Government ban on evictions by private landlords was answered by the 
Executive Member for Planning and Housing. 

(l) Question submitted by Councillor Tony Vickers to the Portfolio Holder for 
Planning and Housing 

A question standing in the name of Councillor Tony Vickers on the subject of the 
treatment of the master planning of the London Road Industrial Estate was answered by 
the Executive Member for Planning and Housing. 

(m) Question submitted by Councillor Martha Vickers to the Portfolio Holder for 
Public Health & Community Wellbeing, Leisure & Culture 

A question standing in the name of Councillor Martha Vickers on the subject of the 
impact of dismantling Public Health England was answered by the Executive Member for 
Public Health & Community Wellbeing, Leisure and Culture. 

Page 14



EXECUTIVE - 3 SEPTEMBER 2020 - MINUTES 
 

(n) Question submitted by Councillor Tony Vickers to the Portfolio Holder for 
Finance and Economic Development 

A question standing in the name of Councillor Tony Vickers on the subject of the impact 
of the end of the furloughing scheme and resulting loss of income was answered by the 
Executive Member for Finance and Economic Development. 

(o) Question submitted by Councillor Jeff Brooks to the Portfolio Holder for 
Transport and Countryside 

A question standing in the name of Councillor Jeff Brooks on the subject of parking 
incentives to assist the retail and hospitality sectors was answered by the Executive 
Member for Transport and Countryside. 

(p) Question submitted by Councillor Rick Jones to the Leader of the Council 

A question standing in the name of Councillor Rick Jones on the subject of the function of 
the Community Support Hub going forward was answered by the Leader of the Council. 

(q) Question submitted by Councillor Tom Marino to the Portfolio Holder for 
Finance and Economic Development 

A question standing in the name of Councillor Tom Marino on the subject of the success 
of the Community Municipal Investment vehicle was answered by the Executive Member 
for Finance and Economic Development. 

(r) Question submitted by Councillor Claire Rowles to the Portfolio Holder for 
Adult Social Care 

A question standing in the name of Councillor Claire Rowles on the subject of the seven 
principles for reform of adult social care and support was answered by the Executive 
Member for Adult Social Care. 

 

(The meeting commenced at 5.00pm and closed at 7.34pm) 

 

CHAIRMAN ……………………………………………. 

Date of Signature ……………………………………………. 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Item 4: 
 

Public Questions to be answered at the Executive meeting on 15 
October 2020. 

Members of the Executive to answer questions submitted by members of the public in 
accordance with the Executive Procedure Rules contained in the Council’s 
Constitution. 

 

(a) Question submitted by Ian Hall to the Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Economic Development: 

“What is the estimated cost of CPOs on the LRIE?” 

(b) Question submitted by Ian Hall to the Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Economic Development: 

“Do you know how many jobs will be affected by the closure of businesses if the 
LRIE project goes ahead?” 

(c) Question submitted by Ian Hall to the Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Economic Development: 

“Do WBC have plans to extend the scope of the LRIE project to adjoining 
properties by means of CPO?” 

(d) Question submitted by Ian Hall to the Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Economic Development: 

“Was there a non-fulfillment clause with St Modwen?” 

(e) Question submitted by John Gotelee to the Portfolio Holder for Finance 
and Economic Development: 

“Why was infrastructure and utilities left out of the Avison Young brief?” 

(f) Question submitted by John Gotelee to the Portfolio Holder for Finance 
and Economic Development: 

“If the piecemeal option for development of LRIE is chosen how much land will 
be put aside for future need of infrastructure (SUDS sewage water roads etc) as 
plots become available?” 

(g) Question submitted by Stuart Gourley to the Portfolio Holder for Children, 
Young People and Education: 

“Can the portfolio holder for children, young people and education assure me 
that there is enough PPE in our schools for pupils that they need not purchase 
individual masks from schools?” 

(h) Question submitted by Ian Hall to the Portfolio Holder for Environment: 

“Can the council do an on-line video showing WBC’s waste recycling and where 
the waste products go?” 

(i) Question submitted by Ian Hall to the Portfolio Holder for Environment: 

“Why are clear transparent plastics (clean) which are marked non-recyclable not 
recycled?” 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4.



Item 4: 
 

Public Questions to be answered at the Executive meeting on 15 
October 2020. 

Members of the Executive to answer questions submitted by members of the public in 
accordance with the Executive Procedure Rules contained in the Council’s 
Constitution. 

 
(j) Question submitted by Ian Hall to the Portfolio Holder for Finance and 

Economic Development: 

“Does the press release appearing on Newbury Today, relating to the public 
engagement session on the London Road Industrial Estate, indicate that the 
council have pre-determined their mind , contrary to the Localism Act?” 

(k) Question submitted by Ian Hall to the Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Economic Development: 

“Given the statement by Cllr Rick Jones in the NWN of 20th February of the 
shortage of playing fields why does the council think building flats in a flood plain 
is a good idea?” 

(l) Question submitted by Alan Pearce to the Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Economic Development: 

“Please would the council say what is the make and model number of the devices 
installed in the drainage system to attenuate the flow and stop the urban runoff 
flowing into the Thames water surface water sewer, when constructing the new 
A339 Road junction into the London Road Industrial Estate?” 

(m) Question submitted by Alan Pearce to the Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Economic Development: 

“Please would the council say what are the preset flow rates or if adjustable units 
have been used are set to for the devices installed to attenuate the flow and stop 
the urban runoff flowing into the Thames water surface water sewer, when 
constructing the drainage system for the new A339 Road junction into the London 
Road Industrial Estate?” 

(n) Question submitted by Alan Pearce to the Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Economic Development: 

“Please would the council say who was the author and what qualifications they 
have for the Flood Risk Assessment A339/ London Road Industrial Estate 
Access, Newbury. (FRA) for the new A339 Road junction into the London Road 
Industrial Estate?” 

(o) Question submitted by Vaughan Miller to the Portfolio Holder for Finance 
and Economic Development: 

“Can the council provide the projected total costs of closure of Faraday Road 
Football Ground?” 

(p) Question submitted by Peter Gower to the Portfolio Holder for Planning 
and Housing: 

“What is the number of households currently threatened with homelessness and 
eligible for assessment and a personalised housing plan as required under the 
Homelessness Reduction Act?” 

Page 18



Item 4: 
 

Public Questions to be answered at the Executive meeting on 15 
October 2020. 

Members of the Executive to answer questions submitted by members of the public in 
accordance with the Executive Procedure Rules contained in the Council’s 
Constitution. 

 
(q) Question submitted by Peter Gower to the Portfolio Holder for Planning 

and Housing: 

“How many employees at the Council (expressed as full time equivalent 
employees) are currently working with a household threatened with 
homelessness?” 

(r) Question submitted by John Gotelee to the Leader of the Council: 

“Given the lack of experience and qualifications in planning and housing of the 
portfolio holder plus the complexity of regenerating the LRIE does the executive 
feel that the portfollio holder is the best person for the job?” 

(s) Question submitted by Paul Morgan to the Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Economic Development: 

“Can the Council provide an explanation why the land use class definition of “Sui 
Generis” has been applied to the Newbury Football Ground (Faraday Road) in 
the recently published Avison Young London Road Industrial Estate: 
Development Brief Newbury, West Berkshire draft report rather than “Use Class 
F2 – Local community”? 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Communications and Engagement Strategy 2020-2023 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Communications and Engagement 
Strategy 2020-2023  

Committee considering report: Executive 

Date of Committee: 15 October 2020 

Portfolio Member: Councillor Lynne Doherty 

Date Portfolio Member agreed report: 15 August 2020 

Report Author: Nick Carter/Matt Pearce 

Forward Plan Ref: EX3951 

1 Purpose of the Report 

1.1 To set out a proposed Strategy for enhancing the Council’s communications and 
engagement activities over the coming three years. 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 To approve the actions set out in paragraph 2.9 of the attached document; 

2.2 To note the financial implications associated with these actions and how it is proposed 
to address them; 

2.3 To note that the Delivery Plan will be submitted to the Customer First Programme Board 
for approval by the end of November 2020. 

3 Implications and Impact Assessment 

Implication Commentary 

Financial: Financial resources will be required to deliver the 
recommendations set out in the attached Strategy.  These 
costs include additional staffing costs and costs associated 
with commissioning external support.  In addition to additional 
staffing, funding has also been provided to support 
Gov.Delivery.  Most of the proposed staffing resources will be 
the subject of a pressure bid for the 2021/22 Budget so that the 
funding can be built into the base.  

The proposals in the Communications and Engagement 
Strategy seek to improve the Council’s engagement with those 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6.



Communications and Engagement Strategy 2020-2023 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

individuals and communities whose voice is often not heard.  It 
is also proposed to commission a BAME advocacy group to 
further improve communication and engagement with the 
BAME community.  A summary of the financial implications is 
set out below. 

Voluntary and Community Sector Support Organisation (VC 
SSO) (£100k per annum).  Will be funded through existing 
Community Solutions Fund in the first year.  Partner 
contributions will be sought.  

BAME Advocacy Group (£25k per annum).  Will be funded 
through existing budget agreed for 2020/21.Partner 
contributions are expected.  

Gov.Delivery (£20k per annum).  To be funded through a 
budget pressure bid for 2021/22.  Interim Covid-19 funding is 
currently being used. 

Additional staffing (circa £166k) – see staffing implications. 

Human Resources: It is proposed to create the following posts in support of the 
attached Strategy; 

 Senior project manager to oversee the implementation 
of the engagement recommendation within the Strategy. 
It is proposed to fund this post from the Transformation 
Fund (approval must be sought through Corporate 
Programme Board - £70k) – 12 month post. 

 Communications Team Leader (£62k per annum). 

 Digital Communications Officer (£34k per annum). 

The latter two posts will be the subject of budget pressure bids 
for 2021/22. 

Legal: None. 

Risk Management: The proposals outlined in this Paper do not create significant 
negative risks for the Council.  The proposals are geared at 
delivering on Council Strategy priorities, responding to the 
2019 LGA Corporate Peer Challenge and building on the 
positive opportunities from the Covid-19 Pandemic.  As such 
greater risk probably lies in failing to act. 

Property: None. 

Page 22



Communications and Engagement Strategy 2020-2023 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Policy: The proposal supports the implementation of the Council 
Strategy 2019-2023. 

 

P
o

s
it

iv
e
 

N
e
u

tr
a

l 

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 Commentary 

Equalities Impact:     

A Are there any aspects 
of the proposed decision, 
including how it is 
delivered or accessed, 
that could impact on 
inequality? 

X   The Strategy sets out a number of 
proposals which seek to address 
inequality by ensuring that communication 
channels reach all members of the local 
community and by ensuring our 
engagement objectives are focused on the 
most vulnerable. 

B Will the proposed 
decision have an impact 
upon the lives of people 
with protected 
characteristics, including 
employees and service 
users? 

   See above. 

Environmental Impact: X   Improved community engagement may 
well help deliver the Council’s 
environmental objectives through 
enhancing community engagement. 

Health Impact: X   Improved community engagement may 
well help deliver the Council’s health 
objectives through enhancing community 
engagement.   

ICT Impact:  X  None at this stage. 

Digital Services Impact:  X  None at this stage. 

Page 23



Communications and Engagement Strategy 2020-2023 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Council Strategy 
Priorities: 

   The proposals in the Strategy should 
assist in helping deliver all of the Council’s 
priorities through improving 
communication and enhancing 
engagement which in itself will assist 
delivery of the priorities. 

Core Business:    The proposals in this Strategy seek to 
enhance a number of existing core 
business activities e.g. communications 
and community resilience through a 
number of transformation actions 
supported by new resources. 

Data Impact:    None. 

 

Consultation and 
Engagement: 

Corporate Board, Customer First Programme Board, 
Community Support Hub Core Group. 

4 Executive Summary and Supporting Information 

4.1 An Executive Summary is included within the Strategy that is attached as Appendix B. 
The Strategy itself provides the Supporting Information. 

5 Other options considered  

5.1 None. 

6 Conclusion 

6.1 The need to enhance the Council’s communication and engagement activities has been 
highlighted from a number of different directions not least the ongoing Covid-19 
Pandemic.  This Paper seeks to address this requirement through the development of 
a comprehensive Strategy with a range of recommendations aimed at enhancing both 
external and internal communications and our wider engagement activities.  

7 Appendices 

7.1 Appendix A – Equalities Impact Assessment 

7.2 Appendix B – Communications and Engagement Strategy  

 

Page 24



Communications and Engagement Strategy 2020-2023 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Background Papers: 

See Strategy document 

Subject to Call-In: 

Yes:  No:  

The item is due to be referred to Council for final approval  

Delays in implementation could have serious financial implications for the 
Council 

Delays in implementation could compromise the Council’s position 

Considered or reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee or 
associated Task Groups within preceding six months  

Item is Urgent Key Decision 

Report is to note only 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Officer details: 

Name:  Nick Carter and Matt Pearce 
Job Title:  Chief Executive and Head of Public Health and Wellbeing 
Tel No:  01635 519101 and 01635 503434 
E-mail:  nick.carter@westberks.gov.uk matthew.pearce1@westberks.gov.uk  

Document Control 
 

Document Ref:  Date Created:  

Version:  Date Modified:  

Author:  

Owning Service  

  Change History 
 

Version Date Description Change ID 

1    

2    

 

Page 25

mailto:nick.carter@westberks.gov.uk
mailto:matthew.pearce1@westberks.gov.uk


Communications and Engagement Strategy 2020-2023 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Appendix A 

Equality Impact Assessment - Stage One 

We need to ensure that our strategies, polices, functions and services, current and 
proposed have given due regard to equality and diversity as set out in the Public 
Sector Equality Duty (Section 149 of the Equality Act), which states: 

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 
need to: 
(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 

is prohibited by or under this Act; 
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; This includes the 
need to: 
(i) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a 

relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; 
(ii) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share 
it; 

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it, with due regard, in particular, 
to the need to be aware that compliance with the duties in this section may 
involve treating some persons more favourably than others. 

(2) The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different 
from the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to 
take account of disabled persons' disabilities. 

(3) Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons 
more favourably than others. 

The following list of questions may help to establish whether the decision is relevant 
to equality: 

 Does the decision affect service users, employees or the wider community?  

 (The relevance of a decision to equality depends not just on the number of those 
affected but on the significance of the impact on them)  

 Is it likely to affect people with particular protected characteristics differently? 

 Is it a major policy, or a major change to an existing policy, significantly affecting 
how functions are delivered? 

 Will the decision have a significant impact on how other organisations operate in 
terms of equality? 

 Does the decision relate to functions that engagement has identified as being 
important to people with particular protected characteristics? 

 Does the decision relate to an area with known inequalities? 

 Does the decision relate to any equality objectives that have been set by the 
council? 

Please complete the following questions to determine whether a full Stage Two, 
Equality Impact Assessment is required. 

Page 26



Communications and Engagement Strategy 2020-2023 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

What is the proposed decision that you 
are asking the Executive to make: 

To support approval and implementation of 
the Council’s Communication and 
Engagement Strategy 2020-2023. 

Summary of relevant legislation: n/a 

Does the proposed decision conflict 
with any of the Council’s key strategy 
priorities? 

No. 

Name of assessor: Nick Carter 

Date of assessment: 30th September 2020 

 

Is this a: Is this: 

Policy Yes  No  New or proposed Yes  No  

Strategy Yes  No  
Already exists and is 
being reviewed 

Yes  No  

Function Yes  No  Is changing Yes  No  

Service Yes  No   

 

What are the main aims, objectives and intended outcomes of the proposed 
decision and who is likely to benefit from it? 

Aims: To enhance the Council’s communication and 
engagement Strategy. 

Objectives: Several as set out in the Strategy. 

Outcomes: Several as set out in the Strategy. 

Benefits: Communities are more aware of what the Council is 
doing and more engaged in local activities. 

 

Note which groups may be affected by the proposed decision.  Consider how they 
may be affected, whether it is positively or negatively and what sources of 
information have been used to determine this. 

(Please demonstrate consideration of all strands – Age, Disability, Gender 
Reassignment, Marriage and Civil Partnership, Pregnancy and Maternity, Race, 
Religion or Belief, Sex and Sexual Orientation.) 

Group Affected What might be the effect? Information to support this 

Age 
Improved and enhanced engagement across all of the groups 
given some can be difficult to engage.  The Strategy is 
specifically geared to ensuring the Council is able to reach all 
those in the local community.  More widely the engagement 

Disability 

Gender 
Reassignment 

Page 27



Communications and Engagement Strategy 2020-2023 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 

objectives set out in the Strategy and more specifically 
focused on addressing inequality 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 

Race 

Religion or Belief 

Sex 

Sexual Orientation 

Further Comments relating to the item: 

 

 

Result  

Are there any aspects of the proposed decision, including how it 
is delivered or accessed, that could contribute to inequality? 

Yes  No  

Please provide an explanation for your answer: 

Will the proposed decision have an adverse impact upon the lives 
of people, including employees and service users? 

Yes  No  

Please provide an explanation for your answer: 

If your answers to question 2 have identified potential adverse impacts and you have 
answered ‘yes’ to either of the sections at question 3, or you are unsure about the 
impact, then you should carry out a Stage Two Equality Impact Assessment. 

If a Stage Two Equality Impact Assessment is required, before proceeding you 
should discuss the scope of the Assessment with service managers in your area.  
You will also need to refer to the Equality Impact Assessment guidance and Stage 
Two template. 

Identify next steps as appropriate: 

Stage Two required No. 

Owner of Stage Two assessment:  

Timescale for Stage Two assessment:  

Name:  Nick Carter     Date:  30th September 2020 

Please now forward this completed form to Rachel Craggs, Principal Policy Officer 
(Equality and Diversity) (rachel.craggs@westberks.gov.uk), for publication on the 
WBC website. 

Page 28



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 
 
 

 

Communications and Engagement Strategy 
2020 - 2023 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Document Control 
 

Document Ref:  Date Created: 8th September 2020 

Version: V0.4 Date Modified:  

Revision due  

Author: Nick Carter Sign & Date:  

Owning Service  

 
Change History 
 

Version Date Description Change ID 

0.1 24th June 2020   

0.2 8th September 
2020 

Engagement Update re CSH  

0.3 28th September 
2020 

Further Engagement Update  

0.4 6th October 
2020 

  

 
 
 
 

  

Page 29



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
‘Enhancing the approach to communications also involves adopting a more proactive 
approach than is seen at present and engaging stakeholders locally more effectively so 
they know more about what is going on, what the ambitions for the place are and how they 
can help shape things. We would encourage the Council to think about jointly reviewing and 
re-designing with residents the mechanisms and channels through which the Council keeps 
them informed’. 
 
Corporate Peer Challenge Team (November 2019) 

 
 
 
 

Page 30



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Contents 
 
 

1. Foreword ......................................................................................................................... 4 

2. Executive Summary ......................................................................................................... 5 

3. Introduction .................................................................................................................... 10 

4. Background ................................................................................................................... 11 

5. Our Corporate Narrative and Key Messages ................................................................. 19 

6. Who Are Our Key Audiences and Stakeholders? .......................................................... 21 

7. Customer Engagement .................................................................................................. 23 

8. Reaching Out ................................................................................................................. 30 

9. Our Approach ................................................................................................................ 31 

10. What Are We Going To Do ............................................................................................ 41 

11. Delivering our Ambition .................................................................................................. 49 

Appendices .......................................................................................................................... 53 
 

Page 31



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

1. Foreword 

‘It has been said that engagement is everybody’s responsibility in a local authority… 
good dialogue with residents and securing mutual trust between the Council and the 
community needs to be part of the whole Council’s DNA.’ (LGA 2017) 
 
Effective communication and engagement is vital if local authorities are to ensure 
their services, and the way they are delivered, meet the needs of the residents they 
serve.  At West Berkshire Council, we are committed to properly informing, 
consulting and involving our residents in their local services.  We must also be 
confident that the aspirations laid out in West Berkshire 2036 (the long term vision for 
West Berkshire) and our new Council Strategy (2019-2023) have the best possible 
chance of being met and that the outcomes for local people are the best they can be. 
 
Through our Building Communities Together Team, an ongoing Devolution 
Programme, and, our work on Parish Planning, we have sought to involve local 
people in our work.  As part of our drive to interact ever more closely with our 
communities, we invited the Local Government Association (LGA) into the Council in 
November 2019 to assess, among other things, how we might do this.  They offered 
some useful suggestions as to how we might make communication and engagement 
central to the organisation and we began to implement these immediately. 
 
As we write this Foreword in October 2020, we are in the midst of the Covid-19 
Pandemic.  Although we had begun to develop a new approach following the LGA 
review, the local response to Covid-19 has accelerated this significantly. When we 
went into a nationwide lockdown in March 2020, timely, effective and engaging 
communications became an urgent necessity, rather than a medium term aspiration.  
The Council’s approach to communications and engagement had to be, and was, 
transformed overnight as we responded to events that would have been unthinkable 
just a few months previously. 
 
Although the Pandemic has been the most difficult period in living memory, it will 
leave behind it a legacy of communities across our District coming together to help 
others, and working with us as the local authority to mitigate the impact of the virus. 
We wish to build on this spontaneous response and to better involve local people in 
our ongoing work. 
 
In addition to enhancing our own communication activities this strategy seeks to 
show how the Council now proposes to enhance its own engagement work and in 
particular build more relevant communities across West Berkshire with the aim of 
reducing inequalities and improving quality of life. 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Lynne Doherty  
Leader and Portfolio Holder for Communications 

  

Page 32



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 
2. Executive Summary  

2.1 Communication and engagement are distinct, but complementary, concepts. 
Communication is, at its most fundamental level, the relaying of information from one 
person to another whilst engagement, by definition, implies involvement, 
collaboration and shared purpose.  Local authorities must do both effectively if they 
are to meet the needs of the residents they serve. 

2.2 West Berkshire Council has long expressed a desire to overhaul its approach to 
communication and engagement and this Strategy sets out how the Council 
proposes to do that.  As part of this work, the LGA was invited into the Council in 
November 2019 to review, among other things, the Council’s approach to 
communication and engagement and subsequently offered a number of suggestions, 
which were gradually being implemented prior to the Covid-19 outbreak. 

2.3 The Covid-19 Pandemic necessitated an overnight change in how the Council both 
communicated and engaged with its local communities.  More has needed to be 
done and at pace.  Key changes have included the deployment of additional 
resources, less reliance on local media and more focus on contacting residents and 
businesses directly, a more prominent role for the Council Leader and Chief 
Executive and an increased focus on digital communication. 

2.4 To assess the effectiveness of this new approach, some of the questions in a 
Residents Survey conducted in June 2020 sought feedback on residents’ 
engagement with the Council and how they viewed the Council.  We were pleased to 
see a positive correlation between the two, with those who felt they had become 
more connected with their community during the Pandemic also viewing the Council 
in a much more positive light.  Through the development and implementation of this 
Strategy we will build on this work to involve and engage our communities in our 
ongoing work. 

2.5 The importance of communication in enhancing employee engagement is widely 
recognised.  However, previous surveys have shown significant variation in the 
effectiveness of communication and in employee engagement levels across the 
Council.  The Staff Survey conducted in June 2020 showed similar variation and this 
needs to be addressed as part of this Strategy.  There is no reason why employees 
in one part of the Council should feel less communicated with and engaged than in 
another part of the Council.  Effective leadership and a cultural shift will be required 
to make this happen.  

2.6 Recognising the strengths and challenges that exist within West Berkshire, the 
primary aim of this Strategy is to communicate the key themes and priorities set out 
within the Council Strategy (2019-2023).  It also seeks to engage communities in 
helping to realise the broader ambitions set out within West Berkshire 2036.  
Alongside the experience gained from previous engagement activities and as part of 
the response to Covid-19, the Council must also engage local people in the delivery 
of its Council Strategy (2019-2023) and the development of projects which will 
contribute to the broader ambitions set out within the West Berkshire 2036 Vision. 

  

Page 33



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

2.7 In doing so, it must take into account the needs of a very wide range of key 
audiences and stakeholders.  This wide customer base includes both those who tend 
to engage with the local authority as well as those who have traditionally been more 
difficult to reach.  It is particularly important in West Berkshire that action is taken to 
reach those who have been less engaged with us, as these groups are seen to be 
younger people, BAMER communities and those who are economically 
disadvantaged, which also aligns with some of those most impacted by Covid-19. 

2.8 Improving access to services also remains a vital objective alongside the need to 
ensure we remain both responsive and courteous to those we serve.  Much of this 
work will be done through the new Digital Strategy (2020-2023). 

2.9 The Council’s communication and engagement objectives are framed around the 
Engagement Spectrum namely informing, consulting, involving, collaborating and 
empowering.  A set of principles is set out to guide the approach and specific 
outcomes are identified along with clarity on how these would be measured.  Our 
communication objectives are;  

 Better informing our key audiences and stakeholders about what they want and 
need to know and in a way that is timely, appropriate and relevant to them: 

 

 Planning our consultation with stakeholders more effectively to ensure it is 
genuine and represents value for money: 
 

 Involving stakeholders more to help shape what the Council does and 
increasingly what they and their communities do: 
 

 Collaborating more effectively to enable the development of effective 
engagement and the achievement of better outcomes:  

 

 Empowering individuals and communities more so that they can take their own 
decisions on matters that might historically have been for the Council to take.   

 

 Transforming services so that they are better for our customers.  A service will be 
deemed better if it is fit for purpose and cheaper, more resilient or easier to 
access through a greater number of channels, if it is available for longer hours or 
if it has a lower carbon footprint (taken from WBC Digital Strategy 2020-2023): 

 

 Getting it right first time and on time and treating everyone with respect and 
courtesy, and using plain English so that everyone can understand. 

 
Our engagement work is focused on working together to build more resilient 
communities across West Berkshire with the purpose of reducing inequalities and 
improving quality of life. 

 
We have established a number of guiding principles to shape our approach to 
engagement along with the following objectives: 

 Signposting local communities to help relieve hardship: 
 

Page 34



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 Promoting and sustaining high levels of volunteering: 
 

 Using innovative methods and approaches to improve community engagement 
and involvement: 

 

 Engaging with local communities to understand their needs and aspirations and 
providing a framework to enable partners to engage with communities: 

 

 Collaborating with the Council and partners to help find solutions to those needs 
and aspirations: 

 

 Providing the support needed to make communities more resilient: 
 

 Commissioning specialist support to help develop engagement and resilience: 
 

 Signposting communities to support the vulnerable: 
 

 Signposting individuals to support networks within their community: 
 

 Reducing demand on public services. 

2.10 The importance of building trust is reinforced - recognising that ‘engagement is not a 
single person or set of activities. It is an ongoing process or conversation’. 

In terms of specific proposals the following are put forward under each of the 
engagement themes; 

 
Inform 
 

 Corporate adoption of GovDelivery to increase reach and ensure consistency. A 
weekly Council newsletter would be produced using this platform and all other 
newsletters would also use this platform; 
 

 the use of video will be extended with a particular focus on hard to reach groups; 
 

 review and renew the website to ensure it remains fit for purpose; 
 

 social media content is expanded to assist in helping engage hard to reach 
groups; 
 

 campaigns focused around each of the Council’s key priorities are planned 
annually; 
 

 in respect of internal communications a monthly email is provided by the 
Leader/Chief Executive in addition to the staff newsletter Reporter; 

  

Page 35



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Consult 
 

 preparation of a consultation framework to guide and inform the Council’s 
consultation activities; 
 

 publication of an annual Consultation Plan; 
 

 the retention of Consultation Portal but with enhanced feedback; 
 

 to replace the Community Panel with something that is truly representative of the 
local community and which enables more of a listening approach; 
 

 the establishment of an annual Residents Survey to measure service satisfaction 
and Council reputation. 
 

Involve 
 

 to consider rebranding the Council; 
 

 greater engagement through social media; 
 

 greater use of media briefings; 
 

 placing clear expectations on managers to ensure a more consistent approach to 
engagement with staff and partners. 
 

Collaborate 
 

 reviewing our engagement with Parish and Town Councils; 
 

 adopting co-production as a guiding principle to the way in which we collaborate; 
 

 establishing a new overarching strategic partnership to guide our engagement 
work. 

 
Empowerment 
 

 commissioning a Community and Voluntary Sector Support Organisation to 
provide support to, and build capacity within, the local community, voluntary and 
social enterprise sector; 

 

 agreeing a corporate approach to engaging communities more fully in the design 
of public buildings and public realm; 
 

 to introduce a new scheme for generating staff suggestions to replace Lions Lair; 
 

 commission a BAME advocacy group; 
 

 

Page 36



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 realigning the Building Communities Together Programme with this new 
approach and newly established senior management structure; 

 

 develop a ‘Community Engagement Framework;’ 
 

 maintaining signposting and connections to community support functions; 
 

 distribution of a new grant fund to support community based engagement work. 
 

Serve - to enhance the customer experience; 
 

 establish clear customer standards which are made accessible to all customers; 
 

 introduce a training and development programme; 
 

 consider the expansion of artificial intelligence and the introduction of webchat; 
 

 continue to pursue an approach based on ‘digital by default’; 
 

 develop a culture of providing customer feedback and to design systems that 
automatically enable this; 
 

 to enhance and coordinate the monitoring of customer demand and satisfaction 
so that we can shape services to meet customer needs. 
 

More will need to be done to ensure that this Strategy is capable of being delivered 
and the outcomes realised.  In particular; 
 

 a greater focus on planning; 
 

 more oversight and engagement from the Customer First Programme Board; 
 

 additional resources; 
 

 a realigned organisational structure; 
 

 some minor changes to the current governance; 
 

 a much greater emphasis on monitoring and evaluation. 
 
2.11 Through the delivery of this Strategy, we will build trust within our communities and 

develop a culture of true engagement and collaboration.  Our Delivery Plan at 
Appendix 3 (to follow) outlines some of the specific actions we intend to take to 
facilitate this. 

Page 37



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

3. Introduction  

3.1 Engagement is fundamental to the work of local authorities as it enables them to 
design and deliver services in a way that meets the needs of local residents and 
thereby helps enhance their lives.  The Covid-19 Pandemic has made the need for 
carrying out this activity effectively even more important as its impact and the need to 
mitigate it meant, quite literally, that lives depended on it.  By its very nature, this 
necessitated the rapid delivery of new approaches to communication and 
engagement which will likely stay with us long after the Pandemic has gone.  
Although this Strategy is not a strategy for the Pandemic, many of the lessons we 
have learned in recent months form the basis of what follows. 

3.2 Prior to the Pandemic, the Council had begun to develop a new approach to 
communications and engagement in support of the commitments outlined in the new 
Council Strategy (2019-2023) that was published in May 2019.  We recognised the 
need to gather both internal and external views in order to ensure this approach best 
met the needs of our District. As part of this, we organised ‘Let’s Chat’ sessions with 
staff across the Council and, most notably, invited a Corporate Peer Challenge Team 
from the Local Government Association into the Council in November 2019.  As well 
as speaking to us, they sought to discuss our work with external stakeholders, which 
then formed the basis of their assessment and recommendations. 

3.3 The need for a new Strategy is clear given the changing landscape in which we now 
serve our residents.  This is most strongly evidenced by developments in technology 
and the constant accessibility this enables.  Set against the context of generational 
and demographic shift as well as an increasingly engaged, socially conscious 
population, as demonstrated through movements relating to climate change and 
racial equality, the need for a more dynamic approach is unquestionable.  Covid-19 
has heightened expectations still further, with the need to realise a new level of 
engagement now a primary consideration for all local authorities. 

3.4 The underlying aim of the Council’s approach to engagement is reflected in the Council 
Strategy 2019–2023 and that is to build more resilient communities across West 
Berkshire with the purpose of reducing inequalities and improving quality of life.  We 
have set out a number of specific objectives which aim to help us deliver that ambition. 

3.5 The remainder of this document seeks to set out the background to our approach, 
where we see ourselves now, most notably as a result of the ongoing Pandemic, 
along with clarity on our ambition and how we intend to realise it. 

  

Page 38



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

4. Background 

Overview 

4.1 Whilst communications and engagement have been brought together in this Strategy 
they are different things.  Commonly used definitions include: 

Communication – the imparting or exchanging of information by speaking, writing or 
using some other medium.  More simply put, it could be described as the process of 
passing information and understanding from one person to another. 

 
Engagement – the process of working collaboratively with, and through groups of 
people, affiliated by geographic proximity, special interest or similar situations to 
address issues affecting the well-being of those people. 

 
4.2 One perspective is that communication focuses on what to say and who to say it to, 

whilst engagement is more about who to listen to and what feedback you seek to 
elicit.  Another view is that you can differentiate the two by proximity; engagement is 
seen as a contact sport, while communication often happens at a distance. 

4.3 Although communication can happen without engagement, engagement cannot 
happen without communication. 

 
4.4 The Council undertakes both communication and engagement. Communication 

takes place both within the Organisation and with local communities, customers, 
partners and beyond.  Engagement also takes place at a range of levels, with service 
users, with special interest groups and with broader community groups. Both 
communication and engagement also take place with parish and town councils, the 
other tier of local government in West Berkshire. 
 

4.5 The approach and level of communication and engagement varies across the 
Council depending on the remit of individual Departments and Services. Corporately, 
the Council employs a central Communications Team whose primary role is to the 
plan the Council’s strategic communications activity and manage the relationship 
with the media with input from across the Council.  In reality, however, some 
Departments and Services will retain control of their own communications output. 
  

4.6 The same can be said for internal communications.  Corporately, communications is 
delivered through the Communications Team with the Council Leader and Chief 
Executive taking a prominent role, most notably during the Pandemic.  Most day to 
day communication is however the responsibility of Directorates, Departments and 
Services who decide themselves how this is best organised.  
 

4.7 Our current approach to engagement is similar, although perhaps more fragmented.  
Corporately, the Council has actively supported the ambition to support ‘communities 
doing more for themselves’ and it is a key priority in the Council Strategy (2019-
2023).  For this reason, the Building Communities Together Team was created in 
2015 to progress this agenda with the support of partners and the Building 
Communities Partnership. 

 

Page 39



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

4.8 Engagement though is not limited to the Building Communities initiative.  In many 
ways it is a fundamental part of delivering the job that local government needs to do.  
The challenge in the context of this Strategy is whether more needs to be done and if 
so how this is approached.   

 
What do others say? 

 
4.9 The 2019 Corporate Peer Challenge highlighted two key recommendations in 

relation to communications and engagement namely; 
 

 to make communications central to the Council’s thinking and at the heart of 
what we do both for residents and staff; 

 to jointly design with residents the mechanisms through which to hear their 
voice more. 

4.10 Some of the learning points to come from the Covid-19 response with regard to 
communications could be summarised as; 

 

 additional resources created additional activity, which also spawned the use of 
a much wider range of communications media which we can now build and 
expand upon to shape our vision for the future.  The impact of this has been 
viewed positively, particularly in the context of managing a challenging national 
emergency; 

 the historical reliance on the local media as a means of communication was 
greatly diluted through investment in GovDelivery.  This enabled the Council to 
communicate directly with large numbers of residents by email although not all; 

 communications planning was driven through one point – GOLD – and was 
actively managed with a daily plan overseen by senior officers and Members. 
Coordination was stronger and easier as a result; 

 the ability to use digital means of communication appeared to be well received 
perhaps because it became inevitable during a period of lockdown.  The 
opportunity to see and speak directly to someone was a notable departure from 
the leaflet or email; 

 the need for the Council to demonstrate strong local leadership at a time of 
national emergency was reflected in the decision that the Council Leader and 
Chief Executive should ‘front’ much of the communication both within the 
Council and outside.  This level of activity may not be sustainable under more 
normal conditions but does raise wider issues as to how communications are 
presented; 

 dedicated communication resource was provided to some specific areas of 
activity during Covid-19 and this seems to have worked well.  This resource 
remained under the purview of the central Communications Team but was there 
to be used by other functions.  This helped to improve both coordination and 
consistency.  

Page 40



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

4.11 A Residents Survey was conducted in May 2020 following the immediate Covid-19 
response. The findings highlight the fact that residents view of the Council is greatly 
influenced by the degree of interaction that they have with us.  For example 
satisfaction with the Council was very notably higher when; 

 

 residents had either signed up to, or become aware of the Council’s new e-
bulletin;  

 

 residents had visited the Council’s website to find information about Covid-19; 
 

 residents were aware of the Community Support Hub. 
 

4.12 A similar view of the Council was taken by those residents who said they felt that 
they had become more connected to their community during the Covid-19 Pandemic.  

 
4.13 Other interesting results that came from the survey included; 

 81% of residents said that they preferred to be contacted by email;19% by 
telephone and 7% face to face; 
 

 21% of residents has engaged with the Council on social media; 
 

 42% had used the Council website. 
 

This highlights the importance of digital means in promoting communication and 
engagement. 
 

4.14 In relation to internal communications results from previous Employee Attitude 
Surveys highlight that there is a correlation between the effectiveness of 
management communication and employment engagement scores.  This varies 
significantly across the Council. Tables 1a and b highlight the challenge with internal 
communication.  Whilst a standard approach can be adopted to corporate 
communications the approach at a Departmental and Service level varies quite 
significantly and is often dictated by a manager’s individual commitment and ability to 
effectively communicate.  Attempts have been made to try and introduce a more 
standardised approach for example the introduction of ‘weekly team briefs’ but the 
degree to which this has been widely adopted is unclear. 
 

Page 41



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Table 1a – Effective communication delivers stronger employee engagement. 
Results of the West Berkshire Council Employee Attitude Survey – 2018 

(Rank 1 = high  13 = low) 
 

Service Engagement Communication 

Score Rank Score Rank 

Adult Social Care 72 6 53 9 

Children & Family Services 64 = 8 = 53 9 

Commissioning 83 = 2 = 63 5 

Customer Services & ICT 60 10 52 11 

Human Resources 84 1 94 1 

Commissioning 83 = 2 = 63 5 

Development & Planning 56 12 48 13 

Education 76 4 66 4 

Finance & Property 64 = 8 = 60 6 = 

Legal 74 5 79 2 

Public Health & Wellbeing 83 = 2 = 54 8 

Public Protection & Culture 55 13 52 11 

Strategic Support 59 11 67 3 

Transport & Countryside 65 7 60 6 =  

 
4.15 The results of a staff survey that was conducted in June 2020 following the peak of 

the Covid-19 Pandemic highlighted the following; 
 

 satisfaction with the effectiveness of internal communications was highest for the 
Leader and Chief Executive and for service managers; 

 

 there were notable variations between Departments and Services.  As can be 
seen from Table 1b there was also a correlation between these results and those 
shown in Table 1a from the earlier Employee Attitude Survey. 

 
Table 1b – The effectiveness of internal staff communication during the Covid-19 

Pandemic – June 2020 (Rank 1 = high   11 = low) 
 

Service % of staff who felt communicated with 
effectively 

Rank 
(by 
SD/HoS
) 

Leader/ 
CEX 

Ex. 
Director 

SD/HoS Service 
Manager 

Adult Social Care 67 42 41 54 9 

Children & Family Services 79 54 52 55 6 

Commissioning 90 68 79 79 1 

Customer Services & ICT 65 57 53 60 5 

Development & Planning 75 27 41 55 9 

Education 86 66 79 69 1 

Environment 79 46 66 64 4 

Finance & Property 87 67 43 41 8 

Public Health & Wellbeing 85 31 69 77 3 

Public Protection & Culture 73 29 40 66 11 

Strategy & Governance 81 60 50 56 7 

Page 42



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 
4.16 Feedback on the Council’s broader engagement activity has been more anecdotal. In 

general the support provided through Covid-19 Pandemic has been viewed positively 
– and this is a view which has been confirmed through formal survey work as 
highlighted in Appendix 5. In general where engagement has taken place the 
feedback has generally been positive. The underlying question remains as to 
whether the approach is effectively targeted and also whether the Council has the 
resources to match its ambition. 
 
Where are we now? 

 
4.17 In their document ‘New Conversations – A LGA Guide to Engagement’ (2017) four 

different types of Council were portrayed as a means of stimulating debate around 
engagement (see Table 2).  Different views may be taken as to where West 
Berkshire Council actually sits but the conclusion here is that it is somewhere 
between the ’PLC Council’ and the ‘Networked Council’ with the direction of travel 
moving to the right.  This has implications for how communications and engagement 
are approached.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Table 2 – Types of Council - as described in the LGA publication New Conversations 
– LGA guide to engagement (LGA 2015) (annotated) 

 

PLC Council Networked Council 

 Business-like,  pragmatic and 
technocractic 

 Stable politics and a strategic view 

 High performer able to push through 
services redesign 

 Executive members more like 
officers, perhaps with a business 
background 

 Entrepreneurial flair and paternalistic 

 Public able to do more for 
themselves 

 Councillors focused on economic 
growth 

 Devolution of many services to the 
neighbourhood level 

 Challenge to traditional councillor 
roles.  Councillors have an 
entrepreneurial flair and activist skill 
set 

 Integration of services with others 
such as adult social care with GPs 

Navel Gazing Council Tower of Babel Council 

 Politically divided with regular hung 
or changing leadership 

 Low public activism 

 Likely to strip back services to bare 
minimum in the face of cuts 

 Unruly political groups with frontline 
councillors involved in high energy 
scheming and plotting 

 Executive members struggle to get 
things done 

 Navel gazing internal characteristics 

 An active civil society ready to take 
on and challenge the internal 
scenario  

 Public protests 

 Electoral challenge from residents 
associations and independents 

 Pressure for extreme localisation 

 Councillors defensive 

 Highly political with political skills 
coming to the fore (negotiation, 
rhetoric, communication and 
mediation) 

 

WBC 

Page 44



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

4.18 The same report also seeks to provide a test to determine how easy or difficult it is 
likely to be for a council to win the satisfaction of residents.  Table 3 summarises the 
various categories that have been identified. Use of the self-assessment tool would 
suggest that the Council is relatively well placed being scored as being ‘in pole 
position with things generally likely to be in the Council’s favour.’ 
 
Table 3   A framework for assessing the ease with which a Council is likely to win the 

satisfaction of its residents (source based on work by IPSOS Mori and the 
development of an Area Challenge Index).(annotated) 

 

More Difficult 

1. You’re against the ropes – it’s really hard going 
2. You’re swimming upstream – it’s a struggle but not impossible 
3. You’re jogging on the flat – some factors work in your favour and some don’t 
4. You’re in pole position – it’s not a doddle but things are working for you - 

WBC 
5. You’re freewheeling – pretty much everything’s in your favour 

Easier 

 

 
4.19 The SOLACE trust test provides a useful framework for understanding how you 

might view the local population.  It identifies four ‘Truster Tribes’ which are seen as a 
useful guide in understanding how to frame an approach to both communication and 
engagement; 

 

 The ‘we haves’ – these tend to be a small but influential minority.  They know a 
lot of people, want to get involved in social issues and have the time to act on that 
feeling.  The ‘we haves’ are prepared to interact with the Council to get things 
done.  They often get frustrated with public service institutions.  This group is very 
evident in West Berkshire and has been important in moving engagement activity 
forward including during the recent Covid-19 Pandemic: 
 

 The ‘we have nots’ are also an influential minority.  They usually live in social 
housing and have a lot in common through shared adversity.  They have 
individual problems with Council services particularly benefits and housing, and 
feel the best way to resolve them is by using strength in numbers to secure the 
things they are entitled to.  This is not a group that is very evident in West 
Berkshire and this should perhaps be considered further in considering how to 
frame this Strategy.  Every voice needs to be heard: 
 

 The ‘I haves’ are a larger group.  They’re self-sufficient, busy and focused on 
work and entertainment.  They tend to be young and mobile and they seldom 
integrate into their neighbourhoods.  The group wants to be treated as the 
consumers of Council services which they see as important to keep things 
working.  This is a significant grouping in West Berkshire who will probably have 
a tendency to engage when they choose to: 

 

 The ‘I have nots’ are usually isolated and dependent on the Council for financial 
and social support.  They often feel that they cannot help themselves and so they 
struggle with the Council to get the support they deserve.  Many resent their 

Page 45



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

dependency and feel trapped or controlled by public agencies.  Although 
relatively small this group will exist in West Berkshire although like the ‘we have 
nots’ their voice is not often heard.  
 

4.20 All of these groups will be present in West Berkshire although the means of engaging 
with them will need to be shaped to their outlook and motivations.  Further work is 
required to identify these but it is clear that a ‘one size fits all’ approach to 
communications and engagement is not appropriate. 
 

4.21 Understanding where the Council wants to get to, and what it wants to communicate 
and engage on, are critical.  So too is an understanding of the audiences and 
stakeholders that are to be addressed. 

Page 46



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

5. Our Corporate Narrative and Key Messages 

5.1 This chapter is focused on what we are trying to communicate.  It also introduces a 
corporate narrative which essentially seeks to tell the Council’s story and something 
of the District which it serves.  

 
5.2 The Council Strategy (2019-2023) recognises three distinct areas of activity for the 

Authority all of which need to be reflected in the way the Council communicates and 
engages; 

 

 the provision of strong community leadership.  This has been particularly 
necessary during the Covid-19 Pandemic.  It extends though into many areas 
including the Council’s work around building stronger community resilience and 
effectively representing the area on a regional and national stage.  This role is 
often achieved through working in collaboration with partners; 
 

 the provision of services.  This is perhaps the mainstay of what the Council does 
and where the vast majority of its resources are deployed.  Most people will 
directly come into contact with the Council as a customer of its services even if 
that is just through the collection of Council Tax and the emptying of the bins.  
Customer perspective is discussed later; 
 

 improving the quality of life of those who live, work or visit West Berkshire.  This 
primarily takes the form of a set of priorities laid out in the Council Strategy.  New 
resources, when available, are generally aligned to these priorities and are a key 
feature of the Council’s Corporate Programme.  Again some of this will be done 
with partners, and also the wider community, through the delivery of West 
Berkshire 2036 Vision. 

 
5.3 The way in which the Council communicates and engages with stakeholders will vary 

depending on what activity is being pursued.  Customer interactions will be different 
to those aimed at promoting broader engagement. In some cases straightforward 
one way communication may be appropriate, for others, a well prepared engagement 
exercise may be required. 

 
5.4 Our Key Messages are understandably based around our strategic plans namely 

West Berkshire 2036 and the Council Strategy (2019-2023).  The themes in the 
Council Strategy encapsulate this best: 

 

 West Berkshire is a great place – to live, work and learn: 
 

 West Berkshire is open for business – and we are committed to rebuilding our 
local economy after the Covid-19 Pandemic:  

 

 West Berkshire’s people are protected and cared for – and will continue to work 
to reduce the inequality gap that we know exists in the District and has probably 
been widened by the Pandemic: 

 

 Together with our partners we will both provide sustainable services and innovate 
to create a better future for all. 

Page 47



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

5.5 Our limited resources will be focused on delivering our key priorities which are also 
set out within the Council Strategy (2019-2023) namely: 
 

 Ensuring our vulnerable children and adults achieve better outcomes; 
 

 Supporting everyone to reach their full potential; 
 

 Supporting businesses to start, develop and thrive in West Berkshire; 
 

 Developing local infrastructure, including housing, to support and grow the local 
economy; 

 

 Maintaining a green district; 
 

 Ensuring sustainable services through innovation and partnerships.  
 
5.6 This is more broadly encapsulated within our Corporate Narrative:  
 

West Berkshire was created in 1998 because it was agreed West Berkshire needed its own 
Council given it was uniquely different from the areas that surrounded it.  Since then what we 
do has changed, as have our communities, along with their ambitions and aspirations.  What 
remains unchanged is that West Berkshire is regarded as a great place, with a strong 
economy and a beautiful environment. In looking to the future there is much to cherish and 
hold onto.  
 
Challenges however remain.  We need a West Berkshire that is for everyone – whilst the 

majority prosper, a minority do not.  The Covid-19 Pandemic has highlighted the strength of 

our communities but once again the vulnerability of those who often struggle.  Addressing 

that ‘inequality gap’ remains at the forefront of what we do - we retain a fundamental duty to 

protect the most vulnerable. 

Our population is getting older and with that more dependent.  Our economy is strong but 

our workforce and the nature of work is changing.  The demand for affordable housing is 

undimmed and needs to be addressed.  And our climate is getting warmer and less 

predictable – a challenge we need to face up to, along with the rest of the World.   

We have been told we are a high performing, well managed Council.  We also work 

effectively with our partners.  However, we are not perfect.  We need to be more outward 

facing and become more engaged with the communities we serve.  Our leadership within the 

local community needs to be clearer and more visible.  We have sought to do that during the 

Covid-19 Pandemic. 

We have neither the capability nor the resources to realise our ambition alone.  If we are to 

succeed we must continue to work with others to deliver what we all want for West 

Berkshire.  That partnership needs to include not only our Partners but also those 

communities, and those that live within them.  These are the communities that rose to the 

challenge during the recent Pandemic and showed what ‘communities supporting 

themselves’ was all about. 

Page 48



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

6. Who Are Our Key Audiences and Stakeholders? 

6.1 West Berkshire’s communities are not homogenous.  In general they are 
characterised by; 

 

 an age profile that is currently close to the national average but which is now  
growing older and at a rate faster than the national average; 

 

 a large proportion of people in employment; 
 

 relatively high income levels; 
 

 a relatively small Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic population; 
 

 a growing inequality gap which is seen in health, employment, educational 
attainment and in a number of other areas; 

 

 high levels of digital awareness and connectivity. 
 
6.2 Our key audiences and stakeholders in the context of this Strategy can be defined 

as; 
 

 residents  - some of whom are more difficult to engage e.g. younger people, 
minority communities, and those that are economically disadvantaged; 

 

 customers -  these will include all local residents but also many others who either 
travel through the District or visit it;  

 

 businesses and workers – around 50% of West Berkshire residents actually work 
in the District.  Engagement with local businesses has historically been 
challenging due to resource constraints.  With ‘open for business’ as a key 
message this will need to change; 

 

 visitors – some will be Council customers others will be day visitors or tourists; 
 

 Parish and Town Councils – are a key local government partner; 
 

 voluntary, community and social enterprise organisations that are a vital part of 
the wider community and often key partners in the delivery of local services; 

 

 community groups whether they are focused on an area or particular interest. 
They were the stars of the Covid-19 Pandemic and will hopefully not fade.  

 
  

Page 49



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

6.3 Internally, our stakeholders include; 

 elected Members and Honorary Alderman; 
 

 our staff; 
 

 our contractors and external service providers. 

Page 50



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

7. Customer Engagement  

Overview  
 
7.1 The Council has a large number of customers some of whom choose to interact 

through purchasing services, others engage through the payment of taxes, and 
others who may prefer not to engage but have no choice.  For some the Council will 
play a fundamental role in their health and wellbeing, acting as an essential lifeline.  

7.2 Customer engagement is vital activity for the Council and many staff are specifically 
employed to support it.  Mention was made earlier of our key audiences but 
customer engagement is included here because it is important to recognise the 
range of customers that the Council has and the wide range of channels that need to 
be deployed to support customer access.  A Council’s reputation is often built on how 
its residents interact with the Council as a customer. 

7.3 The move towards digitisation has had a profound impact on how the Council 
interacts with its customers.  Today the vast majority of residents have access to the 
internet and now virtually all have access to superfast broadband should they wish to 
purchase it.  There is an increasing expectation from many that everything can be 
done on line and at any time of the day or night.  The Council’s approach has 
adapted to support this and other key trends over the past decade most notably; 

 the creation of a dedicated Customer Contact Centre designed to manage the 
Council’s telephony in one place; 

 

 the creation of a transaction based website; 
 

 the use of on line rather than paper based forms;  
 

 facilities to pay and book on line; 
 

 the introduction of chatbots to automate simple telephone requests; 
 

 and during the Covid-19 Pandemic, the widespread adoption of video 
conferencing and virtual meetings. 

 
7.4 The New Ways of Working Programme has highlighted a range of opportunities to 

further digitise various processes to improve the customer experience and provide 
better value for money.  

7.5 Effective customer engagement is however more than just digitisation.  It is about the 
customer experience and that means clear standards so customers know what to 
expect and responsiveness and courtesy that often underpin many of these 
standards.  

 

Page 51



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 
 

  

Page 52



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Defining our customers 
 

7.6 Past experience and the knowledge we have gained from customer and staff 
consultation enables us to segment our customers into a number of groups.  Each 
group displays individual characteristics and tends to have particular preferences of 
how they want to interact with the Council.  This is summarised in Table 4 and 
highlights that one size does not fit all and that in delivering services a common 
sense approach is taken allowing customers to use channels that are appropriate to 
their needs. 

Table 4 – Our customers, their characteristics and needs 
 
Customer Group Example 

Service Lines 
Characteristics Approach to Service 

Delivery 
Channels 
 

Those who receive 
generic, universal 
services but do not 
seek an active 
relationship with the 
Council 

Rubbish 
collection, street 
lighting, school 
admissions 

Expect an efficient and 
reliable service but if things 
go wrong, want quick and 
simple processes requiring 
minimal effort to resolve.  
Likely to pay Council tax by 
Direct Debit. 

Fast, efficient and easy to use 
integrated online services that 
allow customers to track 
progress through to 
completion.  Assisted self-
serve where appropriate. 

 Online customer 
portal/integrated forms. 

 Telephony 

 Web chat 

 Social media 

 Artificial intelligence 

Those who seek an 
active relationship 
with the Council for 
example Community 
Champions, 
Community Leaders 
and Councillors 

Street services, 
parking, 
planning. 

Expect an efficient and 
reliable service and want a 
clear escalation route if this 
goes wrong or if dealing 
with complex, abnormal 
enquiries. 

Fast, efficient and easy to use 
integrated services that allow 
progress to be tracked through 
to completion.  Clear lines of 
escalation and quick resolution 
should things go wrong. 

 Online customer 
portal/integrated forms 

 Telephony and a 
responsive telephone 
service 

 Web chat 

 Social media 

 Artificial intelligence 

Those who choose to 
receive optional, paid 
for services 

Garden waste 
collection 
service, 
residents 
parking permits, 
registrar 
services 

As a consumer, would 
expect a high quality 
service which very few 
service failures which 
provides value for money 

 Slick, easy to use, 
integrated online 
processes which meet 
customer expectations, 
and generate a positive 
customer experience 
which enables us to retain 
customers. 

 Clear lines of escalation 
and quick resolution 
should things go wrong.   

 Assisted self-serve where 
appropriate. 

 Online customer 
portal/integrated forms 

 Telephony with an ability 
to speak to an advisor 

 Web chat 

 Social media 

 Artificial intelligence 

  

Page 53



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Customer Group Example 
Service Lines 

Characteristics Approach to Service 
Delivery 

Channels 
 

Businesses operating 
within the District 

Business rates, 
commercial 
rates, licensing, 
planning agents 

Often require more than 
one person to access 
services/personalised 
information on behalf of the 
organisation. 
 
Expect to be able to self 
serve using efficient online 
channels that provide an 
audit trail. 

 Simple to use online 
processes linked to a 
‘business account’ where 
transactions can be stored 
and tracked. 

 Clear lines of escalation 
and resolution should 
things go wrong, 
particularly for optional, 
paid for services. 

 Assisted self-serve where 
appropriate. 

 Online business 
account 

 Automated 
telephone service 
where appropriate 

 Web chat 

Individuals requiring 
essential services, the 
quality of which 
impacts significantly 
on their health and 
wellbeing 

Housing benefit 
applications, 
blue badge 
applications, 
day care 
services or 
support for older 
people, 
children, 
families and 
young people. 

Often considered vulnerable 
in some way and may 
require a more tailored 
approach.  They rely on 
receiving a consistent level 
of service that requires fast 
intervention should 
something go wrong. 

 Provide integrated online 
services where 
appropriate but ensure 
adequate support is 
provided via telephone 
and face to face if 
required. 

 Online customer 
portal/integrated 
forms 

 Auto telephony with 
ability to speak to 
an advisor 

 Appointments with 
a face to face 
advisor or specialist 

Individuals requiring 
information or advice 
directly from the 
Council or needing to 
be signposted to other 
services 

Advice on adult 
social care or 
on debt 
management. 
Landlords. 

Want to be able to access 
easy to understand 
information quickly and 
easily. 

 Up to date, relevant and 
easy to access web 
content including 
information on where to 
find/who to contact for 
further information. 

 Assisted self-serve where 
appropriate 

 Website 
 

People or groups who 
may not wish to deal 
with the Council, or 
may actively avoid 
doing so, but where 
we have a 
responsibility to 
intervene 

Children’s 
Services, 
Council Tax 
recovery. 

Often from a vulnerable 
group and have multiple 
complex needs.  Have a 
preference for human 
contact either on the 
telephone or face to face. 

 Explore personalised 
targeted communication 
via email/SMS. 

 Provide direct access to 
highly trained advisors 
who are empowered to 
resolve customer issues or 
who can refer directly to 
the appropriate officer 
without delay. 

 Assisted self-serve where 
appropriate. 

 Responsive 
telephone service 

 Appointments with 
a face to face 
advisor or specialist 

 
7.7 A review of where the Council appears to be in terms of its customer engagement 

can be summarised as follows; 

 customers are happy to transact online for simple to access services, and 
younger customers only want to transact on line and expect a seamless, 
interactive experience; 

 

 feedback suggests that, on the whole, online services are well received although 
there have been issues with paying for services on line; 
 

Page 54



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 face to face services are considered last resort for the majority, but essential for 
the minority.  Experience during Covid-19 suggests that the ability to book 
appointments has significant merit and could deliver potential cost savings; 
 

 customers value the Council’s Contact Centre which receives high satisfaction 
ratings.  Call volumes have remained relatively stable over the past 10 years (see 
Fig.1).  Back office call volumes have fallen markedly but it is here that there are 
greater concerns about responsiveness; 
 

 email is a popular means of communication but is not an effective means of 
accessing services.  Social media is likely to be a more appropriate alternative 
particularly for some customer groups; 
 

 there still remains significant inconsistency in the way customers access services 
across the Council – sometimes within Departments and Service Units.  New 
Ways of Working Reviews have highlighted many of these inconsistences and 
the opportunities that exist to provide a more consistent customer experience.  
The challenge is now where to start and how to resource and deliver these 
recommendations.  Do all Council Departments need a clear and effective ‘front 
door?’; 
 

 customers expect to be able to speak to polite and helpful staff who take 
responsibility for dealing with their enquiry in a responsive way.  They want to be 
able to contact staff directly if necessary.  Feedback suggests that the Council 
does not have a general issue with responsiveness or courtesy although there 
are some isolated problems that are the subject of complaints.  Accessibility to 
officers is not a problem but again isolated problems appear to exist highlighting 
again an inconsistent picture across the Council; 
 

 customers expect the Council to be clear about service levels and then stick to 
them to avoid service failure and repeat contact.  This is an area that needs 
further attention; 
 

 customers expect to be kept up to date with the progress of their transaction for 
example be notified when the fly tip they have reported has been cleared or of a 
delay in providing a service.  This remains a major weakness in the customer 
experience; 
 

 on line transactions need to be accessible on a wide variety of devices e.g. 
smartphone and tablet.  Some progress is being made to deliver on this; 

 

 disjointed services continue to make sharing information difficult.  The result is 
that some customers have to complete forms more than once.  The Council did 
seek to introduce Customer Relationship Management software some years ago 
without success.  Some services such as Tell us Once, fulfil this but integration 
remains challenging although further work is underway. 
 

  

Page 55



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 systems and processes are often designed with the service and back office 
processes in mind rather than the customer experience.  NWOW Reviews and 
the increasing use of Agile methodologies have sought to try and address this 
problem but there is undoubtedly more to do.  

 
Fig. 1 Customer Transaction Volumes 2015-2020 

 

 
 
Issues to Address 
 

7.8 The above feedback and the analysis on Table 4 highlight a number of areas in need 
of attention in the context of this Strategy most notably; 

 to ensure for all staff see customer service as their responsibility and for the 
Council to have an effective development and training programme to support this.  
There is a significant issue around culture here.  Some Departments have the 
customer far more embedded into their approach than others.  It is also important 
to recognise that some of this cultural block is around an innate unwillingness to 
embrace, or scepticism about, change.  The following are seen as important; 

 

 to have clear service standards that customers can easily access; 
 

 to have the means of monitoring and evaluating our customer engagement; 
 

 to ensure a consistent approach to customer service across the Council;  
 

 to become far more effective at providing feedback to customers as a matter of 
course; 

 

Page 56



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 to increase the pace of implementing customer focused digital solutions as a 
means of providing the most accessible, convenient and effective means of 
accessing Council services; 

 

 to support and resource the introduction of social media as a means of improving 
the customer experience; 
 

 to expand the roll out of chat bots where appropriate;  
 

 to reconsider the use of web chat for some customer channels. 
 

Page 57



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

8. Reaching Out 

No one is hard to reach, just more expensive to reach.  It is important to put more 
effort and creativity in reaching these groups (LGA 2017) 

8.1 Many of the Council’s strategic objectives are focused on groups that would 
traditionally be defined as ‘hard to reach’.  The problem is that those who are often 
most keen to engage, or find it easy to engage, usually fall within the ‘we haves’ and 
‘I haves’ as discussed previously.  There is a need to carefully consider how the 
voice of the ‘have nots’ is heard.  The problem was very apparent in the responses 
received to the Residents Survey conducted in June 2020.  Those that were asked to 
take part were drawn from the GovDelivery database and an analysis of the returns 
highlighted how unrepresentative this was, most notably; 

 a significant absence of 16-24 year olds; 
 

 a lower number of 25-34 year olds; 
 

 a notably lower number of responders from Black, Asian and Minority ethnic 
backgrounds. 

 
8.2 Whilst the survey did not collect information relating to socio economic groups it is 

very likely that the response from lower income households was much poorer.  This 
is consistent with engagement challenges in other parts of the country. 

8.3 If this Strategy is to focus on this current deficit then there are number of issues to 
address; 

 when informing we need to ensure that information is presented in a way that is 
understood; 
 

 when consulting we need to ensure that we are talking to a representative sample 
of that community.  Effort will be required to achieve this; 

 

 specific effort will be needed to engage those who are less confident.  In some 
cases this may involve using a third party.  It will also be important to consider the 
venue, timings, refreshments etc; 

 

 seek out those who know least.  In this way those with a vested interest are less 
likely to dominate.  Attracting such people may require the use of larger 
incentives; 

 

 use social networks.  In some cases it will be important to work first with local 
leaders or representatives.  This helps create confidence and is a technique 
which has been used successfully in West Berkshire in the past. 

 

Page 58



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

9. Our Approach  

9.1 Our communication and engagement objectives set out what we are seeking to 
achieve in relation to this Strategy.  Our key principles highlight what will guide us in 
terms of deciding how we should do it.  They also reflect the Council’s values as set 
out in the Council Strategy (2019-2023).  The outcomes are what we expect to 
achieve for our stakeholders.  These should be measurable so that we can 
determine whether we have been successful.  
 
Communications and engagement objectives  
 

9.2 Our high level, strategic communication and engagement objectives and our key 
principles are; 

 

 Better informing our key audiences and stakeholders about what they want and 
need to know and in a way that is timely, appropriate and relevant to them; 

 

 Planning our consultation with stakeholders more effectively to ensure it is 
genuine and represents value for money; 
 

 Involving stakeholders more to help shape what the Council does and 
increasingly what they and their communities do; 
 

 Collaborating more effectively to enable the development of effective 
engagement and the achievement of better outcomes but also to build more 
resilient communities across West Berkshire with the purpose of reducing 
inequalities and improving quality of life; 

 

 Empowering individuals and communities more so that they can take their own 
decisions on matters that might historically have been for the Council to take; 

 

 Transforming services so that they are better for our customers.  A service will be 
deemed better if it is fit for purpose, cheaper, more resilient or easier to access 
through a greater number of channels, if it is available for longer hours or if it has 
a lower carbon footprint (taken from WBC Digital Strategy 2020-2023); 

 

 Getting it right first time and on time and treating everyone with respect and 
courtesy, and using plain English so that everyone can understand. 

 
Key principles 
 

9.3 The key principles we are seeking to achieve are: 

 Placing the need to build and maintain trust at the heart of our approach and  
ensuring we are open, honest and transparent and that we always act with 
integrity: 

 

 Being driven by local community needs and wishes: 
 

 A shared and collaborative approach: 

Page 59



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 Being inclusive and thereby reaching everyone – and being clear how we will 
do that: 

 

 Developing a local approach which puts communities in the driving seat: 
 

 Placing an increasing emphasis on listening and on creating conversation and 
dialogue and focusing on engagement approaches that make the Council 
more visible, and increasingly face to face and not in written form: 

 

 Developing an asset based approach – recognising and building on our 
strengths that exist within each community:  

 

 Being clear who does what: 
 

 Using the right tools for the job: 
 

 Building on what has gone before: 
 

 Ensuring effective communication and engagement is the responsibility of 
every member of staff: 

 

 Prioritising our resources on our key messages and corporate narrative: 
 

 Moving away from a reliance on the local media as a means of communication 
to developing a direct conversation with our key audiences and stakeholders: 

 

 Reshaping the organisation, and providing the resources and cultural shift to 
safeguard that we ensure communication is central to what we do and that we 
engage in a more coordinated and consistent manner: 

 

 Evaluating how effective we are at what we do: 
 
Outcomes 
 

9.4 The outcomes we are seeking to deliver are: 

 Stakeholders and key audiences feel that the Council engages with them 
effectively and that there is trust and confidence in what the Council does 
(reputation) (measured through the Residents Survey): 
 

 A much greater proportion of our stakeholders and key audiences are informed 
about what we are doing and our progress with implementing our key priorities (to 
be measured directly through GovDelivery and social media take up): 

 

 Consultation is undertaken in accordance with the Council’s Consultation 
Framework and the Plan (measured against the requirements of these 
documents): 

 

Page 60



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 There is a culture that promotes open communication and engagement across 
the Council (measured through the employee attitude survey and external 
assessment): 
 

 The specific hard to reach groups outlined in this Strategy will have been 
effectively engaged (to be measured directly through the various means used to 
engage these Groups and the degree to which these groups are represented in 
our engagement activities): 

 

 Customer satisfaction and the Council’s reputation are both enhanced (measured 
through Residents Survey): 

 

 Staff state that they are being properly engaged (to be measured through the 
Employee Attitude Survey): 

 

 Variations across Departments/Services in the engagement of staff across the 
Council have been reduced (to be measured by the Employee Attitude Survey 
and other survey methods). 

 
9.5 Appendix 5 sets out a more detailed paper which includes further detail on how the 

Council intends to expand and develop its approach to community engagement. This 
includes a set of additional objectives which build on those shown in the preceding 
paragraphs. 
 
Building trust  
 

9.6 In their publication, ‘New Conversations 2.0’, the Local Government Association 
(LGA 2017) cite trust as a key element in any approach to developing effective 
engagement.  Three themes are explored: 
 

 Trust in democracy; 
 

 Trust in the community; 
 

 Trust in the system. 
 
9.7 Fig.2 highlights how each of these elements interact. 

9.8 Each of the three themes has five pillars set within them.  A brief description now 
follows of each of these pillars since they have been used to shape the ‘What we are 
going to do’ chapter that follows.    

  

Page 61



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 
Fig.2 The Trust Model (from LGA (2017)) 

 

 
 
Trust in Democracy 

 
9.9 Pillar A – Clarifying the choices on offer.  They key issue here is that the 

engagement process needs to be genuine if trust is to be retained.  Outcomes 
should not be pre-determined and there is a need to be clear from the outset what 
the consultation and engagement can realistically achieve.  This will be achieved 
through having a clear framework and guidance in place for how engagement is 
approached.  

 
9.10 Pillar B – The role of the Councillor in engagement.  Councillors should be at the 

front line of any engagement process given the expectation that democracy is 
participatory.  It will be important for the role of the Councillor to be clarified in the 
Delivery Plan for this Strategy. 

 
9.11 Pillar C – Embedding engagement in the organisation.  Fig.3 highlights a change of 

emphasis with an emphasis towards focusing the organisation towards looking at 
engagement in a more holistic manner rather than as managing the communication 
and consultation entities separately.  This is reflected on later in Chapter 11.  

 
 

  

Page 62



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Fig.3 Embedding engagement in the Council (LGA 2017) 
 

 
 

9.12 Pillar D – Co production and partnerships.  These are seen as important in the 
development of trust.  Examples are already evident in some services but it has yet 
to become embedded as a whole authority way of working.  Evidence elsewhere 
highlights the need to map the approach carefully. 
 

9.13 Pillar E - Structured decision making about budgets and planning.  The Council has a 
strong track record of consulting on its budget but opportunities could be taken to 
expand this.  In the area of regeneration engagement tools include Planning for Real 
and Planning charrettes are highlighted.  The latter was used to a degree with the 
Market Street Regeneration project in Newbury.  This is discussed further within the 
Strategy.  

 
Trust in the Community 

 
9.14 For engagement to be effective trust also needs to exist within communities 

themselves.  This has been evident in many communities during the Covid-19 
Pandemic and the hope is that this can be built upon to consolidate engagement in 
future years.  Five pillars are identified: 
 
Pillar F – Social networks and the role of messengers.  Enhancing social networks 

Page 63



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

helps improve inclusivity and dilute the tendency to rely on the ‘usual suspects’.  Two 
approaches are highlighted; 

 making connections between different groups (more socially confident groups link 
in with less confident ones); 
 

 identifying connectors, communicators or ambassadors via peer to peer (identify 
those who can spread the message within a community). 

 
9.15 Some of this emerged during the Pandemic however there is more to do if these 

social networks are to mature and flourish.   

9.16 Pillar G – ‘Place’ and engagement.  ‘Effective places tend to be described as 
flourishing or resilient.  Decisions about local issues involve people and reflect the 
area’s collective identify and shared aspirations.  There is a strong sense of civic 
society, with interconnected communities and spaces for residents to meet.  Local 
authorities achieve it when the organisation is truly aligned with the needs and 
desires of the place.  It happens when the Council’s responses to problems match 
the personality of the area.  It’s the product of leadership which is place appropriate, 
genuinely understanding and enabling of communities.’ (LGA 2017) 

9.17 Strategic communications is seen as important in helping achieve this but ultimately 
it is seen as creating an organisation that is independent and cooperative in its work 
with local communities.  Again this is more evident in some local communities than 
others.  

9.18 Pillar H – Capacity building and citizen power.  There is an expectation that local 
people should be drivers of change.  The Council embraces this within its Council 
Strategy (2019-2023) with a clear priority around seeking to support communities to 
do more for themselves.  The way in which this is done is key with an expectation of 
having reciprocity at the core of the approach.  Six bottom up techniques are cited as 
important in achieving this; 

 asset based community development; 
 

 neighbourhood planning; 
 

 appreciative enquiry; 
 

 crowd-sourcing; 
 

 citizens UK; 
 

 parishing. 
 

9.19 Some of these are already in play in West Berkshire and proposals are made later in 
this Strategy for how some could be developed further.  

  

Page 64



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

9.20 Pillar I – Engagement and Cohesion.  Recognising that many engagement exercises 
are around some aspect of change, it is important for the Council to understand 
where the community and the tensions within it are.  Clear narratives based around 
the change and a presence on the ground are seen as vital.  This requires further 
development.  In West Berkshire deficits were highlighted in the recent Corporate 
Peer Challenge. 

9.21 Pillar J – Hard to reach communities.  This is a common challenge which is certainly 
evident in West Berkshire.  Proposals to address this include; 

 using the right channels and not just one; 
 

 recruiting a cross section of residents; 
 

 taking small steps to engage the least confident; 
 

 seeking out these who know least; 
 

 thinking about social networks; 
 

 being creative and working in a way that everyone can understand. 
 
9.22 Given earlier comments it is recognised that this remains a major issue for the 

Council in terms of its communication and engagement activities.   

Trust in the System 
 

9.23 This focuses on how better engagement can create greater faith in the system as a 
whole.  
 
Pillar K – Personalisation and the direct channels of engagement.  Personalisation is 
the process of building services around a citizen.  It has been adopted in West 
Berkshire in a range of areas most notably in social care, in preventing 
homelessness, and in shaping interaction with customers.  If the process is done well 
it means that each person has a single, ongoing and unique relationship with local 
services rather than a set of individual interactions.  Residents have a whole, end to 
end experience rather than a series of variable and unsatisfactory interactions.  At a 
more strategic level the health and social care integration programme has much of 
this at the core of its purpose.  Within the Council itself the ‘passing off’ of customers 
still remains an issue. 
 
Pillar L – The role of social media.  ‘If you make customers unhappy in the physical 
world, they might tell six friends.  If you make customers unhappy on the internet, 
they can tell 6000 friends’   Jeff Bezos. 

9.24 In a local authority context social media presents both a risk and an opportunity.  It 
can enflame an issue when things go wrong but it can drastically improve dialogue 
between residents and the Council and accelerate the speed at which ideas and 
behaviours catch on.  It proved invaluable during the Covid-19 Pandemic and must 
inevitably form an integral part of our approach in the future.  

Page 65



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

9.25 Key issues in relation to social media are seen to be; 

 the need for a clear narrative – there is also a need to understand how the 
Council is currently viewed; 
 

 a balance between audacious content and playing it safe needs to be set – 
expectations on what response and change can be anticipated from social media 
feeds, needs to be agreed; 
 

 understanding what audiences are actually being reached with social media; 
 

 its use as a monitoring tool; 
 

 choosing the right channel. 
 
9.26 Pillar M – Online consultation and the role of digital.  Digital consultation is very cost 

effective but is not without pitfalls most notably the potential exclusion of certain 
groups who are less digitally enabled.  Consultation is fairly well developed at the 
Council but a stronger framework and better coordination would be beneficial.  

9.27 Pillar N – The role of frontline staff.  Frontline staff are in many ways the face of the 
Council.  They are present every day in local communities. When it comes to 
employees, good engagement within the organisation is seen as the best, if not only, 
route to good engagement beyond the organisation.  Challenges in terms of effective 
communication within the Council and the links between communication and 
engagement have already been explored and are reflected later in the Delivery Plan.  

9.28 Pillar O – Continuous engagement and relationship building.  Satisfaction and trust 
are both important things to measure but they are not the same thing.  Service 
satisfaction is potentially brittle.  It doesn’t require residents to understand competing 
priorities and pressures.  It won’t necessarily last if the quality of a service fails.   

9.29 Trust on the other hand is a more ‘earned’ quality.  It’s defined less by how engaged 
they feel and how much they sense the Council is on their side.  

9.30 In an ultra-responsive Council, engagement and satisfaction measurement should 
become virtually intertwined with regular listening exercises done to involve residents 
and gain insights.  In the long run the expectation is less forced engagement or 
statutory consultation – and more positive listening exercises and day to day 
engagement.  Some of the key components to such an approach are; 

 an emphasis on engaging when you don’t need to; 
 

 an emphasis on measuring through qualitative types of approach based on a two 
way dialogue, rather than numbers based surveys; 
 

 an emphasis on measuring trust as well as satisfaction. 
 
  

Page 66



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

The Engagement Spectrum 
 
9.31 The Engagement Spectrum is used as the framework to this Strategy.  The 

Spectrum has the following key elements which are summarised in Fig 4.  In many 
ways the maturity of an organisation’s engagement activity can be measured by what 
is achieved across this Spectrum.  

 
(1) Inform 

 

 providing communities with factual information; 
 

 providing communities with information to understand a problem, policy or 
service change; 
 

 setting out the results and/or implications of a decision; 
 

 communities given the opportunity for engagement.  The Council’s website 
and Reporter would be examples of this. 
 

(2) Consult 
 

 a means of obtaining feedback from communities or stakeholders from 
clearly defined channels.  It is used to help shape policies, programmes or 
make decisions.  It is also about listening to concerns and aspirations and 
gathering information.  Budget consultation exercises and the recent 
consultation on the Environment Strategy are examples. 
 

(3) Involve 
 

 communities and stakeholders are engaged in processes to ensure there 
is common understanding of the issue and that community views, 
concerns and aspirations are reflected in the development of options or 
approached.  It involves a two way exchange of information that 
encourages discussion and provides an opportunity to influence the 
outcome.  Such approaches are used extensively in some social care 
settings and the Council’s Building Communities Team has developed 
‘community conversations’ which embrace this approach. 
 

(4) Collaborate 
 

 working in partnership with communities as a team, incorporating their 
input and advice jointly formulating solutions and/or options and sharing 
agenda setting and deliberation of issues.  These approaches have been 
widely developed with partners but are less mature in community settings. 
The Community Support Hub is perhaps a contemporary example.  
 

  

Page 67



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

(5) Empower 
 

 Placing final decision making in the hands of the community – the 
community decides what will be implemented.  The Council’s Devolution 
Programme could be seen as empowerment with buildings and functions 
being transferred to communities for them to use and shape as they see fit. 

 
Fig.4  The Engagement Spectrum 

 
As can be seen the Council already undertakes a great deal of activity under 
each of the strands of the spectrum.  With a desire to become a more 
networked Council the emphasis of this Strategy will be to move increasingly 
towards involve, collaborate and empower.  

Page 68



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

10. What Are We Going To Do 

Inform  
 

10.1 This is a significant area of the Spectrum in terms of volume of activity and is where 
the Council’s key communication activities reside.  Written means of communication 
currently dominate notably; 
 

 press releases and photocalls; 
 

 website and intranet; 
 

 various newsletters (internal and external) – some remain paper based; 
 

 social media. 
 

10.2 During Covid-19 use was made of GovDelivery for the first time which enabled direct 
email contact with residents, something that previously had only been enabled for 
functional activities such as electoral registration and Council Tax administration.  
Press releases were replaced by a weekly virtual press briefing which included the 
Leader and Chief Executive.  The internal monthly newsletter ‘Reporter’ was 
replaced by weekly emails from the Chief Executive and Leader.  

 
10.3 These new approaches have created a more personal and more targeted form of 

engagement which has been well received and it is now being proposed to adopt 
many of these approaches in this Strategy. 

 
10.4 However, feedback from the Residents Survey in March highlighted that younger 

people, those within BAMER communities and those facing economic hardship were 
less likely to respond to these methods.  This requires further consideration.  
 
As part of this Strategy the following areas of activity are now being proposed to 
improve our ability to inform effectively; 
 
(1) The GovDelivery platform is retained and is used as the means of distributing all 

Council leaflets and newsletters.  Subscribers would be able to decide which 
newsletters they wished to receive and it would be for Departments/Services to 
decide how often they were produced.  Content would be the responsibility of the 
Department/Service although it would need to be signed off by the 
Communications Team.  Design would also be for the Communications Team 
who would have responsibility for the platform. Appendix 1 shows the current 
known scale of newsletter production across the Council.  
 
A weekly Council newsletter would be produced through GovDelivery which 
would include a weekly blog from the Leader and Chief Executive.  Consideration 
will need to be given to producing this in alternative languages and through 
media that would make it accessible to those with hearing and sight impairments. 
 
A newsletter would also be produced for community groups, the VCSE sector and 
for Parish and Town Councils.  It is proposed that all of this material is prepared 

Page 69



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

by the new Communities and Wellbeing Department although distributed through 
GovDelivery by the Communications Team.  

 
(2) The greater use of video and infographics – video is often seen as a more 

engaging and effective media particularly with younger age groups.  It has been 
used more extensively by the Council in recent years and was deployed quite 
widely during the Covid-19 Pandemic.  It is a more resource intensive media to 
support but there is clear evidence of its popularity.  Whilst content will be 
focused around the Council’s key messages it will be tailored to the specific 
audiences that are being targeted.  The proposal would be to agree video 
programming as part of the strategic Communications Plan which is discussed 
later. It would be the responsibility of the Communications Team.  There is a clear 
opportunity to use video to try and engage hard to reach groups 

 
The opportunity will be taken to introduce customer and resident stories so that 
different and more personal perspectives can be introduced which are likely to 
be of greater interest than videos which revolve around Council staff or 
Members.  
 
Infographics are a way of informing through simple pictures.  They are often used 
to show data in an easily understood manner as in paragraph 7.5.  The Council 
has already adopted the use of infographics in its strategy documents and 
through social media and will continue to expand its use.  

 
(3) Website – the Council’s website was redesigned in 2014 with the underlying 

objective of shaping the site around what customers wanted.  This has resulted in 
a website that is primarily focused around customer transactions.  Usage figures 
highlight the ‘channel shift’ that has followed.  The website is also used for 
informing and is particularly useful during periods of emergency such as the 
Pandemic and adverse weather.  The principles on which the recently revised 
website are based remain sound but it is now timely to review the website in light 
of this Strategy and this is reflected in the accompanying Delivery Plan. 

 
(4) Press releases and photo calls – whilst press releases and broader media 

relations will remain an element of the Council’s communication the emphasis will 
move increasingly towards media briefings which are seen to create much more 
of a dialogue.  These are discussed in more detail later.  

 
(5) Social media content - social media tends to be used by younger residents and is 

more current than anything that could be covered in either a weekly resident’s 
newsletter or press releases.  It is particularly useful in getting urgent messages 
out quickly. It also has greater potential reach than other communication 
channels.  The main challenge for the Council with social media has been a lack 
of coordination (some social media accounts have been set up and are rarely 
supported) and a lack of response to the comments that are posted.  The result is 
that ‘myths’ can often become seen as facts.  The proposal here is to; 

 
a. rationalise the current number of accounts.  If Services make a commitment to 

social media then it needs to be effectively managed and resourced; 
 

Page 70



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

b. resource social media work so that responses are provided and the content 
remains up to date; 
 

c. increasingly tailor content to ensure that it is attractive to hard to reach 
groups;  This will increasingly need to involve posting content on non Council 
sites.  There is a need to actively seek out specific ‘user groups’ and interact 
on their platforms. 

 
(6) Campaigns.  There will be a role for devising specific campaigns over the course 

of the year.  These will utilise a number of communication media and will be 
planned through the Consultation Plan. 

 
(7) Branding.  It is proposed that consideration be given as to whether the Council 

needs to rebrand itself given the direction of this Strategy.  The current brand was 
established in 1997 prior to the West Berkshire Council being established.  It is 
seen by many as rather traditional.  This might be viewed as appropriate but it 
would seem timely to consider whether it needs now needs refreshing. 
 

(8) Internal Communication – again the emphasis will move from informing emails to 
an environment where a conversation can take place.  An ‘all user’ email will 
continue to be sent by the Leader and the Chief Executive as they were during 
the Covid-19 Pandemic but on a monthly basis.  Where urgent communication is 
required then email will continue to be used.  The Intranet will continue to be 
supported as an important repository of information for staff.   
 

Consult  
 
10.5 The Council undertakes a range of consultation activity some of which is statutory 

most notably in the areas of health, the environment and equalities.  The Council 
also has a small team which focuses on consultation and a Consultation Portal 
database highlights to the wider community what the Council is currently consulting 
on and how to take part. Extensive consultation was undertaken for the Council’s 
recent Environment Strategy and new techniques were deployed which were seen to 
have worked well.  There is a need to enshrine these more broadly across the 
Council. 

 
10.6 Whilst a role will remain for consultation activity, both at a service and corporate 

level, the intent is to move increasingly towards creating conversations and a deeper 
and richer form of engagement.  The following will be taken forward as part of this 
Strategy to ensure that our consultation activity is properly focused and coordinated: 
 
(1) Consultation Framework. This will which set out the range of consultation 

techniques that can be deployed clarifying which are likely to be most 
appropriate and in which circumstances.  This will include both qualitative and 
quantitative techniques: 
 

(2) Annual Consultation Plan.  All non statutory consultation, and where 
appropriate statutory consultation, will be set out within this Plan which will be 
overseen by the Customer First Programme Board (CFPB).  The expectation 

Page 71



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

is that all consultation will be conducted in accordance with the principles set 
out in Appendix 4; 

 
(3) Consultation Portal will be retained as the means of informing key audiences 

and stakeholders what consultation is underway and how to take part.  It will 
also be used to show the results of previous consultations and how the 
Council has used those results. GovDelivery will be used to highlight the 
existence of Consultation Portal: 

 
(4) Community Panel.  This will be replaced with a new grouping that is 

representative of the local community: 
 
(5) Annual Residents Survey.  It is proposed that an Annual Residents Survey is 

introduced which will be used in part to assess the effectiveness of the 
Council’s Communication and Engagement Strategy.  There will be a sample 
survey drawn from the new grouping mentioned above.   

 
Involve  
 

10.7 Involve and Collaborate are two areas where the Council intends to focus its 
attention since they will drive a move towards creating conversation and dialogue.  
 
(1) Webinars.  This medium had not been used to any great degree prior to the 

Pandemic.  It has however provided useful opportunities to engage key 
partners and stakeholders in discussions about specific topics.  Time is saved 
by holding the engagement virtually and they can also be recorded and made 
available for later viewing which adds further to the convenience.  Those 
taking part have the opportunity to ask questions and raise issues whether 
directly or through some form of chat function.  The proposal would be to have 
an annual programme of webinars drawn largely from the key messages 
highlighted in Chapter 5.  Webinars are also potentially a good way to engage 
the hard to reach groups highlighted earlier.  

 
(2) Social media engagement.  This takes social media beyond simply posting 

content for people to read, to using social media to have a conversation.  It is 
particularly useful to set out the Council’s position or response to a topical 
issue. It provides an immediate response and was used to good effect during 
the Pandemic.  If it is to be managed effectively it will require dedicated 
resource to manage it. It can be managed proactively to engage on a topic of 
the Council’s choosing or reactively by engaging directly with a particular 
audience or stakeholder that has raised an issue with the Council.  It is a 
useful means of demonstrating the Council’s responsiveness.  
 

(3) Media briefings.  Whilst these were used prior to the Pandemic they were 
introduced on a regular basis in the Response phase of responding to Covid-
19.  They provide for a discussion of topics of interest and enable the media to 
also raise queries and seek clarification.  The aim is to retain weekly briefings 
at an allotted time and thereby reduce the need for press releases. 
 

Page 72



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

(4) Awards.  The Council will continue to arrange an Annual Recognition Event as 
a means of celebrating the achievements of its staff.  We will also continue to 
promote the Community Champions awards and will look to extend 
recognition activities with our local communities. 
 

(5) Internal communications – It is proposed to level up the Council’s approach to 
internal communications most notably through greater involvement. ‘Let’s 
Chat’ was introduced by the Council a few years ago as a means of the 
Council Leader and Chief Executive engaging directly with staff.  This became 
virtual and more frequent during the Pandemic and was well received.  It is 
proposed to keep ’Lets Chat’ a virtual meeting open to all staff hosted jointly 
by the Council Leader and Chief Executive.  It will be held quarterly and will be 
recorded and that recording made available on the Intranet.  It will replace the 
staff briefings that have previously been held by the Chief Executive on a face 
to face basis.  In addition Service Directors and Heads of Service will hold a 
monthly virtual meeting open to all of their staff.  This will do some informing 
but will also provide an opportunity for conversation and dialogue.  Once again 
each session will be recorded and will be available on the Intranet.  Executive 
Directors will also be expected to engage directly with all their staff at least 
every quarter.  This will not be through written communication but by some 
means that enables the direct involvement of staff.  Again this will be 
recorded.  

 
 

Fig.5  Engagement Tools to promote community involvement 

 
 
 
 

  

Page 73



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Collaborate  
 

10.8 The Council already collaborates with a range of partners and stakeholders in a 
variety of ways.  The Health and Wellbeing Board acts as the primary partnership 
across West Berkshire and has a range of sub groups that support its activities.  A 
summary of the current sub groups and partnerships is set out in Appendix 5 and 
these highlight the extent of the collaboration that is currently in place. Appendix 5 
includes a more detailed set of proposals regarding engaging and enabling our local 
communities. It’s the product of a recent debate within the Council on how the 
Community Support Hub might be developed going forward. This paper proposes the 
establishment of a Community Alliance. 

10.9 More broadly the paper also sets out some specific proposals which seek to take 
forward the aspirations set out in this Strategy. The key recommendations within that 
paper at Appendix 5 are set out under the Spectrum headings of ‘Collaborate’ and 
‘Empower.’ 

10.10 The Health and Wellbeing Board also has its own Engagement Group that the 
Council supports.  The Board also owns West Berkshire 2036 and the realisation of 
that Vision underpins much of the Board’s work.  

10.11 The Council’s own Strategy reflects the aspirations set out in West Berkshire 2036 
and the Council recognises that much of what it wants to achieve cannot be done 
without the assistance of its partners and local communities. 

10.12 In terms of specific actions the following are being proposed; 

(1) Reviewing our engagement with Parish and Town Councils – a range of 
collaborative activity is currently underway and this will be retained but a further 
piece of work will be done within the consultation framework proposal mentioned 
below to determine how this could be enhanced. The wider role of Parish and 
Town Councils as facilitators and enablers of engagement will also be explored. 
 

(2) Adopting co-production as a guiding principle to ways in which the Council 
collaborates – again this will be reflected in the consultation framework 
mentioned later, but also within the consultation framework mentioned earlier. 

 
Empower  

 
10.13 The Council has adopted a number of approaches in recent years which seek to 

empower local communities to do more for themselves.  The principle is actually 
embodied within the Council Strategy (2019-2023).  Examples of recent initiatives 
aimed at empowering communities include the introduction of Parish Planning and 
the subsequent introduction of Neighbourhood Planning and the ongoing Devolution 
Programme introduced in 2015. 

10.14 It is anticipated that these activities will continue but other initiatives could also be 
pursued.  Opportunities will undoubtedly emerge through the engagement activities 
outlined under emerging Engagement Framework (see below) but the following are 
specific approaches which are being proposed as part of this strategy; 

Page 74



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

(1) Community Infrastructure Levy – this essentially passes developer funding to 
local communities to allow them to decide how it is spent: 
 

(2) Regeneration and Development – the opportunity here is to let local 
communities do their own place shaping taking an active role in the design of 
buildings and public realm.  This has been done in the past but has not been 
adopted as a corporate approach.  There are a number of models that could 
be adopted: 
 

(3) Commissioning a Community and Voluntary Sector Support Organisation. The 
purpose of this will be to provide support to, and build capacity with the local 
VCSE sector. Further details are set out in Appendix 5. It should also be noted 
that this proposal has already been agreed on as part of the Voluntary Sector 
Strategy which was approved by the Executive in April 2020: 

 
(4) Commission a BAME advocacy group. This has in effect already been agreed 

through approval of the 2020/21 Budget in March 2020 but the commissioning 
has been delayed by Covid-19: 

 
(5) Realigning the Building Communities Together Programme with this new 

enhanced approach to community engagement and the newly established 
senior management structure: 

 
(6) The development of a ‘Community Engagement Framework.’ The underlying 

approach will be to foster and encourage engagement not lead it, and the 
framework will reflect this. 

 
10.15 Empowering staff should not be overlooked.  The most obvious example is the staff 

suggestion scheme.  This was recently developed into the Lions Lair initiative which 
unfortunately quickly faded, a reminder that such initiatives need to be managed and 
resourced.  Whilst this initiative did not succeed it would seem essential to find a 
suitable replacement and ensure it can be sustained. 

Serve 
 

10.16 This does not form part of the Engagement Spectrum but the verb has been chosen 
to describe the proposed actions to improve our customer focus.  Given the previous 
analysis the following proposals are being put forward (noting that they will need to 
be aligned with the Delivery Plan from the new Digital Strategy); 

 clear customer standards need to be set and made accessible to customers; 
 

 a training and development programme needs to be put in place so that all staff 
understand what is expected of them; 
 

 consider the expansion of artificial intelligence and the introduction of webchat to 
support certain customer groups; 
 

 to continue to pursue an approach based on ‘digital by default’; 
 

Page 75



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 to develop a culture of providing customer feedback and to design systems that 
automatically enable this; 
 

 to enhance and coordinate our monitoring of customer demand and satisfaction 
so that we can shape services to meet customer needs; 

 

 developing a coproduction approach to the design of Council services so that we 
provide services that match what our customers need. 

  

Page 76



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

11. Delivering our Ambition  

Planning  
 
11.1 The Council has operated with a Communications Plan (which focuses primarily on 

informing activity) for a number of years.  This provides a forward look at what 
communication activity is to be undertaken in the coming months.  It is aligned to the 
Council Strategy (2019-2023) so is suggested that the Customer First Programme 
Board (CFPB) takes responsibility the Plan to increase corporate ownership. Its 
preparation will remain with the central Communications Team.  The Plan will 
continue to be provided to Corporate Board and Operations Board for comment.  

11.2 During the Covid-19 Pandemic a daily communications update was produced largely 
to support GOLD.  This was useful in placing communications at the centre of the 
Council’s activities (to coin a phrase used by the Corporate Peer Challenge Team) 
and ensured timely and effective coordination of communications activity. It is 
proposed to maintain this but to move it to a weekly not daily bulletin.  It is suggested 
that this is produced by the central Communications Team following the proposed 
weekly meeting of the Communications Steering Group (see para. 11.13). 

11.3 The planning and review of internal communications and engagement activity will 
rest with Workforce Board. 

11.4 The planning of consultation activity has already been discussed.  An annual 
Consultation Plan will be overseen by the CFPB and Consultation Portal will be the 
means by which stakeholders can engage and also the means by which feedback is 
provided.   

11.5 The role of the Health and Wellbeing Board needs further discussion and it will need 
to be consulted on the content of this Strategy.  

11.6 It is important to stress that whilst the CFPB will oversee the implementation of this 
Strategy it will be for individual Services, Departments and Governance Boards to 
provide what actually needs to be communicated, or indeed support a particular 
engagement opportunity.  The responsibility for planning, communication, and 
engagement extend across every part of the Council.  

11.7 As mentioned earlier the Council wants to take a partnership based approach to 
communications and engagement.  The focus needs to be on West Berkshire not 
West Berkshire Council and it is proposed to develop this under the aegis of the 
West Berkshire Health and Wellbeing Board.  

Resources  
 

11.8 It is recognised that the proposals set out in this Strategy will require additional 
resources. Management of GovDelivery and the effective management of social 
media will require additional staffing. Some of this resource could be found through 
doing less of other activities but new resources will undoubtedly be needed.  The 
extension of video and a focus on hearing those who have to date been largely 
unheard will also require additional resource although not necessarily deployed in 
the form of additional Council staff.  It is anticipated that much of this will be 

Page 77



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

addressed through the forthcoming structural review of the new Strategy and 
Governance Department and through commissioning support through the community 
and voluntary sector. 

11.9 Consideration also needs to be given to what level of resourcing is needed to 
support the proposed engagement activity. 

11.10 More broadly there is a need to look at how digitisation and artificial intelligence can 
continue to be developed.  This is to some degree being addressed through the 
Council’s new ICT and Digital Strategy but again new resources, whether financial or 
staffing, will be required to support this.   

11.11 At this point in time the following are being proposed with regard to additional staffing 
resources; 

 Communications Team Leader; 
 

 Digital Communications Officer; 
 

 Senior Project Officer to oversee implementation of the engagement proposals 
outlined in this strategy. 

 
In addition to this, additional funding has been put in place (some for the short term 
only) to fund additional commissioning of support and advocacy as outlined in the 
Strategy. 

 
Reshaping  

 
11.12 The Council’s emerging Covid-19 Recovery Plan encompasses a number of themes 

that need to be picked up if the Council is to seize the opportunities created by the 
Covid-19 Pandemic.  This Strategy has in part been written in support of that Plan.   

11.13 This Strategy has highlighted the need to consider how engagement is managed 
across the Council and the expectation is that some existing functions may need to 
be realigned to facilitate this.  It is not the purpose of this Strategy to make specific 
recommendations but four areas of focus would appear to be needed; 

 placing communications and engagement central to the way the Council works.  
This needs to be supported by a management and leadership development 
programme that gives this due priority; 

 

 an expanded central communications function with some consideration being 
given to how this relates to customer strategy;  

 

 developing a stronger ‘hub and spoke model’ for Council communications. 
Departments and Services would need to identify a communications and 
engagement lead and provide them with the time and resources to ‘do the job’. 
These leads would have to be members of the Communications Coordinating 
Group.  This should over time help to create a stronger corporate culture focused 
more keenly on communications and engagement as envisaged by the 
Corporate Peer Challenge Team; 

Page 78



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 

 ensuring that corporate ownership of the Council’s engagement work is assured 
by the new Communities and Wellbeing Department and that the existing 
Building Communities Together Programme is reshaped to support that; 

 

 finding the means to drive more quickly the Council’s digitisation agenda. This is 
being taken through the implementation plan for the Council’s new ICT and 
Digital Strategy.  

 
Governance 

 
11.14 There would appear to be little need to add to the current partnership and Council 

governance arrangements although it is being proposed to create a Communications 
Steering Group that would meet weekly to plan and coordinate the Council’s 
communications activities.  The current arrangements can be summarised as 
follows: 

 Health and Wellbeing Board and Health and Wellbeing Board Engagement 
Group.  The Board is the primary strategic partnership in West Berkshire and has 
the role of providing a framework for the leadership of communication and 
engagement across the District.  The Engagement Group manages the Board’s 
communication and engagement work. Historically the Group has tended to focus 
on heath activity: 

 

 Building Communities Together Partnership.  A strategic sub partnership of the 
Health and Wellbeing Board which has a remit, amongst other things, for the 
strengthening of community resilience and promoting community engagement: 

 

 Community Alliance – a new partnership which is an evolution of the CSH Core 
Group and which will bring partners together along with the newly commissioned 
Community Voluntary Sector Support organisation to help drive the engagement 
agenda forward: 

 

 Customer First Programme Board.  An internal Council Governance group that is 
responsible for setting strategy and direction to guide the Council’s 
communication and engagement activities. It is proposed that the Board now 
takes a lead role in monitoring and evaluation and is specifically responsible for 
preparing the Council’s Consultation and Communication Plans.  It will also be 
responsible for overseeing the implementation of this Strategy: 

 

 Corporate Board / Operations Board.  Officer and Member decision making 
Boards that would need to be given the opportunity to provide input into the 
Consultation and Communication Plan: 
 

 Communications Coordinating Group.  A new operational group that would meet 
weekly to agree and coordinate communications activities for the forthcoming 
week.  This Group would also be responsible for implementing the 
Communications Plan: 

 
  

Page 79



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Monitoring and evaluation  
 

11.15 In the context of communications and engagement, this area of activity is currently 
relatively undeveloped.  

11.16 It is proposed that the Customer First Programme Board is given this remit as it 
applies to externally facing communication and customer engagement activity.  The 
following would be key elements for the Board to review; 

 monitoring implementation of this Strategy, evaluating the impact of the initiatives 
within it and the degree to which stated outcomes have been met; 

 

 collecting data to assess customer demand and satisfaction across the many 
channels that are in place and making recommendations for improvement and 
further development; 

 

 to put in place a dashboard to enable the regular measurement of the 
performance of the Council’s communication activities;  

 

 overseeing the conduct of an annual Residents Survey to assess service 
satisfaction and the reputational position of the Council.  

 
11.17 It is proposed that oversight and the monitoring and evaluation of internal 

communication resides with the Workforce Board given its terms of reference.  

 
  

Page 80



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 Newsletter Audit 2017 
Appendix 2 Social media activity in the six months to April 2020 
Appendix 3 Delivery Plan 
Appendix 4 Consultation Principles 
Appendix 5 Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities  
Appendix 6 Complaints statistics 2017/18 – 2019/20 
 
  

Page 81



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 

Appendix 1 
Newsletter Audit – November 2017 
 

Service Team Newsletter 
Produced 

Name of Newsletter 

Communities Directorate 

ASC Provider Services Yes Phoenix News 

ASC Shared Lives Yes  

Education SEN & Disabled 
Children’s Team 

Yes SEND Newsletter 

Education SEN & Disabled 
Children’s Team 

Yes Autism Newsletter 

Prevention & 
Safeguarding 

Emotional Health 
Academy 

Yes  

Public Health & 
Wellbeing 

Health & wellbeing in 
schools 

Yes Health & wellbeing in 
schools 

Public Health & 
Wellbeing 

Walking for Health Yes Walking for health 

Economy & Environment 

Public Protection 
& Culture 

Licensing Yes Taxi 

Transport & 
Countryside 

Waste Yes  

Development & 
Planning 

Planning Policy, 
Transport Policy, 
Minerals & Waste, 
Economic 
Development 

Yes Business Newsletter 

Resources 

CEO & Support Building Communities 
Together 

Yes  

Human 
Resources 

Strategy & 
Operations 

Yes School’s Newsletter 

Commissioning  Yes Care Quality 

 

Page 82



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Appendix 2 
 
Social media activity in the six months to April 2020 
 
Twitter 
 

 November December January February March April 

No. tweets 74 62 70 50 68 168 

Impressions* 127,268 105,638 107,163 105,999 170,73 327,403 

Engagements** 2,130 3,262 1,739 2,378 5,836 13,703 

Engagement 
rate 

1.3% 2.3% 1.4% 1.7% 2.6% 3.9% 

*The number of times a tweet was seen 
** The number of times a user interacted with a tweet by liking, retweeting, replying, clicking 
on an image etc. 
 
Facebook 
 

 November December January February March April 

No. Posts 37 37 21 16 43 147 

Total 
Impressions* 

76,148 76,282 51,121 78,932 199,135 533,135 

Total Reach** 71,676 73,925 48,976 76,214 136,314 452,805 

Engaged 
users*** 

201 199 150 333 465 908 

* The total number of times a post was seen 
** The number of people who saw a post  
*** The average number of people each day who interacted with our content 
 
Video - views 
 

 November December January February March April 

YouTube 1,134 858 1,203 902 943 1,400 

Facebook 833 4,731 10,609 0 8,200 23,035 

Twitter 1,800 3,600 2,100 754 5,600 11,600 

Total 3,767 9,189 13,912 1,656 14,743 36,035 

 
Video – minutes watched 
 

 November December January February March April 

YouTube 1800 960 1,500 1,320 1,320 5,040 

Facebook Not available 

Twitter 372 2,500 2,200 350 3,800 3,400 

 

Page 83



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Appendix 3 
 
Delivery Plan 
 

Ref 
No. 

Topic Action Timescale Lead Officer Department/
Governance 
Group 

      

      

      

      

      

 
To follow. 
  

Page 84



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Appendix 4 
 
Consultation Principles 
 
 
To follow. 
 
  

Page 85



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Appendix 5 
 

Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

 

1 Introduction 

1.1 Since the emergence of Covid-19, communities across West Berkshire have sprung 
into action. Neighbours are connecting and looking out for each other more than usual, 
informal support groups in local areas have organised to support people in need, and 
over 90 separate groups have been registered with the Community Support Hub 
representing nearly 3,000 volunteers across the District (see Appendix 1). 

1.2 Whilst the Pandemic is far from over, questions have started to emerge about the long 
term future of the Community Support Hub (CSH) and how and where it fits in with 
Recovery and wider opportunities around creating a ‘new normal’ 

1.3 The emergence of the Hub concept through the Covid-19 Pandemic is perhaps a natural 
expansion of the community resilience work that the Council has been seeking to 
promote over the past four years under the stewardship of the Building Communities 
Together (BCT) Team and the BCT Partnership. 

1.4 The emergency created by the Pandemic has catapulted this work into a place that 
might have taken many years under more ‘normal’ conditions. There is clearly a desire 
to capitalize on the community energy and commitment that has been created by Covid-
19. 

1.5 The community response as a result of Covid-19 has also coincided with the work  
already been planned and approved through the Executive to enhance the Council’s 
working relationship with the Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise sector 
(VCSE).  

1.6 The development of the Hub and the associated support also provides an opportunity 
to address the recommendations set out in the 2019 Corporate Peer Challenge and in 
particular the recommendation that the Council should ‘jointly design with residents the 
mechanisms through which to hear their voice more.’  

1.7 From a West Berkshire Council perspective, the work of the CSH should fundamentally 
be seen as the means for driving a richer and more meaningful level of engagement 
and involvement with local communities. It should start a discussion about how the Hub 
partners can co-produce something together that will eventually place a much greater 
level of control in the hands of local residents with communities increasingly shaping 
their own destinies.  

1.8 This paper is not about creating a grand strategy but rather about trying to define a 
shared purpose so that everyone is clear what we are seeking to achieve together with 
some proposals on how we might get there. The aim is to stimulate discussion about 
how we can harness the energy and enthusiasm from the Hub to inform a longer term 

Page 86



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

approach and propose a strategy for engaging our communities and develop a strong 
and vibrant community and voluntary sector. 

2 Background 

2.1 Community life, social connections and having a voice in local decisions are all factors 
that have a vital contribution to make to health and wellbeing. These community 
determinants build control and resilience and can help buffer against disease and 
reduce inequalities - often referred to as social capita1 

2.2 It has been recognised for some time that the relationship between public services and 
the people who use them needs to be transformed to allow people to take greater control 
of their health and wellbeing. Existing ways of delivering services can sometimes 
disempower the people they are there to help, leaving people feeling unable to make 
positive changes in their lives and their communities. 

2.3 A key strength of West Berkshire is its wide and diverse range of communities. We know 
there is already a wealth of community activity taking place across West Berkshire in 
neighbourhoods, villages and through clubs, interest groups and community 
organisations. Some of these activities take place with the support and involvement of 
public sector agencies. Even more thrive through the enthusiasm and commitment of 
their own members and the creativity and drive of local people.   

2.4 There is a strong argument for greater collaboration with the voluntary sector, our 
communities and Town and Parish Councils. They often play a vital role in improving 
our society and likely make a significant contribution to the local economy. They are the 
biggest builders of social capital, and provide crucial support to people and communities, 
often to those that are hardest to reach and experience disparities in outcomes 
(inequalities). 

2.5 Evidence also suggests that VCSE organisations are likely to help public sector 
commissioners achieve value for money by reducing the cost of delivery (involving 
volunteers and mobilising communities to make changes for themselves) and making 
savings to other public services 

2.6 Covid-19 brought the need for specific and urgent community support into sharp focus 
almost overnight. The idea of creating a CSH in West Berkshire emerged from 
discussions between Greenham Trust, West Berkshire Volunteer Centre and the Leader 
of WBC at the start of the Covid-19 lockdown. It was subsequently agreed that a 
community support hub would be established which brought together a number of key 
local interests with the purpose of coordinating a local community response to the 
Pandemic.  

2.7 The term community support hub has always been somewhat ambiguous. It is often 
seen as some form of building or space that is open and accessible to the local 
community; a space that provides services that the local community would either want 
or need. However, the Hub has effectively taken the form of a series of co-ordinated 
activities to support the community and regular virtual meetings where various activities 
are coordinated and information exchanged.  

                                            
1 What Makes Us Healthy (2012) http://www.assetbasedconsulting.co.uk/uploads/publications/WMUH.pdf 

Page 87

http://www.assetbasedconsulting.co.uk/uploads/publications/WMUH.pdf


Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

2.8 The partnership entity that oversaw the development of the CSH was named the Hub 
Core Group (HCG) and has been at the heart of making sure the required community 
response needed during Covid-19 had been put in place.   

2.9 The HCG consists of the original core partners of WBC, Greenham Trust and West 
Berkshire Volunteer Centre and expanded to include health/GP representatives, Public 
Health, Thames Valley Police and Laura Farris MP. A number of organisations including 
food banks, HealthWatch, local charities and Community United CIC (BAMER) have 
provide regular reports and feedback to the Group. 

2.10 The HCG has played a pivotal role in helping to coordinate this activity among Hub 
partners. In particular, through the work of the Greenham Trust, £511k of external 
funding has also been raised of which £228k has now been distributed to local 
communities (as at 17 June 2020).  

2.11 At West Berkshire Council, the Building Communities Together (BCT) Team, working in 
collaboration with colleagues across the Council, set up the CSH in mid-March. Its focus 
has been on supporting vulnerable residents across the District who need advice and / 
or help with shopping, obtaining prescriptions, welfare needs. Most importantly the CSH 
has been instrumental in making connections with local support, including community 
groups.  The CSH has also specifically supported those defined as critically vulnerable 
to Covid-19, also termed the ‘Shielded’.  

2.12 The guiding principles of the Council’s approach to strengthening community resilience 
have been used to help shape the development of the CSH. The focus has been on 
engaging and facilitating communities to help themselves, and not on the Council 
providing direct Council support, unless this has become absolutely necessary.  

2.13 The CSH has therefore primarily been set up to facilitate contact between residents and 
community groups and to help and support community groups to function. Council input 
has been kept to a minimum, leaving the groups to determine their own direction.  The 
CSH has the support of officers from across the Council most notably in terms of 
logistics, food deliveries, emotional and mental health wellbeing and communications.  

2.14 A defining feature of the community response to the Pandemic, and as such the overall 
effectiveness of the CSH, has been the large number of community groups that have 
emerged many of whom evolved over the weekend of 14th and 15th March when the 
lockdown was first put in place. The CSH has worked to foster positive relationships 
with all of them and has been considered successful in doing so.  

2.15 As the Pandemic begins to stabilize these newly formed community groups will start 
think about what comes next.  Some may fade but it is already clear that many do wish 
to build on the positive aspects of the Pandemic and the strong sense of community 
spirit that has emerged in many areas. A recent survey to community groups found that 
76% of groups plan to continue, although many reported that the total number of active 
volunteers has been decreasing as people are going back to work (see Appendix 6) 

3 Wider context and interdependencies 

3.1 The CSH was established on the back of a renewed emphasis by the Council to 
strengthen community resilience and build on the work of existing good practice across 

Page 88



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

the district. In developing our approach going forward it is therefore necessary to 
consider the existing and planned work programmes that have a common purpose to 
build social capital. 

Building Communities Together Team 

3.2 The BCT Team is a multi-agency team with officers from West Berkshire Council (WBC) 
and Thames Valley Police (TVP) at its core with officers from Sovereign, Royal 
Berkshire Fire and Rescue Service, National Probation Service and Community 
Rehabilitation Company closely aligned. Officers from other WBC services also work 
closely with the BCT Team including Public Health and Wellbeing, Adult Social Care, 
Youth Offending Team and Safeguarding Adults. 

3.3 The West Berkshire Council officers in the BCT Team have responsibilities for 
Community Planning, Community Safety and Devolution. They also have responsibility 
for developing new approaches to community engagement to build community 
resilience. 

3.4 The Thames Valley Police officers in the BCT Team are problem solving officers who 
work with Neighbourhood Police Teams and they have responsibility for focusing on the 
most challenging priority issues in West Berkshire. 

3.5 Together the BCT Team are working to support communities to identify issues of 
concern and to help them develop ideas on how to resolve local problems through 
‘Community Conversations’.  

3.6 The BCT Team, in partnership with communities, is working to harnesses the power of 
the collective to get things done, taking a proactive approach, favouring restorative 
practice and early intervention rather than waiting until something has broken down (be 
it a relationship or a service). 

Engagement and Communications Strategy 

3.7 The Council published its new Council Strategy (2019-2023) in May 2019. In November 
2019 the recommendations from our second Corporate Peer Challenge highlighted the 
need for the Council to place communications at the centre of all it does, and at the 
same time, establish better ways of engaging our local communities, by working with 
them to shape new approaches.  

3.8 This Paper is now set within this new Communications and Engagement Strategy and 
aims to work directly with communities to create meaningful dialogue and a greater 
sense of collaboration and empowerment.  

Commissioning of a Local Infrastructure Organisation (LIO) 

3.9 In April this year the Executive approved a report that set out a way forward for 
developing and improving the Council’s working relationship with the Voluntary, 
Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) sector. This agreed to the development of a 
strategy for future working with the sector and to commission a Community and 
Voluntary Sector support organisation (VCSSO).   

Page 89



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

3.10 The Paper outlined the following recommendations that had been informed from 
discussions at a Council Strategy Board held in early 2020: 

1. Establish a project to develop a strategic approach to working with the VCSE 
sector that reflects a number of key points identified by Members in the 
Strategy Board. 

 
2. Project to be governed by the Corporate Programme with agreed actions 

contained within a cross service project, with identified resources and agreed 
time frames.   

 
3. Undertake a high level mapping exercise of VCSE provision to inform the 

development of the emerging strategy - what is being provided, to who and 
where, levels of income/spend, capacity and support for the Council Strategy 
– scope and resources to be identified/agreed as part of the overall project. 

 
4. Commission a VCSSO in a process that will require careful consideration of 

the context of current arrangements which are outside of Council funding. 
Source of revenue budget to be identified/agreed. 

 
5. Ownership will sit within the Resources Directorate for the period of 

development, supported in the project by the other Directorates, VCSE sector 
representatives and overseen by the Leader. 

3.11 It is anticipated that the VCSSO will support the creation of a framework that would 
enable the voluntary and community sector to support the objectives of the Council 
Strategy as well as the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  

Community Wellbeing Model 

3.12 The Integrated Community Wellbeing Model was developed in 2019 to facilitate a more 
proactive, holistic and preventative model of care. It supports individuals to take greater 
control of their own health and wellbeing through increasing their skills, knowledge and 
confidence to self-manage. In this way the model builds stronger, more resilient 
individuals and communities whilst also reducing health inequalities. 

3.13 The model supports 6 key principles that are integral to social prescribing: 

 Individuals are supported based on their knowledge, skills and confidence 
(activation) to self-care: 
 

 A personalised and strength based approach focusing on what matters to the 
individual: 
 

 Builds on existing assets, networks and trusted relationships through community 
conversations: 
 

 Tackles health inequalities through addressing the wider determinants of health: 
 

 Supports professionals and individuals to be able to work in equal partnership 
supported by a workforce development strategy: 

Page 90



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 

 Facilitates & encourages a strong and vibrant community sector 

3.14 The Community Wellbeing Model was commissioned via the Voluntary Sector 
Prospectus (see section 3.23) and includes the following components: 

(a) Social Prescribers (Provided by Primary Care Networks)  

One to one support based in primary care for those who need time and support 
to focus on what matters to them as identified through shared decision making 
and personalised care and support planning. Connecting people to community 
groups and agencies for practical and emotional support.  

(b) Community Navigators (Provided by Eight Bells for Community Strength) 

Using a strength based approach to support people to self-care, live 
independently and have a good quality of life. Actively encouraging people to 
utilize the West Berkshire Directory and ensure active signposting to local 
community groups and activities.  

(c) Community Builders (Provided by Eight Bells for Community Strength) 

Embedded in and working with the community. Identifying gaps or issues in local 
provision and helping to build social and community networks and encouraging 
new community initiatives. 

(d) Befriending (Provided by Age UK Berkshire) 

One to one social connection and friendship for those who are or are at risk of 
becoming socially isolated, are at a transition point or life change, or who are 
experiencing physical or mental ill health. 

(e) Buddying (Provided by Age UK Berkshire) 

One to one support to access local amenities and/or participate in recreational 
activities, to help people who might otherwise not feel confident or comfortable to 
engage with an activity or service 

(f) West Berkshire Directory (WBC) 

Web-based search facility which enables residents to search for support from 
VCSE and community groups in their areas, including family and children’s 
services such as the local offer.  Discussions are underway as part of the 
Customer First Programme Board’s work to improve this facility to provide a 
more tailored capability.  It could also be used as a contact list for engagement 
with those groups registered. 

Voluntary Sector Prospectus (VSP) 

3.15 A new VSP was launched in Spring 2020 that sought to build on the achievements and 
learning of the 2015 – 2018 prospectus, promoting enterprise, innovation and social 
value in service delivery with outcomes aligned to the West Berkshire Vision 2036 and 
the Council Strategy Building on our Strengths, all of which promote the independence 
and wellbeing of the people and sustainability of the District.   

Page 91



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

3.16 The VSP commits to investing £439,385 per annum into the voluntary sector to deliver 
services that align and support the West Berkshire Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy’s cross cutting themes of prevention, integration and building community 
resilience. Aims and objectives include supporting mental health and wellbeing, building 
a thriving and sustainable environment in which communities can flourish, enabling  
people to self-care and help for older people to maintain a healthy, independent life for 
as long as possible.  

4 What do we want to achieve going forward? 

4.1 In understanding what the operating model or relationship with our communities should 
look like, we need to understand what we are looking to achieve and where we want to 
get to. Set out below are some initial thoughts on what the aim, guiding principles and 
objectives might be. These are draft and it is anticipated that these are refined further 
with our community partners. 

(a) Aim  

To work together to build more resilient communities across West Berkshire with 
the purpose of reducing inequalities and improving quality of life.   

(b) Guiding Principles   

 A shared and collaborative approach: Looking for shared priorities and co-
producing shared solutions so that plans take account what is important to 
and what works in each community. 
 

 To be inclusive - recognizing that many communities of interest and place 
exist in West Berkshire. Ensuring that the voice of under-represented groups 
is heard within communities and that communities include all views and 
backgrounds. Inequality remains a major challenge in West Berkshire and it 
will have exacerbated even further by Covid-19. 
 

 An asset based approach: recognising and building on the strengths that exist 
within each local community. 
 

 To be driven by local community needs and wishes – it is largely about 
communities delivering what they want and need. 
 

 A local approach: that allows people to take control of the process, helps them 
to decide which outcomes matter most and finds solutions that suit the local 
circumstances. This means that solutions will look different in different 
communities. 
 

 To be clear who does what – accountabilities and responsibilities should be 
mapped out. No one can do everything.  
 

 To build on what has gone before - including opportunities created through 
the Covid-19 Pandemic. There are already a lot of good things happening. We 
need to accelerate that work and ensure that it is for the benefit of all.  

Page 92



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

(c) Our objectives  

 To support local communities to help relieve hardship in whatever form that 
may take with a particular focus on supporting the vulnerable and the most 
deprived:  
 

 To promote and sustain high levels of volunteering across the District: 
 

 To use innovative methods and approaches to improve community 
engagement and involvement both with community groups and with 
individuals: 
 

 Engaging with local communities to understand their needs and aspirations 
and providing a framework to enable partners to engage with communities: 

 Collaborating with the Council and partners to help find solutions to these 
needs and aspirations: 
 

 Providing the support needed to make communities more resilient: 
 

 Commissioning specialist support to help develop engagement and resilience, 
if needed: 
 

 Supporting communities to support the vulnerable: 
 

 Signposting individuals to support networks within their community and where 
required to support from the Council and its partners: 
 

  Reducing demand on public services. 

5 Proposals  

5.1 In looking to understand how we can best achieve the above aims and objectives, a 
number of recommendations have been proposed to build on the work of the CSH with 
current and planned activity as part of the Council Strategy 2019-2023. 

5.2 As previously outlined in this paper, this is merely a starting point for discussion with an 
expectation that any future solution will need to be further refined and tested with 
community partners to reflect a shared vision and operating model. 

5.3 At the core of the proposal is the desire to build on the two Hub entities that were created 
during the COVID-19 Pandemic, namely the HCG as a partnership grouping, and the 
CSH as a supportive resource to individuals and communities when they needed it. The 
recommendations are outlined below: 

5.4 Appendices 2 and 3 provides a summary of how these recommendations will help 
deliver the objectives outlined in section 4.0.  

 
  

Page 93



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Recommendation 1 – Standing down the Community Support Hub 

5.5 Whilst the CSH serviced a critical function during ‘Lockdown’, the number of enquiries 
being made to the Hub have reduced significantly during July and August.  This has 
continued into the Autumn of 2020. There will be a Stocktake undertaken during 
September utilising Hub contact data, local Infection rate data, information on local 
outbreaks, government guidance and other relevant information to assess the potential 
operational requirement of the Hub both now and potentially over the next few months.  

5.6 Requests for support from individuals affected by COVID-19 may increase as a result 
of the implementation of West Berkshire’s Local Outbreak Control plan.  

 
Recommendation 2 – Establish a new overarching strategic partnership  

5.7 Whilst the initial HCG provided leadership throughout the pandemic and a ‘voice’ for the 
voluntary and community sector, the membership was not representative of the wider 
community. There was also no clear governance or formal constitution.  

5.8 It is proposed that the HCG is replaced by a new overarching strategic partnership - the 
West Berkshire Community Alliance (WBCA) that brings together community leads as 
equal partners to build on the legacy of the HCG. This would bring together a unique 
collaboration that is responsible for promoting and supporting community capacity 
building across West Berkshire. 

5.9 The partnership would help to redefine the problems of health inequalities, tackle unmet 
need, foster shared values and collective use of resources to deliver more preventive 
approaches and the refocusing of priorities onto early intervention and outcomes for 
citizens. 

5.10 Membership of the WBCA will need to be consulted on, but will consist of key 
‘community champions’ as well as statutory partners. Membership will also be extended 
to a new VCSSO whose remit would be to help build capacity and capability within the 
VCSE sector. Other members would need to be included such as a parish and town 
council representatives and other key community leaders. 

5.11 To support the strategic partnership a Community Stakeholder Forum (CSF) or series 
of forums could be created that would provide a means for two-way engagement and 
dialogue between the voluntary sector, statutory partners and the strategic 
partnership.  It would also be an effective mechanism for members to raise key issues 
that impact on their sector and those they represent. The CSF would be a key 
responsibility of the new VCSSO who would co-ordinate and facilitate the forum. 

5.12 The WBCA will underpin the delivery of all the objectives outlined in section 4.0 through 
co-ordination and oversight, but will have a particular role in collaborating to help find 
solutions to the needs and aspirations of our communities. 

 
Recommendation 3 – Commissioning a Community and Voluntary Sector Support 
Organisation (VCSSO) 
  

Page 94



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

5.13 The Council have already agreed the creation of a new VCSSO that provides an 
independent voice to inform, strengthen and develop the voluntary and community 
sector across West Berkshire. A VCSSO would act as a conduit for information across 
VCSE organisations and public sector agencies. It will collect and represents the views 
of the VCSE to create a more proactive sector capable of influencing policy and decision 
making.  

5.14 The role and function of the VCSSO will need to be informed by wider stakeholders, but 
it is envisaged that it will play a critical role in supporting local community and voluntary 
groups. Functions will likely include: 

 Represent and advise the Council acting as an ‘expert’ intermediary where needed: 
 

 To ensure effective and accountable representation of voluntary and community 
sector views and interests across the whole district: 
 

 Provide support such as admin, finance, skills development and training: 
 

 Identify and broker opportunities for VCSE groups to work together: 
  

 Attract funding: 
 

 Provide effective governance: 
 

 Network with relevant statutory bodies and other potential collaborators: 
 

 Know what’s going on and disseminate knowledge at a local level: 
 

 Lead and provide administrative support to the Community Stakeholder Forum: 
 

 Work closely with the Communities and Wellbeing Department around community 
engagement: 
 

 Link VCSE organisations to working groups (e.g. sub groups of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, ICP) to develop innovative approaches to improve and evidence 
outcomes: 
 

 To encourage networking, enabling the voluntary/community sector to share 
knowledge, information and skills, and to promote liaison between the voluntary, 
public and private sectors: 
 

 To enhance the capacity of the voluntary and community sector by providing and 
promoting technical and practical support services. 

5.15 A key principle of the approach outlined in this paper is the emphasis on communities 
themselves identifying opportunities and activities that would support the aims and 
objectives outlined in this paper. The VCSSO would play a central role working 
alongside VCSE groups to find the resources and support required to sustain these 
activities 

Page 95



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

5.16 The VCSSO will help deliver a number of objectives outlined in section 4.0. In particular, 
it will enable the voluntary/community sector to identify, and appropriately meet, unmet 
needs and gaps in service provision with particular focus on support the most vulnerable 
(objective 4, 5 and 8). 

 
Recommendation 4 – Commission a BAME advocacy group  

5.17 Over the last 18 months there has been a growing recognition of a need for the Council 
to better engage with the Black and Minority Ethnic (BAME) population in West 
Berkshire.  

5.18 It is recommended that an advocacy group is commissioned to provide a voice for ethnic 
minorities so that the Council and partners can best meet their needs. It will also work 
alongside the Council to improve access to services as well as improve the knowledge 
and understanding of the wider community, agencies and public services of the needs 
of the BAME population. 

5.19 The current Pandemic has shone a light on the disparity of outcomes experienced by 
ethnic minorities. A recent PHE report2 identified a number of recommendations where 
commitment, focus, and delivery at scale could make a significant difference in 
improving the lives and experiences of BAME communities. It is recommended that this 
forms the building blocks for the focus of this work. 

5.20 Commissioning an advocacy group for the BAME Community will help deliver several 
of the objectives outline in Section 4.0. In particular, it will provide a mechanism to 
engage with hard to reach groups, identify unmet need (objective 4) and work alongside 
the Council and partners to help find solutions (objective 5). 

Recommendation 5 – Realigning the Building Communities Together Programme  

5.21 If we are to pursue a new relationship with our communities, the Council and other public 
sector partners need to create the conditions within which individuals and communities 
take control over their lives and health.3  

5.22 The responsibility of the Council will not diminish and it will continue to have an important 
role to play, in supporting communities. These include planning and providing the 
Districts infrastructure, helping prevent and respond to emergencies, giving access to 
information and advice, protecting vulnerable people and providing social care. Some 
of these require the specialist professional skills and support that the Council can bring 
via the new Communities and Wellbeing Department. 

5.23 Some of what is planned for community engagement and the current CSH has 
historically sat within the Building Communities Together Team.  There will be a need 
to align these responsibilities within the Council’s new Communities and Wellbeing 
Department that will be in place from November 2020. It is assumed that development 
work with Parish and Town Councils and the devolution of assets will continue to be 
supported through this new Department alongside the need to enhance liaison with the 
voluntary sector. 

                                            
2 Beyond the data: Understanding the impact of COVID-19 on BAME groups 
3 Marmot M. et al(2009) Fair Society Healthy Lives  

Page 96



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

5.24 Due to limited resource and capacity within the BCT Team, they have primarily focused 
on delivering the statutory duties of a Community Safety Partnership i.e. reducing crime 
and disorder and there has always been the intention to broaden its scope to focus more 
on community capacity building.  

5.25 The new Department will lead the active engagement with individuals and communities 
to mobilise local action in both defining local issues and developing local solutions. The 
aim would be empowerment of citizens in a more asset based approach, focused on 
co-production of health and wellbeing as equal partners with communities. This 
approach would promote change in existing political and professional structures, extend 
democratic participation and maximise capacity and social capital. 

5.26 If the new Department is to bring with it new approaches to community engagement (as 
above) then resources will need to be found to help support this. The BCT Team 
currently has a vacant post that previously led on engagement with local communities 
and it is envisaged that this role would need to continue. In the interim, this resource 
(supported by additional short-term funding) will be used to appoint an interim project 
manager to oversee the implementation of the recommendations outlined in this paper. 

5.27 The new Department will help deliver a number of the objectives set out in Section 4.0, 
but importantly will have key role in co-ordinating the council’s engagement activities 
(objective 3) with a particular focus on commissioning specialist support to help 
development engagement and resilience (objective 9).  

Recommendation 6 – Maintain signposting and connecting to community support 
function 

5.28 A successful function of the CSH was signposting and connecting people to local 
community support. Whilst the number of calls to the CSH have reduced since the peak 
of the Pandemic, there remains a need to ensure that people can access support and 
advice to meet their needs.  

5.29 People access information and advice through a range of different mechanisms and 
therefore the future operating model will need to utilise multiple routes for people to 
access information.  

5.30 Ideally we would like to move to a position whereby our communities and public would 
either self-serve using technology or their needs be addressed by engaging with their 
local communities through mutual aid and community support. However, it recognised 
that for some people (particularly the most vulnerable) a point of contact is needed to 
help signpost to ongoing support. 

5.31 The list below identifies some potential opportunities for the signposting and connecting 
role which has been fulfilled by the hub to be incorporated into other functions across 
the district. 

(a) West Berkshire Council Contact Centre   

The Contact Centre operated by West Berkshire Council is likely to be the most 
suitable mechanism to field general enquires from the public and link them to the 
most appropriate organisations 

Page 97



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

(b) Family Hubs 

West Berkshire’s Family Hubs provide a range of family support services at 
community delivery points across West Berkshire. These services include early 
yeas education and childcare, health services, training and employment services 
and help to access social services and other information and advice services. 

(c) West Berkshire Directory  

As mentioned earlier in the Paper, discussions are underway as part of the 
Customer First Programme to access to online information as this is often the 
primary way of making information available and accessible to the wider public, 
including families and people who have care and support needs, their carers, 
family and friends. Mapping our local community assets has been discussed for 
some time and developing a website that provides advice and support to 
communities about how to set-up local groups would be invaluable. 

(d) Vulnerable and Hard-to-reach Groups 

The work of Community United CIC and other advocacy groups will provide an 
increased opportunity for connection and support with West Berkshire’s BAMER 
community and other marginalised, vulnerable adults, young adults and children. 

(e) Social Prescribers   
Social prescribing has an important role in strengthening community resilience 
and personal resilience and with social prescribing link workers now located in 
each Primary Care Network. Whilst still new to West Berkshire, NHS England’s’ 
ambition is for social prescribers to empower people to take control of their 
health and wellbeing through referral to non-medical ‘link workers’ and 
connecting people to community groups and statutory services for practical and 
emotional support. Link workers support existing groups to be accessible and 
sustainable and help people to start new community groups, working 
collaboratively with all local partners. The number of social prescribing link 
workers is expected to increase over the next few years. 

5.32 There are many more VCSE organisations and statutory organisations that have a role 
in signposting and connecting people to local community activities and support that are 
not listed here e.g. Community Strengths. Going forward it would be useful to undertake 
a more comprehensive mapping exercise to understand these further. 

5.33 Connecting individuals and community to local activities and the provision of high quality 
information to self-care will deliver objective 9 outlined in section 4.0. 

 
Recommendation 7 - Development of ‘Community Engagement Framework’ 

5.34 It is proposed that a new Community Engagement Framework is developed that builds 
on how we currently involve and engage with our communities and outlines what the 
Council will do to improve the way we consult and involve local people in decision 
making. 

5.35 This will outline how we work together with communities to develop Council plans and 
where appropriate, jointly delivered services. It will also look to embed co-production 
and engagement across the commissioning landscape and Council departments.  

Page 98



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

5.36 It will also identify and involve community assets (things like physical spaces and the 
skills, knowledge, ability, resources, experience or enthusiasm of groups and 
individuals) to decide local priorities and design local services. It could also include a 
new volunteer charter that outlines the Council’s relationship with volunteers and the 
role of the Council in supporting their skills through existing learning programmes such 
as Psychological First Aid (mental health), Dementia Friends and Make Every Contact 
Count (MECC) and Family Support Hubs / Local Offer.  This not only serves to enhance 
the skill base of our volunteer groups, but also demonstrates the value we place on their 
continued commitment.  

5.37 The framework will be developed by the new Community and Wellbeing Department 
and support the delivery of objectives 3 and 4 outlined in Section 4.0. 

 
Recommendation 8 – Distribution of a new grant fund (previously CSF fund) 
 
5.40 To support the ambitions of this paper we will look to utilise the existing Community 

Solutions Fund to provide a new one-off grant fund to address unmet need, tackle 
inequalities and social mobility across out population and deliver the objectives set-out 
within the Council Strategy.  

 
5.41 The fund will also look to encourage innovation and collaboration across the voluntary 

and community sector to deliver outcomes for public sector commissioners. The fund 
would be overseen by the Prevention and Communities Department and supported by 
the LIO who would be an independent body that would be able to provide impartial 
advice to the sector. 

 
5.42 The non-recurrent grant fund will help deliver a number of objectives outlined in section 

4.0, but particularly objectives 1 and 7.  

6 Governance  

6.1 This paper recommends that a new strategic collaborative partnership (West Berkshire 
Community Alliance (WBCA) will need to be in place to provide oversight of the 
community and voluntary sector work across West Berkshire. This would not be 
dissimilar to the HCG which existed during the Covid-19 Pandemic however its 
membership and reach would need to be broader and more representative.  This would 
be underpinned by a new Community Stakeholder Forum, made up of a wider network 
of voluntary and community groups. 

6.2 The WBCA would sit under the Health and Wellbeing Board and provide an ‘enabling’ 
function that would support the work of the board and its associated sub groups (see 
Appendix 4). It would also need to work closely with the Health and Wellbeing 
Engagement Sub Group. 

6.3 It is well documented that community life is essential for health and wellbeing, and the 
evidence of social connections, neighbourliness, sense of belonging, control, and 
mutual trust is fundamental good population health and reducing inequalities. Therefore 
the proposal to bring forward the 2019 Senior Management Review that would see 
Public Health and Wellbeing, the BCT and the Council’s Cultural and Leisure Services 
being brought together into a new Department will provide more coordinated support 
and strategic direction for this work 

Page 99



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

6.4 An additional consideration in the formation of this new service is whether the matrix 
management arrangements for the BCT should be reviewed as part of this process. 

7 Timescales  

7.1 The table below outlines the draft timescales for delivering the above recommendations. 
It recognises the need to deliver these at pace, but also the requirement to involve our 
communities in supporting the development of this work. 

Date    Milestone 

September 2020 Paper to Budget Board on funding requirements 

September 2020 External facing paper to Core Hub Group  

September 2020 Project Manager appointed to oversee implementation of 
recommendations 

October 2020 Recommendations agreed at Council Executive 

November 2020 Procurement Strategy produced for commissioning VCSSO 

Sept-Nov 2020 
(See appendix 9) 

Engagement and consultation with partners on proposals 
(including co-design of VCSSO ‘service specification’).   

October 2020 –
Apr 2021 

Transition of Core Hub Group to new West Berkshire Community 
Alliance 

Oct/Nov 2020 New Communities and Wellbeing Department Established  

January 2021 Advert for VCSSO and BAME Advocacy Service published  

June 2021  VCSSO and BAME Advocacy Services contract start date 

June 2021 Engagement Framework Published 

 

  

Page 100



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Finance 

6.4   The recommendations contained within this report will need to be accompanied by 
existing and new resource as outlined below:  
 

Commissioning of Voluntary and Community 
Support Sector Organisation (VCSSO) 
(opportunities for match funding) 

£100,000 per annum 
(new resource) 
 

Appointment of 12-month senior project manager 
post  
To oversee implementation of the recommendations 
contained within the report, including facilitation with 
the VCSE 

£65,000  
(Transformation Funding – 
new resource) 
 

Establish a new VCSE Community Grant Fund 
(opportunities for match funding from Greenham 
Common Trust - TBC) 

£100,000  
(Existing resources – from 
Community Solutions Fund 
following cessation at end 
of financial year 2019/2020 

Commission BAME Advocacy Group £25,000 
(Resources already 
identified) 

New funding required from Council £100,000 recurrent (LIO) 
£65,000 one-off (PM) 

8 Conclusion and Next Steps 

8.1 Being part of an active, supportive community makes a significant difference to people’s 
quality of life and helps people to be more resilient when faced with an emergency or 
hardship. In short, without communities playing that vital role in providing day-to-day 
support, the Council would be completely overwhelmed. 

8.2 The CSH that emerged during the Covid-19 Pandemic has been seen as a very positive 
development. However, the CSH was formed specifically to respond to the Pandemic 
and it is envisaged that many of the functions of the CSH can be absorbed within current 
and future plans that strive to develop stronger and more resilient communities. This 
Paper therefore proposes that the staffing for CSH will now stand subject to what 
support is required to manage the second Covid-19 wave. 

8.3 An enduring memory of the Pandemic will be that some individuals were far more 
affected than others. Their voice will need to be heard in the future, something that in 
previous work has always been a challenge. In the ‘New Normal’ the vision is that this 
work needs to be dominated by communities themselves rather than the agencies and 
organizations that have traditionally been there to support them. 

8.4 It is acknowledged that high-quality coproduction of health takes time. Meaningful 
relationships between communities and statutory partners should be nurtured to ensure 
sustainable and inclusive participation. 

Page 101



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

8.5 Engagement with internal WBC services and external partners has already begun – as 
shown by the following examples of meetings that have taken place or are planned 
between services/groups and the BCT/Hub and/or Public Health team: 

 Food provision to vulnerable families by schools (June): 
 

 Extending the Libraries At Home Service (25 June): 
 

 Links with the Homelessness Hub (25 June): 
 

 The summer offer by Education (2 July): 
 

 Food provider partners (17 June and 22 July): 
 

 Communities United (BAMER) (28 July and 11 August): 
 

 How local community groups can communicate in event of local outbreak (follow-
up to the DCP) – planned for 18/21 August: 
 

 Joint working between Hub and Primary Care – planned for 10 Sept: 
 

 Health & Well-being Conference – planned for 11 September: 

8.6 Consideration should be given to how these proposals will be presented to health 
partners and vulnerable groups including BAMER, young people, those in more 
deprived areas who are economically disadvantaged.  

8.7 In the meantime, a more structured series of discussions with internal services should 
be implemented, led by the BCT Team Manager and Hub Secondees, with assistance 
from Public Health and nominated service leads (potentially the Comms team service 
leads). A draft consultation plan can be found in Appendix 9. 

  

Page 102



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Appendix 1   
Coverage by volunteer numbers (29 April 2020) 

  
Coverage by number of groups (29 April 2020) 

Page 103



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Appendix 2 – Devolution of the Community Support Hub  

  

P
age 104



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Appendix 3 – Integrated Engagement Model  
 

 
 
 

P
age 105



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 
Appendix 4 – Proposed governance of for the Community Alliance 

  

Health and 
Wellbeing Board 

Locality 
Integration Board 

Substance 
Misuse 

Partnership 

Building 
Communities 

Together* 
**Partnership 

Ageing Well 
Children’s 

Delivery Group 

Skills and 
Enterprise 

Partnership 

Housing Strategy 
Group 

Suicide Action 
Group 

HWB 
Engagement 

Group 

Community 
Alliance 

Stakeholder 
Forum 

HWB Steering 
Group 

Local 
infrastructure 
organisation 

Mental Health 
Action Group  

*BCT Partnership to review terms of reference 

P
age 106



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 
Appendix 5 – Integrated Community Wellbeing Model 
 
  

P
age 107



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Appendix 6 – Mapping paper objectives against recommendations 
 

Objective 1 

Support local 
communities to 
help relieve 
hardship with a 
particular focus 
on supporting 
the vulnerable.  
 

 
Objective 2 
 
Promote and 
sustain high 
levels of 
volunteering. 

Objective 3 

To improve 
community 
engagement and 
involvement with 
community 
groups and 
individuals 

Objective 4 

Engaging with 
communities to 
understand their 
needs and 
providing a 
framework to 
enable partners 
to engage with 
communities; 

Objective 5 

Collaborating 
with the Council 
and partners to 
help find 
solutions to these 
needs and 
aspirations; 
 

Objective 6 

Providing the 
support needed 
to make 
communities 
more resilient; 
 

Objective 7 

Commissioning 
specialist 
support to help 
development 
engagement 
and resilience, if 
needed; 

 

Objective 8 

Supporting 
communities to 
support the 
vulnerable; 

 

Objective 9 

Signposting 
individuals to 
support 
networks within 
their community 
and where 
required to 
support from 
the Council and 
its partners; 

Objective 10 

Reducing 
demand on 
public services  

 

Recommendation 2  
Establish a new 
overarching strategic 
partnership 

          

Recommendation 3 
Commissioning on local 
infrastructure organisation 

          

Recommendation 4  
Commission an advocacy 
group for the BAME 
population 
 

          

Recommendation 5  
Realigning the Building 
Communities Together 
Programme 
 

   
 

       

Recommendation 6   
Maintain signposting and 
connecting to community 
support 

          

Recommendation 7  
Development of 
‘Community Engagement 
Framework’ 
 

          

Recommendation 8  
Distribution of a new grant 
fund (previously CSF fund) 

          

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 108



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Appendix 7 – Key findings from Hub Survey 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

86%  

of groups were primarily set up to respond to Covid 
19; groups started small but expanded quickly 

60%  

reported total number of active volunteers has been 
decreasing as people are going back to work 

74% 

said number of residents supported have been decreasing as they 
become more self-reliant, while the other quarter said elderly and 

vulnerable still need support 

Volunteer groups have provided a wide variety 
of support, most notably shopping, 

prescription provision, befriending, delivering 
food parcels, directing people to resources 

Collaboration, communications tools, 
and services provided by volunteers 

have been key to the groups’ successes 

The Co-ordinators’ learnings were to 
get processes in place sooner 

76% 

plan to continue their group, of which 76% don’t require further support 
from the Council to do so 

97%  

felt supported by Council 
 

 (68% yes, 29% partly) 

94%  

felt Hub Bulletin was useful 
 

 (9% extremely, 38% very, 47% 
somewhat)  [6% not so] 

Co-ordinators largely said they felt 
supported by the Hub and they felt 

the Bulletin was informative 

100%  

wish to continue receiving the 
Hub Bulletin 

P
age 109



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Appendix 8 - Creating a Common Language 
 
Definitions  
 

When we Say We mean 

Asset Based Community 
Development  

Community Development (see definition below) that starts 
from the point of view of identifying the strengths and assets 
within a community  

Co-production  
Working together with communities as equal partners to 
identify priorities and develop solutions  

Community Assets  
Skills, knowledge, abilities, capabilities and resources that 
exist within a community and can be used for the common 
good of that community  

Community Capacity 
Building  

Activities, resources and support that strengthen the skills, 
abilities and confidence of people and community groups to 
take effective action and leading roles in the development of 
communities.  

Community Development  
A process where community members come together to take 
collective action and generate solutions to common problems  

Community Engagement  
Activities the Council (or another agency) undertakes to 
involve communities and community groups in shaping it’s 
thinking in order to influence the direction it takes  

Community Resilience  

Community resilience is the sustained ability 
of communities to withstand, adapt to, and recover from 
adversity 
 

Community Wellbeing 
 
 

Community wellbeing is the combination of social, 
economic, environmental, cultural, and political conditions 
identified by individuals and their communities as essential 
for them to flourish and fulfil their potential 

Communities  
A group of people with a common interest or identity or who 
share a common place.  

Social Capital  
 
 

The collective values, confidence and capability that exists 
within a community or group with a common interest or 
purpose. It can be described as the “glue” that holds 
individuals together in a community  

Commissioning  
 

Commissioning within public services simply means 
understanding what is needed and deciding on the best ways 
of meeting those needs, that make a positive difference to 
people's lives through the use of all available resources.  
 

Social Value  
 

A concept which seeks to maximise the additional benefit that 
can be created by procuring or commissioning goods and 
services, above and beyond the benefit of merely the goods 
and services themselves.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 110



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Appendix 9 – Consultation Plan.  
 

A two-stage co-production process is proposed for external partners, based around 
‘concept’ and ‘action’.   Remembering the speed by which the Community Support Hub was 
set up and refined, each stage is envisaged to take no longer than two/three months from 
start to finish. 

The ‘concept’ phase (August to October) should encourage creative thinking but use 
facilitation techniques that result in the creation of a co-produced set of aims, guiding 
principles and objectives.  For example, seven or eight themed focus groups (in person or 
via zoom) with communities of interest and hard to reach groups (BAMER, young people) 
as well as place-based community group leaders.    

As a first step, the Council will engage with the Core Hub Group (which includes Greenham 
Trust, WB Volunteer Centre, Berkshire West CCG and TV Police) and the BCT Partnership. 
This will take place in parallel with the setting up of the new WBC Communities and Well-
being Service.   

The initial ‘action’ phase (November to January) should be based around encouraging local 
communities to embrace the idea of community resilience, coming up with their own ideas 
for ensuring that there is a positive legacy from local Covid-19 community-based activity.   

The emphasis would be on action planning and supporting community champions to 
promote this, the focus on getting things done rather than ‘talking shop’.  This should 
include leaders from the most active Covid-19 community groups (e.g. Hermitage, 
Compton, Lambourn, Streatley, Hungerford) as well as partners and the BAMER 
community. It could also include a faith leader and a philanthropist (several have made 
substantial donations to the Greenham Trust Coronavirus Emergency Fund).  

The Health & Well-being Conference taking place on 11 September is on the theme of 
volunteering and community resilience – this presents an opportunity to engage with 
external partners on the Council’s proposals. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 111



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Co-production (consultation) Plan   
   

Strategic Aim:   Co-produce a framework to strengthen resilience within communities of place and interest, building on new 
Covid-related and existing good practice across West Berkshire 

Actions 
Sept 
2020 

Oct 
2020 

Nov 
2020 

Dec 
2020 

Jan 
2021 

Feb 
2021 

Mar 
2021 

Apr 
2021 

May 
2021 

June 
2021 

Milestones   

Programme Manager appointed           

Executive approves recommendations           

Hub Core Group transitions to Alliance           

New C&WB Department set up           

LIO spec / tender/ award / start           

BAME spec / advert / award / start           

Engagement framework published           

Phase 1 – Concept: co-production of aims, guiding principles and objectives AND specifications for LIO and BAMER contracts 

Consultation with key stakeholders: 

 Hub Core Grp – 7 Sept / 5 Oct 

 Community LOCP – 25 Sept? 

 Locality Integration Board ? 

   

       

Co-design of LIO service specification: 

 BCT Partnership – 13 Oct 

 Health & WB Board  - spec mtg 

 Refresh VCSE co-production of 
Community WB model? 

   

       

Co-design of BAMER advocacy spec: 

 Community United and others? 
   

       

P
age 112



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Actions 
Sept 
2020 

Oct 
2020 

Nov 
2020 

Dec 
2020 

Jan 
2021 

Feb 
2021 

Mar 
2021 

Apr 
2021 

May 
2021 

June 
2021 

Developing the engagement framework AND encouraging local communities to come up with their own ideas for ensuring that there is a 

positive legacy from local Covid-19 (NB could link to community and parish planning) 

Community LOCP meetings 
          

Workshops with hard to reach groups: 

 BAMER 

 Young people 

 Economically vulnerable  

          

Workshops with communities of place: 

 West (Hungerford, Lambourn) 

 Central (Newbury, Hermitage) 

 East (e.g. Streatley, Mortimer) 

          

Ongoing – community focussed two-way communication channels   

Weekly comms (e.g. Hub Bulletin 
and/or Residents E-bulletin)  

          

Residents Surveys / Lets Chat 
          

 

P
age 113



 

 

Appendix 6 
Complaints Statistics – 2017/18 – 2019/20 
 
The table below details Stage One complaints but it does not include any Stage One 
complaints in relation to Adult Social Care (ASC) or Children and Family Services (CFS), 
as these are investigated under a separate process administered by ASC and CFS 
respectively.   
 

Stage One Complaints by Service 
Service 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Building Safer 
Communities 

2 0 0 

Customer Services & ICT 1 2 1 

Development & Planning 
(Planning) 
(Housing) 

32 
(15) 
(17) 

53 
(34) 
(19) 

51 
(26) 
(25) 

Education 6 1 4 

Finance & Property 
(Benefits & Exchequer) 

19 
(15) 

16 
(12) 

21 
(21) 

Legal Services 0 0 2 

Public Health & Wellbeing 0 1 1 

Public Protection & Culture 11 8 6 

Strategic Support 3 3 14 

Transport & Countryside 
(Highways) 
(Countryside) 
(Waste) 

86 
(41) 
(22) 
(23) 

128 
(62) 
(13) 
(53) 

77 
(32) 
(14) 
(31) 

TOTALS 160 212 177 

 
The table below details corporate Stage Two complaints and therefore only includes those 
ASC and CFS complaints that relate to complaints about the process. All other ASC and 
CFS Stage Two complaints are dealt with via their own complaints procedure.   

 

Stage Two Complaints by Service 
Service 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

CFS 0 0 4 

CEO & Support 0 1 0 

Development & Planning 
(Planning) 
(Housing) 

23 
(16) 
(7) 

31 
(27) 
(4) 

15 
(9) 
(6) 

Education 4 1 1 

Finance & Property 
(Benefits & Exchequer) 

1 
(0) 

2 
(2) 

5 
(5) 

Legal Services 0 0 2 

Public Health & Wellbeing 0 0 2 

Public Protection & Culture 3 0 0 

Strategic Support 1 2 4 

Transport & Countryside 
(Highways) 
(Countryside) 
(Waste) 

21 
(4) 
(1) 
(16) 

16 
(8) 
(1) 
(7) 

15 
(8) 
(3) 
(4) 

TOTALS 53 53 48 

 

Page 114



Engaging and Enabling our Local Communities 

 

 

 
 

The table below shows the number of LGO complaints by Service and these include all 
ASC and CFS complaints. 
 

LGO Complaints by Service 
Service 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

ASC 1 7 4 

CFS 6 9 8 

Development & Planning 
(Planning) 
(Housing) 

13 
(10) 
(3) 

8 
(6) 
(2) 

7 
(4) 
(3) 

Education 3 1 0 

Finance & Property 
(Benefits & Exchequer) 

1 
(0) 

3 
(2) 

1 
(1) 

Legal Services 1 0 0 

Public Health & Wellbeing 0 0 1 

Public Protection & Culture 1 2 1 

Strategic Support 2 0 0 

Transport & Countryside 
(Highways) 
(Countryside) 
(Waste) 

2 
(1) 
(0) 
(1) 

2 
(1) 
(0) 
(1) 

4 
(4) 
(0) 
(0) 

TOTALS 30 32 26 

 
The table below shows the outcomes to-date of the LGO investigation. 
 

Outcome of LGO Investigation 

 Pre-
mature 

Not 
investi-
gating 

Partially 
upheld 

Upheld Not 
upheld 

Decision 
awaited 

ASC 0 2 1 0 0 0 

CFS 3 4 0 1 0 0 
Dev & Planning 
(Planning) 
(Housing) 

0 3 
(2) 
(1) 

0 0 0 2 
(0) 
(2) 

Finance & Property 
(Bens & Excheq) 

0 0 0 0 0 1 
(1) 

Public Health & 
Wellbeing 

0 1 0 0 0 0 

Public Protection & 
Culture 

1 0 0 0 0 0 

Trans & Country) 
(Highways) 

0 4 
(4) 

0 0 0 0 

 

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 116



Proposals for future Community Infrastructure Levy spending 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Proposals for future Community 
Infrastructure Levy spending  

Committee considering report: Executive 

Date of Committee: 15 October 2020 

Portfolio Member: Councillor Ross Mackinnon 

Date Portfolio Member agreed report: 3 September 2020 

Report Author: Joseph Holmes 

Forward Plan Ref: EX3965 

1 Purpose of the Report 

The purpose of this report is to reshape the priorities that CIL income is used to support. The 
reports seeks to review CIL income to provide further support for community led schemes as 
well as reshape support so that it is more closely aligned to the Council Strategy approved 
last year, which in turn reflects the Adopted Local Plan. 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 To approve the continued focus on the Adopted Local Plan and Infrastructure Delivery 
Plan and schemes highlighted in the Council Strategy (2019-23) & Recovery Strategy 
that support this to be included in the Capital Strategy 2021 onwards. 

2.2 To approve a continued profiling of CIL funds of 35% education, 35% transport, 10% 
other services, with 15% to parishes (or 25% if they have a neighbourhood plan) and 
5% for administration.  

2.3 To approve a one off sum of up to £500k to be used to “ensure sustainable services 
through innovation and partnerships” by allocating funding for community groups to bid 
to support the Adopted Local Plan and Infrastructure Delivery Plan Implications and 
Impact Assessment 

Implication Commentary 

Financial: Utilising the CIL receipts more quickly will reduce the 
immediate financial pressure on revenue and capital within the 
MTFS, though will just reshape the profiling of spend. The 
overall quantum of CIL is not proposed to change through this 
scheme.  

Page 117

Agenda Item 7.



Proposals for future Community Infrastructure Levy spending 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

The reviewing of  CIL receipts for community groups could  
mean less funding for education and highways  specific 
schemes which will put greater pressure on the capital 
strategy, though does open up other opportunities as more 
ideas will be brought forward from the community to improve 
local infrastructure in line with the Adopted Local Plan. Future 
CIL receipts will be closely monitored to ensure the affordability 
of this proposal. In practice it means that the 10% CIL will be 
utilised for wider infrastructure schemes. 

A scheme identified in the future may provide greater service 
delivery or further savings opportunities through more effective 
engagement with communities to deliver services. 

Human Resource: None 

Legal: The CIL charge was set following a Public Examination into the 
shortfall for infrastructure provision caused by new 
development and was directly linked to the West Berkshire 
Core Strategy 2012 – 2036.  This examination showed a 
significant shortfall in the amount of council income, grant 
availability and infrastructure requirement – £163M in order to 
provide the infrastructure needed to support the Adopted Local 
Plan.   

The Council also has a duty under the CIL Community 
Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No. 2) 
Regulations 2019 to publish in detail by individual site, how 
much CIL has been collected from a development and how it 
has been spent to meet the authority’s  Infrastructure Delivery 
Plan. 

Risk Management: Risks associated with competing bids are proposed to be 
mitigated through a bidding round against key priorities and 
recommendation to the Executive.   

Property: None directly 

Policy: Relates to the Council Strategy and the Adopted Local Plan – 
see section below 

 

P
o

s
it

iv
e
 

N
e
u

tr
a

l 

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 Commentary 

Page 118



Proposals for future Community Infrastructure Levy spending 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Equalities Impact:     

A Are there any aspects 
of the proposed decision, 
including how it is 
delivered or accessed, 
that could impact on 
inequality? 

 X  None directly; some of the schemes may 
have an impact and these would need to 
be considered as part of the budget setting 
process in Feb/March 2021 

B Will the proposed 
decision have an impact 
upon the lives of people 
with protected 
characteristics, including 
employees and service 
users? 

 X   

Environmental Impact:  X  None above the existing programme   

Health Impact:  X  None 

ICT Impact:  X  None 

Digital Services Impact:  X  None 

Council Strategy 
Priorities: 

X   This paper should have a positive impact 
by providing funding to support priorities 4 
and 6 of the Council Strategy 

 

Core Business:  X  None directly 

Data Impact:  X  none 

Consultation and 
Engagement: 

This report has been considered by the Capital Strategy Board 

Page 119



Proposals for future Community Infrastructure Levy spending 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

3 Executive Summary 

3.1 The Council receives significant sums of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) annually. 
To date, this amount has been applied to schemes in the capital programme throughout 
the life of the strategy. This paper sets out a change in the emphasis of how CIL funding 
is applied, it does not seek to alter any of the CIL policies themselves, nor to move away 
from the regulations that ensure this must be spent on infrastructure to support the Local 
Plan. Its intent is to enhance community engagement in the allocation of schemes and 
the efficient application of CIL to capital schemes.  

3.2 To date, the Council has received over £13m of CIL payments. The majority of these 
have not been spent, though over £8m is currently allocated in the capital strategy. It is 
important that we spend this money in a timely manner to ensure that communities see 
the benefit of the CIL payments that have arisen as part of the development across the 
district. 

3.3 In summary, the paper proposes: 

 For a top slice of up to £500k to be set aside for community groups to support the 
Adopted Local Plan and Council Strategy theme 
 

 For the Executive to approve a structure for CIL spending to be focussed on core 
capital schemes to the Council Strategy 

4 Supporting Information 

Introduction 

4.1 The report is seeking to ensure that there is a stronger link between CIL expenditure 
and the Council Strategy and, following the Covid-19 outbreak, the Covid Recovery 
Strategy. 

4.2 CIL expenditure to date and income has been included in the below. This sets out the 
latest position on CIL. 

Table 1.1: CIL spend to date vs income received 

 

        Year Actual income Spend in the capital strategy 

2015/16 254  

2016/17 1,313  

2017/18 1,678  

2018/19 3,711 444 

2019/20 6,119 904 

Total 13,075 1,348 

This leaves £11,727k of CIL to be brought forward 

 

Page 120



Proposals for future Community Infrastructure Levy spending 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Table 1.2: CIL profiled spend vs forecast income 

Year Latest forecast income Included in the capital 
strategy / £000s 

CIL carried forward 11,727  

2020-21 3,000 3,005 

2021-22 3,000 2,272 

2022-23 3,000 2,863 

Total 20,727 8,139 

4.3 There are a range of areas that CIL can, and cannot be spent upon, the Council’s CIL 
webpages provide a summary https://info.westberks.gov.uk/article/28517. This includes 
that town and parish councils receive 15% or 25% (depending on whether to have a 
neighbourhood plan in place). 

4.4 CIL must be spent on infrastructure and these proposals would continue to support this 
core principle. Below is a summary of a definition of infrastructure taken from the 
Government CIL guidance: 

Definition of infrastructure1 

“The levy can be used to fund a wide range of infrastructure, including transport, flood 
defenses, schools, hospitals, and other health and social care facilities (for further details, 
see section 216(2) of the Planning Act 2008, and regulation 59, as amended by the 2012 
and 2013 Regulations). This definition allows the levy to be used to fund a very broad range 
of facilities such as: 

 play areas,  

 open spaces,  

 parks and green spaces,  

 cultural and sports facilities, 

 healthcare facilities,  

 academies and free schools,  

 district heating schemes and  

 Police stations and other community safety facilities.  

This flexibility gives local areas the opportunity to choose what infrastructure they need to 
deliver their relevant plan (the Development Plan and the London Plan in London). 
Charging authorities may not use the levy to fund affordable housing. 

Local authorities must spend the levy on infrastructure needed to support the development 
of their area, and they will decide what infrastructure is needed. 

The levy can be used to increase the capacity of existing infrastructure or to repair failing 
existing infrastructure, if that is necessary to support development” 

                                            
1 https://www.gov.uk/guidance/community-infrastructure-levy#spending-the-levy  

Page 121

https://info.westberks.gov.uk/article/28517
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2008/29/section/216
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/948/regulation/59/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2975/regulation/7/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/982/regulation/8/made
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/community-infrastructure-levy#spending-the-levy


Proposals for future Community Infrastructure Levy spending 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

4.5 The main areas of the capital strategy that have over £8m of CIL applied are the 
education capital programme and the transport and countryside service (as was and 
now the ‘Environment’ service) –and specifically, the largest schemes include: 

(a) £1,060k for new and improved cycle ways 

(b) £1,543k for a new Pupil Referral Unit in the east of the district 

(c) £1,402k for secondary school places increases  

4.6 There have also been significant match-funding schemes using CIL, for example with 
partners from the Local Economic Partnership (LEP). Appendix A has a summary of the 
proposed projects in the capital strategy 2020-23 that have CIL allocated towards them. 

Background 

4.7 It is timely to review how the CIL is currently being spent and the implications for the 
Council’s capital strategy following the publication last year of the Council Strategy 
2019-23 and the Covid-19 outbreak. The Council is receiving requests for the use of 
CIL funds and any bids need to be for infrastructure as per the regulations and be seen 
both in relation to the Council’s priorities and in comparison to one another in order to 
achieve the best outcomes for West Berkshire. 

4.8 CIL must be spent to provide community infrastructure, see above, and the Council 
Strategy has a strong focus (priority 6) on working in partnership as well as developing 
infrastructure for the district (priority 4). It is opportune to review the allocation of CIL to 
help focus further on these priorities. 

4.9 As part of the recovery from the Covid-19 outbreak, the Council is increasing its focus 
on engagement; this theme was also highlighted in the Local Government Association 
(LGA) peer review that took place in November 2019. The Council is seeking to increase 
the involvement of its residents more as part of the Council’s business.  

4.10 The Council has seen an increase in community groups emerging as part of the Covid-
19 response and is keen to support these where possible to enhance community 
resilience. The Council, through the Covid-19 outbreak, has also received significant 
feedback from residents, for example through the residents survey which saw over 
3,000 people respond. We want to continue this engagement and use CIL funds to help 
support this. The proposal below is to re-allocate up to £500k from the CIL 10% pot to 
support eligible CIL schemes in their local area. The schemes would then be assessed 
against the criteria below: 

(a) It must be spent on infrastructure that supports the delivery of the Adopted Local 
Plan  

(b) Demonstrates how it supports the Infrastructure Delivery Plan 

(c) Clearly delivers against at least one Council Strategy priority 

(d) Is match funded 

(e) Enhances the resilience of communities within West Berkshire 

Page 122



Proposals for future Community Infrastructure Levy spending 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

(f) Supports the recovery strategy by delivering at least one of the following benefits: 

 The health of our population 

 The educational success of the district 

 The economic success of West Berkshire  

 An environmentally focussed renewal 

(g) Other criteria can be added if this general approach is supported. 

4.11 CIL will only be shown as spent once the organisation has provided sufficient supporting 
financial information to demonstrate expenditure. It only classifies as being spent once 
distributed from West Berkshire Council following receipt of this information. Any monies 
not spent within the agreed timescales will be clawed back from the respective 
organisation and will be available for redistribution within the CIL funds.  

4.12 It is also important to consider the financial impact of CIL. By using CIL more quickly it 
reduces the time between the CIL being paid and schemes taking place. This is vital to 
ensure that the community sees the benefit of the CIL funds as quickly as possible. It 
also reduces the short term expenditure required on schemes from the wider Council 
taxpayer, but has no overall impact on the existing capital programme as these costs 
remain in the capital strategy. 

Proposals 

(a) One of the key amendments to form a new protocol is to incorporate an additional 
“bidding” process to be implemented between January and March each year. This 
bidding process will be for, community groups and other partners, members, town 
and parish councils2 and they will be encouraged to submit detailed proposals for 
CIL funding in their area of between £10,000 and £100,000. £500k of CIL income 
in total is proposed to be set aside to support this process between 2020 and 2023. 
Whilst ultimately it will be for the Executive to approve funding in line with the 
existing timetable, an informal panel (including the Leader, the Portfolio Holder for 
Finance, Property & Economic Development & the Portfolio Holder for Planning & 
Housing plus three officers from the Capital Strategy Board) will be established to 
review proposals and make recommendations to Executive with the £500k 
proposed to be set aside for the February budget papers. 

(b) For the Executive to focus some CIL on the new Council Strategy themes and 
specifically on, for example, the new leisure strategy 

(c) To focus more of CIL on the capital projects in the near future and for this to be 
reflected in the capital strategy from 2021 

                                            
2 Charging authorities can choose to pass on more than 25% of the levy, although the wider spending powers 
that apply to the neighbourhood funding element of the levy will not apply to any additional funds passed to 
the parish. These additional funds can only be spent on infrastructure, as defined in the Planning Act 2008 for 
the purposes of the levy. 

Page 123



Proposals for future Community Infrastructure Levy spending 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

5 Other options considered  

5.1 The Council could continue as it currently does; this would not have an impact as the 
CIL forecasts are already included in the financial forecasts. However, it does miss 
some opportunities as proposed in this paper. 

5.2 Given uncertainties over future CIL levels, the Council could spread CIL out over an 
even longer period of time. This has been discounted due to the length of time to deliver 
schemes the CIL is intended to support. 

6 Conclusion 

This paper is seeking a way to enable the use of CIL more quickly to deliver schemes 
for the benefit of West Berkshire and to ensure greater involvement for the community 
to see infrastructure delivered in their area. 

7 Appendices 

Appendix A – Proposed CIL spend in the capital strategy 2020-23 

 

Background Papers: 

https://info.westberks.gov.uk/article/28517 and CIL charging scheme 

Infrastructure Delivery Plan – 2016 update 

Recovery Strategy (Executive - July 2020) 

Capital strategy 2020-23 (Council – March 2020) 

LGA Peer Review (November 2019) 

 

Subject to Call-In: 

Yes:  No:  

The item is due to be referred to Council for final approval  

Delays in implementation could have serious financial implications for the 
Council 

Delays in implementation could compromise the Council’s position 

Considered or reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee or 
associated Task Groups within preceding six months  

Item is Urgent Key Decision 

Report is to note only 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 124

https://info.westberks.gov.uk/article/28517


Proposals for future Community Infrastructure Levy spending 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Wards affected: All 

Officer details: 

Name:  Joseph Holmes 
Job Title:  Executive Director (Resources) 
Tel No:  01635 503540 
E-mail:  joseph.holmes1@westberks.gov.uk 

Document Control 
 

Document Ref:  Date Created:  

Version:  Date Modified:  

Author: Joseph Holmes 

Owning Service Finance & Property 

  Change History 
 

Version Date Description Change ID 

1 1.7.20 Initial version  

2 10.7.20 With legal and planning policy comments  

 
  

Page 125



Proposals for future Community Infrastructure Levy spending 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Appendix A – CIL proposed spend 2020-23 

 

Service Project Title 
Description of 
Project 

CIL  20/21 CIL   21/22 CIL  22-23 

Education 
Services 

Parsons Down 
Accommodation 
Rationalisation 

Rationalisation 
of 
accommodation 
to align with 
reduced 
admission 
number due to 
decline in 
forecast pupil 
numbers and to 
create a viable 
2FE school. 

£243,700 £0.00 £48,760 

Education 
Services 

Calcot Schools - 
Remodelling 

The remodelling 
of 
accommodation 
to align with 
change of PAN 
to address 
financial 
pressures 
associated with 
current PAN and 
deficiencies with 
current 
accommodation. 

£102,190 £545,180 £31,350 

Transport 
and 
Countryside 

On Street 
Electric Charge 
Points 

Subject to DfT 
Grant Bid 

£150,000 £150,000 £150,000 

Transport 
and 
Countryside 

Improved 
Footways and 
verges 

Annual 
Programme 

£50,000 £50,000 £50,000 

Page 126



Proposals for future Community Infrastructure Levy spending 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Service Project Title 
Description of 
Project 

CIL  20/21 CIL   21/22 CIL  22-23 

Transport 
and 
Countryside 

Local Cycle and 
Walking 
Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan 

Local Cycle and 
Walking 
Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan 

£25,000 £25,000 £25,000 

Transport 
and 
Countryside 

New / Improved 
Cycle ways 

Annual 
Programme 

£220,000 £420,000 £420,000 

Transport 
and 
Countryside 

School Safety 
Improvements 

Annual 
Programme 

£30,000 £30,000 £30,000 

Transport 
and 
Countryside 

Accident 
Reduction Works 

Annual 
programme 

£50,000 £50,000 £50,000 

Transport 
and 
Countryside 

Traffic Signal 
Upgrades 

Annual 
programme 

£50,000 £50,000 £50,000 

Transport 
and 
Countryside 

Public Transport 
Infrastructure 

RTPI + 
Infrastructure 

£50,000 £50,000 £50,000 

Transport 
and 
Countryside 

Community 
Transport 

Funding for CT 
services 

£50,000 £50,000 £50,000 

Transport 
and 
Countryside 

Highways 
Projects Team - 
part funded by 
s.106 

£100,000 £100,000 £100,000 

   

£3,005,150 £2,272,150 £2,862,640 

 

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 128



Response to the Overview & Scrutiny Management Commission task-group report on the London 
Road Industrial Estate 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Response to the Overview & Scrutiny 
Management Commission task-group 
report on the London Road Industrial 
Estate  

Committee considering report: Executive 

Date of Committee: 15 October 2020 

Portfolio Member: Councillor Ross Mackinnon 

Date Portfolio Member agreed report: 23 September 2020 

Report Author: Joseph Holmes 

Forward Plan Ref: EX3956 

1 Purpose of the Report 

To provide a response to the recommendations made in the report from the Overview & 
Scrutiny Management Commission (OSMC) task group on the London Road Industrial Estate 
(LRIE) that was presented to members of the OSMC in July 2020. 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 For the Executive to note the action plan in response to the recommendations raised by 
the LRIE task group 

3 Implications and Impact Assessment 

Implication Commentary 

Financial: None 

Human Resource: None 

Legal: None 

Risk Management: It is noted that the purpose of the OSMC review was to review 
internal processes and procedures, with the intention of 

Page 129

Agenda Item 8.



Response to the Overview & Scrutiny Management Commission task-group report on the London 
Road Industrial Estate 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

ensuring that improvements, if required, could be made.  It is 
considered that the proposals detailed in this report support 
that which should help to reduce the risk of successful 
challenge. 

Property: None 

Policy: None 

 
P

o
s

it
iv

e
 

N
e
u

tr
a

l 

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 Commentary 

Equalities Impact:     

A Are there any aspects 
of the proposed decision, 
including how it is 
delivered or accessed, 
that could impact on 
inequality? 

 X   

B Will the proposed 
decision have an impact 
upon the lives of people 
with protected 
characteristics, including 
employees and service 
users? 

 X   

Environmental Impact:  X   

Health Impact:  X   

ICT Impact:  X  There are some proposals with ICT 
implications but these need to be 
assessed further to determine impact. 

Page 130



Response to the Overview & Scrutiny Management Commission task-group report on the London 
Road Industrial Estate 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Digital Services Impact:  X  There are some proposals with digital 
implications, but these need to be 
assessed further to determine impact. 

Council Strategy 
Priorities: 

 X   

Core Business:  X   

Data Impact:  X   

Consultation and 
Engagement: 

Portfolio holder for Finance and Economic Development 

Portfolio holder for internal governance 

4 Executive Summary 

4.1 The LRIE task group was created in April 2019 to review the LRIE project to 2018. The 
task group was to review what was learnt from this project and report to the OSMC. 

4.2 The OSMC received the report in July 2020 and requested that this be referred to the 
Executive for consideration. An action plan has been developed against each of the 15 
recommendations, where it is appropriate, to ensure that lessons are learnt from the 
project and incorporated into the Council’s working, where they have not been so far. 

4.3 It should be noted that the review undertaken by OSMC related to a project that was 
first envisaged more than ten years ago.  Key decisions were taken between 2010 and 
2015, and it is evident that the organisation has matured and developed since the time 
that the decisions under review were taken.  This means that some of the 
recommendations, whilst valid, do not require any action as the Council has already 
implemented the measures necessary to comply with the recommendation.   

4.4 Of the 15 recommendations, a number have already been addressed as part of the 
Council’s ongoing review of its Project Management Methodology (PMM). 

5 Supporting Information 

Introduction 

5.1 At its meeting on 9 April 2019, the Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 
(OSMC) agreed to conduct a review to better understand the advice and guidance 
received in relation to the Council’s decision making when procuring a preferred partner 
for the London Road Industrial Estate (LRIE) redevelopment Background. 

5.2 The task group met a number of times over just over a year between April 2019 and 
July 2020. The task group had a terms of reference per the below: 

Page 131



Response to the Overview & Scrutiny Management Commission task-group report on the London 
Road Industrial Estate 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

“The Terms of Reference of the scrutiny review appear at Appendix A, and are as follows: 

(a) To review the governance arrangements put in place by the Council to manage 
the LRIE development.  

(b) To review the advice and guidance received by the Council which resulted in the 
Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU) commissioning rules not being 
followed.  

(c) To better understand the cost of the initial advice and the subsequent cost of 
defending the Council’s position in the High Court and Court of Appeal.  

(d) To review what lessons have been learnt from this case. 

5.3 The output of the task group was a report considered by the OSMC on the 28th July 
2020. The report was discussed and raised 15 recommendations based on the findings 
from the task group’s discussions, interviews and review of supporting information. 
Those recommendations can be found in the main report from July 2020 and are 
included in the action plan further below in this report. 

Proposals 

5.4 Following review of the recommendations, the below action plan has been compiled to 
respond to the points raised and has highlighted where any further actions are required 
to address the recommendations raised. The full list of recommendations is included in 
appendix A – a summarised version of some of these have been provided in the action 
plan for ease of use. 

No. Recommendation Response Action Officer Lead Completion 
date 

1 OSMC should 
satisfy itself that 
the Council has in 
place appropriate 
project 
management 
methodology.  This 
should be tested in 
order to provide 
assurance that this 
is now operating 
effectively and 
consistently across 
the organisation.   

The Council has a 
PMM which is 
continually being 
updated and 
improved. Training 
is currently being 
rolled out to 
managers across 
the Council. 
Checks are 
undertaken by the 
corporate 
programme office 
to ensure 
compliance / 
exception reports 
are taken to 
Corporate 
Programme Board. 
Examples of the 
current PMM 

No further 
action – in 
place 

- - 

Page 132



Response to the Overview & Scrutiny Management Commission task-group report on the London 
Road Industrial Estate 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

No. Recommendation Response Action Officer Lead Completion 
date 

paperwork is 
attached at 
Appendix C. 

2 All projects should 
be supported by a 
clear business 
case. 
 

All new projects 
are supported by a 
business case as 
included in the 
PMM and 
overseen by the 
corporate 
programme office. 

No further 
action – 
included as 
part of the 
PMM 

- - 

3 All projects should 
have a sufficient 
budget allocated to 
that project at the 
outset, including 
the cost of 
procuring external 
advice, and 
budgets should be 
monitored 
appropriately. 
 

Where projects 
require a budget 
they request this 
through a bid via 
revenue (to the 
budget board) or 
capital (Capital 
Strategy Board) to 
be included in 
future budget 
allocations in 
March each year. 
The PMM 
highlights the need 
to consider types 
of budget e.g. 
legal, IT etc 
 
Any exceptions are 
brought in year to 
the Executive / 
delegated officer 
sign off where 
appropriate 

No further 
action  

- - 

4 A review should be 
undertaken to 
ensure that any 
group fulfilling a 
governance role 
understands its 
purpose and 
function.  

The recent review 
by the Chief 
Executive of 
governance 
structures put in 
place terms of 
reference. The 
Corporate 
Programme Board 
has also 
undertaken a 
series of ‘deep 
dive’ reviews of 

No further 
action 

- - 

Page 133



Response to the Overview & Scrutiny Management Commission task-group report on the London 
Road Industrial Estate 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

No. Recommendation Response Action Officer Lead Completion 
date 

Governance 
Groups, including 
terms of reference 
review. 

5 Each Committee / 
Board should 
review its Terms of 
Reference on an 
annual basis, 
possibly after the 
Annual Council 
Meeting to ensure 
that the Terms of 
Reference remain 
up to date and 
appropriate. 

See above – ToR 
review undertaken 
on each Board.  
 
For each 
committee a 
review should take 
place of terms of 
reference  

No further 
action 
 
 
Democratic 
Services to 
schedule in at 
the start of 
each 
municipal 
year 

 
 
 
 
Democratic 
Services 
Manager 

 
 
 
 
July ‘21 

6 The Council’s 
Record Retention 
Policy should be 
reviewed to 
consider whether it 
is fit for purpose 
and being 
implemented 
uniformly across 
the organisation.  It 
was considered 
that the Property 
Team, which 
appeared to have 
poor controls, 
could improve by 
establishing a 
formal document 
numbering system 
to reference and 
then store 
documents in a 
central repository. 
The current 
document was 
created for siloed 
services and is not 
ideal for long 
projects – in this 
era of relatively 
cheap electronic 
storage 

Noted.  This will be 
considered by the 
Finance and 
Governance 
Group. 

To ensure 
that the 
Finance and 
Governance 
Group review 
the Council’s 
Record 
Retention 
Policy and 
ensure that it 
is being 
implemented 
appropriately. 

Finance and 
Governance 
Group 

Mar. ‘21 

Page 134



Response to the Overview & Scrutiny Management Commission task-group report on the London 
Road Industrial Estate 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

No. Recommendation Response Action Officer Lead Completion 
date 

consideration 
should be given to 
permanent storage 
of all documents 
and emails relating 
to major projects, 
and to the long-
term availability of 
such data in the 
light of future 
changes to 
software and 
storage media. 
 

 
7 

Project risks, 
including financial 
risks to the 
Council, need to 
be assessed and 
then recorded in a 
risk register for all 
projects. This risk 
register should 
document 
ownership of risks 
both at officer and 
Member level. 
 

Noted and project 
risk registers are 
part of the overall 
PMM for delivering 
projects. 

Governance 
Groups to 
ensure that 
there are 
regularly 
updated risk 
registers in 
place for 
projects in 
their remit 
and that the 
relevant 
members are 
updated. 

Corporate 
Programme 
Management 
Board 

Dec ‘20 

8 There is no 
justification for the 
Council 
substantially 
extending its in-
house legal team 
for large scale 
(one-off) projects; 
the Council should 
continue to 
procure external 
expert advice 
where in house 
expertise does not 
exist, or where 
there is insufficient 
capacity in the in-
house team. 
 

Agreed. No further 
action  

- - 

Page 135



Response to the Overview & Scrutiny Management Commission task-group report on the London 
Road Industrial Estate 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

No. Recommendation Response Action Officer Lead Completion 
date 

9 External expert 
support for 
projects should be 
appropriately 
procured following 
a skills gap 
analysis at the 
start of the project.  
Procurement of 
external experts 
should be done 
transparently. 
 

Agreed – the 
business case 
should highlight 
where there is a 
need for additional 
support and either 
a budget bid is 
made via the 
annual budget 
setting process or 
for transformation 
funds. 
External 
procurement is 
already completed 
in line with the 
Contract Rules of 
Procedure to 
ensure openness 
and transparency. 

No further 
action  

- - 

10 For future large 
scale projects 
OSMC should 
satisfy itself that 
the Council tests 
the market fully 
and assesses 
partners to ensure 
value for money. 
 

This is an 
Executive function; 
OSMC has the 
ability to ‘call in’ 
projects or 
decisions. 
Extensive market 
testing, including 
advertising in the 
national press, 
was undertaken at 
points during the 
project 

No further 
action 

- - 

11 External advice 
should be 
procured on the 
basis of the 
anticipated full 
project, in stages if 
necessary, and on 
the basis that it 
may not proceed 
through each 
stage of the same. 
 

Agreed – the PMM 
includes a series 
of gateways. There 
is a balance on 
projects though of 
over-spending by 
using advice 
earlier 

To ensure 
that the 
Procurement 
Board 
considers 
wider 
procurement 
of services  in 
the future 

Procurement 
Board 

On-going 

12 All officers’ time 
should be 
recorded when 

Time recording is 
not seen to be cost 
effective for 

No further 
action 

- - 

Page 136



Response to the Overview & Scrutiny Management Commission task-group report on the London 
Road Industrial Estate 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

No. Recommendation Response Action Officer Lead Completion 
date 

dealing with large 
scale projects. 
 

projects for cost of 
the system / officer 
time taken against 
the potential 
benefits that it 
would bring 
 
On the largest 
projects the 
Council is 
increasingly 
moving towards 
specific project 
resources enabling 
the capture of cost 
easier on new 
projects and the 
project manager 
can make an 
assessment of 
project resources 
expended. 

13 The Council 
should review and 
improve how it 
consults and 
engages with 
those who may be 
affected by the 
Council’s 
proposals.  
Significant projects 
such as this should 
have a clear 
communications 
plan with a list of 
key stakeholders. 
 

Agreed.   
Significant projects 
have a clear 
communications 
and engagement 
plan.   
The Council is also 
in the process of 
developing a new 
Communications 
and engagement 
strategy which is 
due to the 
Executive in 
Autumn 2020 

To approve a 
Communicati
ons and 
Engagement 
strategy to 
strengthen 
the Council’s 
engagement 
with key 
stakeholders 

Chief 
Executive 

Dec. ‘20 

14 Legal Officers 
should be 
reminded that the 
Council’s Contract 
Rules of 
Procedure must be 
followed when 
appointing external 
advisers which 
should be done in 

Officers do follow 
the rules as set out 
in legislation and 
as detailed in the 
Constitution 
approved by 
Members. 

No further 
action. 

Procurement 
Board 

n/a 

Page 137



Response to the Overview & Scrutiny Management Commission task-group report on the London 
Road Industrial Estate 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

No. Recommendation Response Action Officer Lead Completion 
date 

a uniform and 
standard process 
to ensure value 
and efficiency in 
accordance with 
those Rules.   
 

15 Future partners 
should be 
expected to assist 
in reviews such as 
this free of charge 
and consideration 
should be given to 
making this a 
contractual 
requirement under 
the terms of 
engagement.  
 

This 
recommendation 
could have an 
impact on the cost 
of procured 
services as it is 
likely that the cost 
of this would be 
factored into 
tenders submitted.  
It is noted that 
OSMC already has 
the power to invite 
third parties to 
participate in any 
scrutiny review.  
Therefore, and 
having regard to 
the limited number 
of occasions that 
OSMC are likely to 
call contractors to 
participate in any 
review, this 
recommendation is 
not agreed as the 
cost is likely to 
outweigh any 
benefit.   
It is agreed 
however that such 
a provision will be 
considered for 
larger, long term 
contracts.  
 

Procurement 
Board to 
consider 
whether such 
a term is 
appropriate 
for inclusion 
in contracts 
being 
considered 
by them. 

Procurement 
Board 

Dec. ‘20 

 

Page 138



Response to the Overview & Scrutiny Management Commission task-group report on the London 
Road Industrial Estate 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

6 Other options considered  

6.1 The Executive could opt to do nothing with the report and leave it as is; however, it is 
important that lessons are learnt where action has not been taken already in respect of 
the issues raised. 

7 Conclusion 

7.1 The OSMC review conducted by the Task Group related to events that took place 
between five and ten years ago. The Council has clearly developed its practices in that 
time, and therefore many of the recommendations do not require any action as the 
measures recommended are already in place.   

7.2 Where further action can be taken, that is detailed in the action plan, which Executive 
are asked to note.   

Appendices 

Appendix A – Full list of the 15 recommendations made 

Appendix B – summary of the Council’s Project Management Methodology 

Appendix C – Project Management Methodology documentation 

Background Papers: 

July 2020 OSMC task group report (28.7.2020 OSMC meeting) 

Subject to Call-In: 

Yes:  No:  

The item is due to be referred to Council for final approval  

Delays in implementation could have serious financial implications for the 
Council 

Delays in implementation could compromise the Council’s position 

Considered or reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee or 
associated Task Groups within preceding six months  

Item is Urgent Key Decision 

Report is to note only 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Wards affected: All 

 

Page 139



Response to the Overview & Scrutiny Management Commission task-group report on the London 
Road Industrial Estate 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Officer details: 

Name:  Joseph Holmes 
Job Title:  Executive Director (Resources) 
Tel No:  01635 503540 
E-mail:  joseph.holmes1@westberks.gov.uk  

Document Control 
 

Document Ref:  Date Created:  

Version:  Date Modified:  

Author:  

Owning Service  

  Change History 
 

Version Date Description Change ID 

1    

2    

 

Page 140

mailto:joseph.holmes1@westberks.gov.uk


Response to the Overview & Scrutiny Management Commission task-group report on the London 
Road Industrial Estate 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Appendix A – Full recommendations made by the LRIE 
task group 

 

(1) OSMC should satisfy itself that the Council has in place appropriate project 
management methodology.  This should be tested in order to provide assurance that 
this is now operating effectively and consistently across the organisation.  This should 
include standardised documentation such as a risk register, and project sponsors 
should ensure that project managers understand their role.  This would also ensure 
that appropriate governance structures, including Project Groups and Governance 
Groups are formally constituted and are understood by all.  

 
(2) All projects should be supported by a clear business case. 
 
(3) All projects should have a sufficient budget allocated to that project at the outset, 

including the cost of procuring external advice, and budgets should be monitored 
appropriately. 

 
(4) Each Committee / Board should review its Terms of Reference on an annual basis, 

possibly after the Annual Council Meeting to ensure that the Terms of Reference 
remain up to date and appropriate. 

 
(5) A review should be undertaken to ensure that any group fulfilling a governance role 

understands its purpose and function. All bodies need to understand the role they play 
in the decision making process. 

 
(6) The Council’s Record Retention Policy should be reviewed to consider whether it is fit 

for purpose and being implemented uniformly across the organisation.  It was 
considered that the Property Team, which appeared to have poor controls, could 
improve by establishing a formal document numbering system to reference and then 
store documents in a central repository. The current document was created for siloed 
services and is not ideal for long projects – in this era of relatively cheap electronic 
storage consideration should be given to permanent storage of all documents and 
emails relating to major projects, and to the long-term availability of such data in the 
light of future changes to software and storage media. 

 
(7) Project risks, including financial risks to the Council, need to be assessed and then 

recorded in a risk register for all projects. This risk register should document 
ownership of risks both at officer and Member level. 

 
(8) There is no justification for the Council substantially extending its in-house legal team 

for large scale (one-off) projects; the Council should continue to procure external 
expert advice where in house expertise does not exist, or where there is insufficient 
capacity in the in-house team. 

 
(9) External expert support for projects should be appropriately procured following a skills 

gap analysis at the start of the project.  Procurement of external experts should be 
done transparently. 

Page 141



Response to the Overview & Scrutiny Management Commission task-group report on the London 
Road Industrial Estate 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

 
(10) For future large scale projects OSMC should satisfy itself that the Council tests the 

market fully and assesses partners to ensure value for money. 
 
(11) External advice should be procured on the basis of the anticipated full project, in 

stages if necessary, and on the basis that it may not proceed through each stage of 
the same. 

 
(12) All officers’ time should be recorded when dealing with large scale projects. 
 
(13) The Council should review and improve how it consults and engages with those who 

may be affected by the Council’s proposals.  Significant projects such as this should 
have a clear communications plan with a list of key stakeholders. 

 
(14) Legal Officers should be reminded that the Council’s Contract Rules of Procedure 

must be followed when appointing external advisers which should be done in a 
uniform and standard process to ensure value and efficiency in accordance with those 
Rules.   

 
(15) Future partners should be expected to assist in reviews such as this free of charge 

and consideration should be given to making this a contractual requirement under the 
terms of engagement.  

  

Page 142



Response to the Overview & Scrutiny Management Commission task-group report on the London 
Road Industrial Estate 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Appendix B – West Berkshire Council Project Management Methodology (PMM v5) 
January 2020 

 

U
p

d
a
te

 L
e
ss

o
n

s 

L
e
a
rn

e
d
 L

o
g

F
o

rm
 5

a
 (L

ar
g

e
 P

ro
je

ct
) 

  
 

F
o

rm
 5

b
 (S

m
al

l P
ro

je
c

t)

C
re

a
te

 P
ro

je
ct

 P
la

n

 M
ai

nt
ai

n 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 
Fo

re
ca

st

U
p

d
a
te

 Q
u
a
lit

y 
L
o
g

U
p

d
a
te

 R
is

k 

R
e

g
is

te
r

(I
d

e
n

tif
y 

&
 M

a
n

a
g

e
 R

is
ks

)

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
Is

su
es

 L
og

(Id
en

tif
y 

&
 M

an
ag

e 
Is

su
es

)

R
e

vi
e
w

 &
 U

p
d
a
te

 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
la

n
R

e
vi

e
w

 &
 U

p
d
a
te

 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
la

n

F
o

rm
 1

2

 P
ro

d
u
ct

 D
e
sc

ri
p
tio

n
/

W
o
rk

 P
a
ck

a
g
e
(s

F
o

rm
 1

0
 &

 1
1

P
ro

je
ct

 I
n
iti

a
tio

n
 

D
o

cu
m

e
n

t 
In

c 

C
o

m
m

s 
P

la
n

(M
e

d
iu

m
 &

 L
a

rg
e

 P
ro

je
ct

s)
F

o
rm

 4

E
xp

e
n
d
itu

re
 

F
o
re

ca
st

Pr
oj

ec
t I

ni
ti

at
io

n
Pr

oj
ec

t P
la

nn
in

g
Pr

oj
ec

t E
xe

cu
ti

on
Pr

oj
ec

t C
lo

su
re

Ex
ec

ut
io

n 
Ch

ec
kl

is
t

F
o

rm
 1

6

P
ro

je
ct

 C
lo

su
re

 

R
e

p
o
rt

 
(M

e
d

iu
m

 &
 L

a
rg

e
 P

ro
je

ct
s)

F
o

rm
 7

C
re

a
te

/P
o
p

u
la

te
 

R
is

k 
R

e
g
is

te
r

F
o

rm
 1

3

H
ig

h
lig

h
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

s

U
p

d
a
te

 R
is

k 

R
e

g
is

te
r

(I
d

e
n

tif
y 

&
 M

a
n

a
g

e
 R

is
ks

)

P
o
p

u
la

te
 I
ss

u
e
s 

L
o
g

(I
d

e
n

tif
y 

&
 M

a
n

a
g

e
 

Is
su

e
s)

R
e

vi
e
w

 E
xp

e
n
d
itu

re
 

F
o
re

ca
st

U
pd

at
ed

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

19

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

A
ny

bo
d

y 
w

it
h 

an
 id

ea

O
nc

e

A
ut

h
or

is
at

io
n

Po
te

nt
ia

l P
ro

je
ct

 S
po

n
so

r

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

O
nc

e

Pr
o

je
ct

 D
ef

in
it

io
n

St
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

A
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d

Pr
o

je
ct

 C
on

tr
ol

Pr
o

je
ct

 B
oa

rd

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

O
ng

oi
ng

B
ud

ge
t C

on
tr

ol

Pr
o

je
ct

 S
po

ns
or

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

O
nc

e

Pr
o

je
ct

 C
on

tr
ol

In
te

rn
al

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

O
nc

e

Pr
o

je
ct

 C
on

tr
ol

In
te

rn
al

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

O
nc

e

Pr
o

je
ct

 C
on

tr
ol

In
te

rn
al

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

A
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d

Ta
sk

 A
llo

ca
ti

on

Pr
o

je
ct

 T
ea

m

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

O
nc

e

Co
nt

ro
l

Pr
o

je
ct

 B
oa

rd

G
at

e 
1 

- V
ia

bi
lit

y 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t

Pr
oj

ec
t S

p
on

so
r e

n
do

rs
em

en
t o

f  
pr

oj
ec

t m
ea

n
s 

he
 is

 p
re

p
ar

ed
 to

 a
ct

 a
s 

p
ro

je
ct

 
ch

am
pi

on
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n,

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

ac
co

un
ta

bl
e 

fo
r i

ts
 o

ut
co

m
es

G
at

e 
2(

a)
 &

/o
r 

(b
) -

 C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ri
or

it
y/

U
se

 o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

gr
ou

p 
ap

pr
ov

al
 th

at
 p

ro
je

ct
 is

 a
lig

ne
d 

to
 c

or
po

ra
te

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
&

 th
at

 
de

cl
ar

ed
 b

ud
ge

t &
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

us
ag

e 
ar

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 fo

r h
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 
ou

tc
om

es

G
at

e 
3 

- R
ev

ie
w

 o
f P

ro
je

ct
 P

la
n 

&
 R

is
ks

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

bo
dy

 a
pp

ro
va

l t
ha

t k
no

w
n 

ris
ks

 a
re

 m
an

ag
ea

bl
e 

an
d 

th
at

 d
et

ai
le

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 c

an
 c

om
m

en
ce

 (N
ot

e:
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t o

f s
ys

te
m

 m
ay

 o
cc

ur
 h

er
e)

F
o

rm
 8

C
re

a
te

 L
e
ss

o
n
s 

L
e
a
rn

e
d
 L

o
g

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

A
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d

Pr
o

je
ct

 C
on

tr
ol

Pr
o

je
ct

 B
oa

rd

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

P
o
p

u
la

te
 L

e
ss

o
n
s 

L
e
a
rn

e
d
 L

o
g

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

O
ng

oi
ng

Pr
o

je
ct

 C
on

tr
ol

 

Pr
o

je
ct

 B
oa

rd

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

G
at

e 
5 

- A
ut

ho
ri

sa
tio

n 
to

 C
lo

se
 P

ro
je

ct

Pr
oj

ec
t B

oa
rd

 a
nd

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

G
ro

up
 to

 c
lo

se
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t a
nd

 h
an

d 
ov

er
 to

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns

G
at

e 
4 

- A
ut

ho
ri

sa
ti

on
 t

o 
Co

m
m

en
ce

 P
ro

je
ct

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

gr
ou

p 
ap

pr
ov

al
 fo

r p
ro

je
ct

 to
 p

ro
ce

ed
 a

nd
 b

ec
om

e 
pa

rt
 o

f p
ro

gr
am

m
e

, 
ba

se
d

 u
po

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 P
ID

, s
ig

ne
d 

of
f b

y 
Pr

oj
ec

t B
oa

rd

DefinitionConception Start-Up

F
o

rm
 1

4

E
xc

e
p

tio
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

s

F
o

rm
 1

P
ro

je
ct

 B
ri
e
f

M

A

M M

M

MM

A

M

A
M

Le
ge

nd
=A

dv
is

or
y

=M
an

da
to

ry

Co
nd

uc
t P

os
t I

m
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 R

ev
ie

w
 (P

IR
)

M

F
o

rm
 9

C
re

a
te

 Q
u
a
lit

y 
L

o
g

In
iti

at
io

n 
Ch

ec
kl

is
t

M

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
Ch

ec
kl

is
tM

F
o

rm
 6

C
re

a
te

 

P
ro

je
ct

 I
ss

u
e

s 
L
o
gM

P
o
p

u
la

te
 Q

u
a
lit

y 
L
o

g

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

A
s 

H
ig

h
lig

ht
 R

ep
or

t

B
ud

ge
t C

on
tr

ol

Pr
o

je
ct

 B
oa

rd

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

A
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d

Pr
o

je
ct

 C
on

tr
ol

Pr
o

je
ct

 B
oa

rd

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

A
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d

Pr
o

je
ct

 C
on

tr
ol

Pr
o

je
ct

 B
oa

rd

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

A
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d

Pr
o

je
ct

 C
on

tr
ol

Pr
o

je
ct

 B
oa

rd

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

A
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d

Pr
o

je
ct

 C
on

tr
ol

Pr
o

je
ct

 B
oa

rd

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

A
s 

d
ef

in
ed

 in
 P

ID

Pr
o

je
ct

 C
on

tr
ol

Pr
o

je
ct

 B
oa

rd

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 T
ea

m

O
ng

oi
ng

Pr
o

je
ct

 C
on

tr
ol

 

Pr
o

je
ct

 B
oa

rd

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 T
ea

m

O
ng

oi
ng

Pr
o

je
ct

 C
on

tr
ol

 

Pr
o

je
ct

 B
oa

rd

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 T
ea

m

O
ng

oi
ng

Pr
o

je
ct

 C
on

tr
ol

 

Pr
o

je
ct

 B
oa

rd

P
ro

d
u

ce
d

 B
y

:

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

:

P
u

rp
o

se
:

A
u

d
ie

n
ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

A
t 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

En
d

Pr
o

je
ct

 C
on

tr
ol

A
ll 

St
ak

eh
o

ld
er

s

F
o

rm
 1

5

P
o
st

 P
ro

je
ct

 

R
e

sp
o
n
si

b
ili

tie
s 

(R
A

C
I)

(M
e

d
iu

m
 &

 L
a

rg
e

 P
ro

je
ct

s)

P
ro

d
u

ce
d

 B
y

:

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

:

P
u

rp
o

se
:

A
u

d
ie

n
ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

A
t 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

En
d

Po
st

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
on

tr
ol

O
pe

ra
ti

on
s 

St
af

f

Cl
os

ur
e 

Ch
ec

kl
is

tM

F
o

rm
 3

P
ro

je
ct

 S
iz

in
g
 

C
a

lc
u
la

to
r

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

O
nc

e

Co
nt

ro
l

Pr
o

je
ct

 B
oa

rd

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

O
nc

e

Co
nt

ro
l

A
ll 

St
ak

eh
o

ld
er

s

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

O
nc

e

Co
nt

ro
l

Pr
o

je
ct

 B
oa

rd

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

O
nc

e

Co
nt

ro
l

Pr
o

je
ct

 B
oa

rd

Pr
od

uc
ed

 B
y:

Fr
eq

u
en

cy
:

Pu
rp

os
e:

A
u

di
en

ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 T
ea

m

O
ng

oi
ng

Q
ua

lit
y 

Co
nt

ro
l 

Pr
o

je
ct

 B
oa

rd

M

F
o

rm
 1

7

P
ro

je
ct

 C
lo

su
re

 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
(B

a
U

 &
 S

m
a

ll 
P

ro
je

ct
s)

M
P

ro
d

u
ce

d
 B

y
:

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

:

P
u

rp
o

se
:

A
u

d
ie

n
ce

Pr
o

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

A
t 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

En
d

Pr
o

je
ct

 C
on

tr
ol

A
ll 

St
ak

eh
o

ld
er

s

M

M

F
o

rm
 2

T
ra

n
sf

o
rm

a
tio

n
 

F
u
n
d

in
g
 A

p
p
lic

a
tio

n MO

F
o

rm
 4

E
xp

e
n
d
itu

re
 

F
o
re

ca
st

F
o

rm
 1

P
ro

je
ct

 B
ri
e
f

F
o

rm
 2

T
ra

n
sf

o
rm

a
tio

n
 

F
u
n
d

in
g
 A

p
p
lic

a
tio

n

F
o

rm
 3

P
ro

je
ct

 S
iz

in
g
 

C
a

lc
u
la

to
r

M

M M M M

O
O

pt
io

n
al

 (i
f t

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fu

nd
in

g 
re

qu
ire

d)

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 144



Corporate Programme Office – an overview 

Project Initiation Process 

The process for commencing a project within the Authority has been communicated 
to all third tier managers and above via training sessions at Shaw House run by the 
Corporate Programme Office (CPO) and the Chief Executive.  Unfortunately these 
were stopped in March during the COVID outbreak but the CPO is in the process of 
redesigning the training programme with a view to delivering it through Zoom to 
those managers and teams who require it. 

Heads of Service and Directors are well versed in the project methodology and the 
transformation governance groups within the Authority are each chaired by one of 
the Directors and project monitoring is now a standing item on the meeting agendas. 

Staff are directed to the Programme Office for information and advice about how to 
start a project and the documentation is available on the intranet where the following 
templates (and other information can be viewed which support the PMM process); 

Appendix A – Project Management Methodology 
Please note the full Project Management handbook can be 
found at http://intranet/index.aspx?articleid=36683 which takes 
you through every step of the process and each document that 
needs to be completed. 

Appendix B -  Project Brief template 
Appendix C -  Project Sizing Calculator 
Appendix D -  Risk Register (and associated guidance/advice) 
Appendix E -  Transformation/Capital Funding form 
Appendix F -  Governance Structure 
Appendix G -  Process overview for Initiation & Definition 
 
Advice is available from the Corporate Programme Office team throughout the 
process to support and guide staff through the project management process and 
how to navigate the governance structure to seek approval and funding. 

Funding 

To secure funding for a project (be it capital or transformation), a provision is 
ordinarily made via the Head of Service through the budget setting process with 
Finance.  However, an in year bid can be made for Capital funding and the funding 
form is sent to the Capital Strategy Group (together with the supporting Project Brief) 
for approval (Appendices A & E). 

For Transformation projects, such as the digital and ICT projects coming from the 
New Ways of Working programme of work amongst others, applications are made to 
the Corporate Programme Board (the Council’s Executive Members who own the 
transformation fund).   

The process for this being the bid and Project Brief has to be approved via the 
Governing Body who will own the project (i.e. for digital and ICT projects this is now 

Page 145

http://intranet/index.aspx?articleid=36683


Customer First Projects Group) and it can then go forward to the Corporate Projects’ 
Board for checking against corporate priorities before onward to Corporate 
Programme Board for a decision. 

During the Project 

Once a project has been approved for delivery, regular monitoring takes place 
through the Governing Body who owns the project – (see Appendix F).  Progress 
reports are provided for the Sponsors and the Board regularly.  The risks, issues and 
financial spend are tracked against the delivery timetables by reviewing the project 
plans, highlight and exception reports (where required). 

The project managers are responsible for maintaining the project plans, risk 
registers, lessons learned logs and communicating regularly with the Board and their 
sponsor(s) and Portfolio Holders.  The Risk Register (Appendix D) provides 
guidance and advice about how to score risks and how to escalate them as well as 
providing an ‘Action Plan’ template to manage the risks accordingly.  There is still 
work to be done to reach a point where this becomes business as usual for the 
governing bodies and those unfamiliar with project management but the authority 
has improved markedly in the last year. 

The Corporate Programme Office has a role in supporting the Governing Bodies to 
ensure the relevant checks and balances are in place and will reinstate training 
sessions in the coming 12 months, resource permitting. 

Closure 

Once a project has been delivered, the Governing Body should schedule the post 
implementation review (dependent on size of the project) and the closure report 
should be signed off with the findings being transferred to the Corporate Lessons 
Learned Log (work in progress). 

For more information on project management, please follow this link: 

http://intranet/index.aspx?articleid=32138&q=PMM 

 
Melanie Best 
Team Leader – Corporate Programme Office 
September 2020

Page 146

http://intranet/index.aspx?articleid=32138&q=PMM


Appendix A – Project Management Methodology (available in A3 on request) 

Update Lessons 

Learned Log

Form 5a (Large Project)    

Form 5b (Small Project)

Create Project Plan

 Maintain Expenditure 
Forecast

Update Quality Log

Update Risk 

Register
(Identify & Manage Risks)

Maintain Issues Log
(Identify & Manage 

Issues)

Review & Update 

Project Plan
Review & Update 

Project Plan

Form 12

 Product Description/

Work Package(s

Form 10 & 11

Project Initiation 

Document Inc 

Comms Plan
(Medium & Large Projects)Form 4

Expenditure 

Forecast

Project Initiation Project Planning Project Execution Project Closure

Execution 
Checklist

Form 16

Project Closure 

Report 
(Medium & Large Projects)

Form 7

Create/Populate 

Risk Register

Form 13

Highlight Reports

Update Risk 

Register
(Identify & Manage Risks)

Populate Issues Log
(Identify & Manage 

Issues)

Review Expenditure 

Forecast

Updated November 2019

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Anybody with an idea

Once

Authorisation

Potential Project Sponsor

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

Once

Project Definition

Stakeholders

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

As Required

Project Control

Project Board

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

Ongoing

Budget Control

Project Sponsor

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

Once

Project Control

Internal

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

Once

Project Control

Internal

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

Once

Project Control

Internal

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

As Required

Task Allocation

Project Team

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

Once

Control

Project Board

Gate 1 - Viability Assessment

Project Sponsor endorsement of  project means he is prepared to act as project 
champion within the organisation, and will be accountable for its outcomes

Gate 2(a) &/or (b) - Corporate Priority/Use of Resources

Governance group approval that project is aligned to corporate priorities & that 
declared budget & resource usage are in place and appropriate for he expected 

outcomes

Gate 3 - Review of Project Plan & Risks

Governance body approval that known risks are manageable and that detailed 
planning can commence (Note: Procurement of system may occur here)

Form 8

Create Lessons 

Learned Log

Project Manager

As Required

Project Control

Project Board

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Populate Lessons 

Learned Log

Project Manager

Ongoing

Project Control 

Project Board

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Gate 5 - Authorisation to Close Project

Project Board and Governance Group to close the project and hand 
over to Operations

Gate 4 - Authorisation to Commence Project

Governance group approval for project to proceed and become part of programme, 
based upon completed PID, signed off by Project Board

D
ef

in
it

io
n

C
o

n
ce

p
ti

o
n

St
a

rt
-U

p

Form 14

Exception reports

Form 1

Project Brief

M

A

M

M

M

M

M

A

M

A MLegend =Advisory =Mandatory

Conduct Post Implementation Review (PIR)

M

Form 9

Create Quality Log

Initiation 
Checklist

M

Planning 
Checklist

M

Form 6

Create 

Project Issues Log

M

Populate Quality Log

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

As Highlight Report

Budget Control

Project Board

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

As Required

Project Control

Project Board

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

As Required

Project Control

Project Board

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

As Required

Project Control

Project Board

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

As Required

Project Control

Project Board

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

As defined in PID

Project Control

Project Board

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Team

Ongoing

Project Control 

Project Board

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Team

Ongoing

Project Control 

Project Board

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Team

Ongoing

Project Control 

Project Board

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

At Project End

Project Control

All Stakeholders

Form 15

Post Project 

Responsibilities 

(RACI)
(Medium & Large Projects)

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

At Project End

Post Project Control

Operations Staff

Closure 
Checklist

M

Form 3

Project Sizing 

Calculator

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

Once

Control

Project Board

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

Once

Control

All Stakeholders

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

Once

Control

Project Board

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

Once

Control

Project Board

Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Team

Ongoing

Quality Control 

Project Board

M

Form 17

Project Closure 

Statement
(BaU & Small Projects)

M Produced By:

Frequency:

Purpose:

Audience

Project Manager

At Project End

Project Control

All Stakeholders

M

M

Form 2

Transformation 

Funding Application

M

O

Form 4

Expenditure 

Forecast

Form 1

Project Brief

Form 2

Transformation 

Funding Application

Form 3

Project Sizing 

Calculator

M

M

M

M

M

O Optional (if transformation funding required)  
 
  

P
age 147



Appendix B – Project Brief 

Guidance 
The information in this Project Brief is used to enable the appropriate governance group to decide whether the project is suitably aligned to 
WBC’s Corporate Priorities, and that the projected budget and use of resources is appropriate for the expected outcomes. When completed and 
approved by the relevant Governance group  this form will enable the project to progress through Gate 2 & 3, 
 

Project Title:        

Project Sponsor: 
(Person accountable for project outcome) 

      

Project Manager: 
(Person tasked with delivering project) 

      

Portfolio Holder:  

Service: 
(Service responsible for project outcome) 

      

Project Magnitude 
(Use Project Sizing Calculator to 

determine project’s size and therefore 
relevant level of control to be applied) 

According to the PMM Project Sizing Calculator this project is a (Tier 
1, Tier 2, Tier 3 or Tier 4) project 

Governance Group: 
(e.g. Corporate Board, Capital Management 
Group, Corporate Programme Board/Other 

Business As Usual Groups Transformation Groups 

Accommodation Group  Economic Development 
Board 

 

Health & Safety Group  Housing Board  

Procurement Board  Environment Board  

Member Development 
Group 

 Equalities & Diversity Board  

Finance & Governance 
Group 

 Modernising ASC  

Capital Group  Customer First Projects 
Group (formerly Digitisation 
Group) or Customer First 
Programme Board 

 

Asset Management 
Group 

 Commercial Board  

Corporate Management 
Board 

 Workforce Board  

Directorate Management 
Teams 

 CYP & Families 
Modernising Board 

 

Other please state here:  
 

Council Priorities:  
(How does your project outcome align with 

Council priorities) 

Please select from the Priorities in the drop down box. Double 
click to open the selection. 

Ensure our vulnerable children and adults achieve better 
outcomes. 

Choose an item. 

Choose an item. 

Support everyone to reach their full potential 

Choose an item. 

Choose an item. 

Support businesses to start, develop and thrive in West 
Berkshire 

Choose an item. 

Choose an item. 

Develop local infrastructure, including housing, to support and 
grow the local economy 

Choose an item. 

Choose an item. 

Page 148



Guidance 
The information in this Project Brief is used to enable the appropriate governance group to decide whether the project is suitably aligned to 
WBC’s Corporate Priorities, and that the projected budget and use of resources is appropriate for the expected outcomes. When completed and 
approved by the relevant Governance group  this form will enable the project to progress through Gate 2 & 3, 
 

Maintain a Green District 

Choose an item. 

Choose an item. 

Ensure Sustainable services through innovation and 
partnerships 

Choose an item. 

Choose an item. 

 

  
 
 

PROJECT AIMS 

Objectives:  
(Describe required  outcome) 

What things will be better and/or improved by doing this? What are 
your outcomes? 

Benefits: 
(Explain business benefits to the 
organisation, Community, Partners etc.) 

Include financial benefits here 

Deliverables:  
(Describe specific deliverables project will 
achieve 

Make sure these are SMART – measurable deliverables.  The 
success of the project will be measured against them. 

Scope: 
(Describe in-scope services or systems, 

note specifically any that are out of scope) 

Be clear about what is in and out of scope to avoid unnecessary 
complications and delays. 

Deliverables and Measures 
of Success:  

(Describe specific deliverables project will 
achieve) 

Deliverables 
Be specific – make them SMART 

 

Success Measures 
 

Be clear as these will be used to track 
the success of your project 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. etc 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. etc 

Constraints: 
(e.g. dependencies on/to other projects, 
unavailability of key resources) 

What will stop you from doing this project? 

 
 
 

PROJECT DETAILS 

Outline Plan: 
(Set out the stages, key elements and 
timescales of the project) 

Set out details of your delivery plan, including timescales and phases 
here. 

Project Team:  
(Named resources required to run the project) 

      

Known Risks or Issues: 
(Identify  high level risks or Issues which may  
affect completion of the project) 

      

Relevant Standards: 
(Identify any standards that are applicable to 
the project and indicate adherence or non-
compliance to these ) 

      

Other Relevant Documents: 
(Identify any other documents that are 
relevant to this project e.g. Requirement 
Specification, Technical Specification etc.  
(If applicable) 

If applicable include any supporting documents 

 


  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 P
ID

 P
ro

je
c
t 
D

e
fi
n

it
io

n
  
S

e
c
ti
o

n
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 

 

Page 149



BUDGETS & FUNDING 

Total Project Cost:  
(from expenditure forecast) 

      

Project Cost Centre: 
(Budget Source and Cost Centre No.) 

NB: If funding not already obtained, please complete the necessary form to apply for 
Capital funding or Transformation Funding.  Form 1a on the intranet. 

Ongoing Costs (Revenue): 
(e.g. Operational support/maintenance) 

What will the maintenance cost be once the project is complete? 

Where will the money for this revenue maintenance come from – what is 
the budget code? 

Funding Source Transformation/Capital/S106 etc (please specify) 

 
 

IMPORTANT: Please note that if your project has ANY ICT implications, you must have consulted with ICT prior to 
completing this document in order that they may fully assess your needs and the Corporate Projects’ Board can make 
an informed recommendation.  If this has not taken place, your Project Brief will be rejected and not submitted to the 
next Projects’ Board until the box below can be fully completed.  If your project has no ICT requirements at all then 
you may skip this section but please ensure you state this in the top box so it is clear you have considered this 
section. 

ICT & DIGITAL RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Name of ICT member of 
staff consulted 

Please e mail your PB to the 
ITHelpdesk@westberks.gov.uk and 
digital@westberks.gov.uk for assessment. 

Name of Digital Services 
staff consulted 

 

Is ICT or Digital Resource 
required? 
(Do you require ICT resource for any stage 
of your project?) 

      

Does your project require a 
new process and/or 
amendment of an existing 
process? 

If yes, ensure they are sighted on the project and 
summarise your requirements here; 
 

 
 

 

Do you require assistance 
with designing a new 
process?  If you need help 
understanding your users 
needs, the Digital Team can 
assist you) 

 
 
 
 
For more information on how they can assist, follow this 
link http://intranet/index.aspx?articleid=32227 

 

Digital Team response Digital Team to comment here 

ICT Development 
(Is ICT development required?) 

 

What is the recommended 
ICT Solution? 
(Has an ICT solution been identified? Is it 
an existing system or new?) 

      

Is the impact to ICT 
considered Large (Tier 1), 
Medium (Tier 2), Small (Tier 
3) or BAU (Tier 4)? 
(Your ICT contact can advise and use the 
sizing calculator Form 3 of PMM to 
confirm) 

 

Page 150

mailto:ITHelpdesk@westberks.gov.uk
mailto:digital@westberks.gov.uk
http://intranet/index.aspx?articleid=32227


What is the estimated 
timescale for delivery? 
(This needs to be advised by your ICT 
representative).  Is additional resource 
required? 

 

Estimated hours to deliver 
work 

 

Date consulted  

 

RECOMMENDATION TO GOVERNANCE GROUP 

Options Considered: 
(Describe what other options were 
considered where appropriate) 

      

Recommended Solution:  
(Recommended solution)       

Officers Consulted: 
(Names and Service unit of officers 
consulted) 

      

Prepared By:       Date:  

 
 
 

FOR GOVERNING BODY OFFICE USE ONLY 

Name of Governing Body:  

Board Date:       

Governance Group Decision: 
(Record the decision of the governance group here) 

Approval to Proceed Through Gate 2 
       

Granted / Denied 

Project Size Assessment 
Date:  

Tier 1 (L),Tier 2 (M), Tier 3 (S), Tier 4 (BAU) 

Governance Required 
     

Full/Fast Track PMM 

Reason for Decision:  

Additional Notes:  

Signed off:       Date:  

 

SUBMITTING PROJECT MANAGER DECLARATION 
 

In order for the Governing Body to make an informed decision, I submit the following documentation with this Project 
Brief; 
 

 
Sizing Calculator 
 

 

 
Expenditure Forecast 
 

 

 
Initial Project Plan 
 

 

 
I also confirm that I have set up the following documents should they be required; 
 
Risk Register, Issues Log, Lessons Learned Log, Communications Plan which will be provided to the Governing Body 
on request, along with regular highlight reports and/or exception reports as required.   
 

Page 151



Signed:       Date:  

 

FOR CORPORATE PROGRAMME OFFICE USE ONLY 

Name of Governing Board:  

Board Date:       

Governance Group Decision: 
(Record the decision of the governance group here) 

Approval to Proceed Through Gate 2 
       

Granted / Denied 

Project Size Assessment 
Date:  

Tier 1 (L),Tier 2 (M), Tier 3 (S), Tier 4 (BAU) 

Governance Required 
     

Full/Fast Track PMM 

Reason for Decision:  

Additional Notes:  
 

Signed off:       Date:  

 

 

 
 
  

Page 152



Appendix C – Project Sizing Calculator 
 

  

Service Area:

Project complexity:
Routine task

Implementation procedures exist ###
Easily to define objectives

Solution easily achievable ###
Objectives easy/solution hard

Objectives hard/solution easy #
Hard to define objectives

Solution difficult to achieve #

Project cost: < £10,000 ### £10,000 - £30,999 ### £31,000 - £99,999 # £100,000+ #

Project team size (FTE): 1-2 ### 3-4 ### 5 # 6+ #

Impact of change: Local impact (Single team) ###
Impacts number of teams or a whole 

service area
### Impacts large part of council #

Impacts large part of council and/or 

residents
#

Project duration (elapsed time): Up to 1 Month ### 1-3 months ### 4-9 months # 10+ months #

Timetable: Flexible schedule ### Flexible schedule ### Some flexibility in schedule and deadlines # Fixed schedule/firm deadline #

Strategic importance:
Local activity 

(Team or single Service priority)
### Benefits relate to a directorate priority ### Benefits relate to one council priority #

Benefits relate to two or more council 

priorities
#

Statutory or regulatory context:
No link to statutory or regulatory 

requirements
###

Indirect links to statutory or regulatory 

requirements
###

Direct links to statutory or regulatory 

requirements
#

Essential to successful achievement of 

statutory or regulatory requirements
#

Reputational risk (project failure / 

excessive delay) - see 

Reputational Risk tab for 

guidance:

No risk to the council's reputation ###
Short term and limited damage to 

council's reputation
###

Widespread, but relatively short term 

damage to council's reputation
#

Significant and long lasting damage to the 

council's reputation
#

Political importance: No political importance ### Little political importance ### Moderate political importance # Major political importance #

Dependencies: Independent of other projects ### No major dependencies on other projects ### Some dependencies on other projects # Major dependencies on other projects #

Sizing assessment:

Assessed by: Date:

Approved by: Date:

Name Service

Officers Consulted:

Please tick one checkbox per row

Project Size Assessment

WBC Project Management Methodology - Project Size Calculator (Form 3)

Business as Usual (BaU) (Tier 4) Small Project (SP) (Tier 3) Medium Project (MP) (Tier 2)

Proposed Project or Task Name:

Large Project (LP) (Tier 1)

Choose

This task has been assessed as a *** project and the appropriate project controls will be applied

Clear Checkboxes

P
age 153



  

Business as Usual (BaU) 

(Tier 4)

Small Project (SP)

(Tier 3)

Medium Project (MP)

(Tier 2)

Large Project (LP)

(Tier 1)

Governance

Governance Level Local/Light Corporate/Light Corporate/Detailed Corporate/Detailed

Risk Assessment Brief/Initial Brief/Ongoing Detailed/Ongoing Detailed/Ongoing

Decision Mechanism Sponsor & Supplier Sponsor or Project Board
Project Board & Governance 

Group

Project Board & Governance 

Group

Project Documentation

Business Case No Yes Yes Yes

Project Brief Yes Yes Yes Yes

Expenditure Forecast Brief at project start Brief with ongoing monitoring
Detailed with ongoing 

monitoring

Detailed with ongoing 

monitoring

Project Plan Brief at project start Brief with ongoing monitoring
Detailed with ongoing 

monitoring

Detailed with ongoing 

monitoring

Issues Log No Optional Yes Yes

Risk Register No Yes Yes Yes

Lessons Learned Log No No Yes Yes

Project Initiation Document No Optional Yes Yes

Product Descriptions / Work Packages No No Mostly Yes

Highlight Reports No Optional Yes Yes

Exception Reports No No Yes Yes

Project Closure Report No No Yes Yes

Post Implementation Review No Optional Yes Yes

PMM Templates PMM Templates PMM Templates PMM Templates

Microsoft Project Microsoft Project

Microsoft Visio Microsoft Visio

Project Management Experience

Project Manager Has access to trained mentor Trained PM (Basic PM Skills)
Trained & experienced PM 

(Prince-2 Foundation)

Professionally qualified PM 

(Prince-2 Practitioner)

Project Sponsor Has access to trained mentor Trained Sponsor Trained & experienced Sponsor Trained & experienced Sponsor

Project Sponsor Seniority 4th Tier Manager or above 3rd Tier Manager or above HoS or above Corporate Director or above

Time Commitment

Project Manager < 0.2 FTE 0.2 - 0.5 FTE 0.5 - 1.0 FTE 1 FTE

Project Sponsor < 0.05 FTE < 0.1 FTE 0.1 FTE 0.1 - 0.2 FTE

Communication

Level Light/Local Light/Wide ranging Detailed/Corporate Detailed/Corporate

Frequency Project start & end Regular Regular & scheduled Regular & scheduled

Sponsor  Sponsor or Project Board Project Board Project Board

User(s) Project Board Governance Group Governance Group

Users Users Users

Other Stakeholders Other Stakeholders

Project Sze

Project Aspect

Project Management Tools

Audience

P
age 154



IMPACT           

            

 

Impact Financial loss to 
Council  

Personal / Staff or 
Customers 

Assets / Physical / 
Information 

Reputation  
Rating  

 

4 £1m + Death 

Loss of main building / 
Loss of main ICT 
system – eg Email / 
Payroll / network 

Adverse publicity 
nationally 

 

HSE / Fire Authority 
prosecution 

 

 

3 £250k - £1m 
Major injury / 
hospitalisation  

Partial loss off main 
building or total loss of 
minor building. 
Temporary loss of 
major ICT system – up 
to one week, total loss 
of minor ICT system 

External agency 
criticism – EG Auditor, 
Ofsted etc 

 

HSE / Fire Authority 
enforcement action 

 

 

2 £50k - £250k 

Major financial loss 
£1,000+ 

Partial loss of minor 
building. Temporary 
loss of minor ICT 
system – up to one 
week. Loss of Major 
system – up to one 
day 

Ombudsman 
complaint upheld  

 

Illness eg stress / 
minor accident / 
RIDDOR 

 

 

1 Less than £50k 
Minor Financial loss up 
to £1,000 / complaint 
/ Grievance 

Loss of minor ICT 
system  - up to one 
day 

Adverse publicity 
locally 

 
 

     
      

 
  

P
age 155



Appendix D – Risk Register 

  

FORM 7 

                                

No Risk description Date Identified Cause/Trigger Consequences
Likeli-

hood
Impact Score Controls

Likeli-

hood
Impact Score Owner Status

Date of last 

update

1 0 0

2 0 0

3 0 0

4 0 0

5 0 0

6 0 0

7 0 0

8 0 0

9 0 0

10 0 0

11 0 0

12 0 0

13 0 0

Project Manager:

Service

Project Sponsor

PROJECT RISK REGISTER

Gross Rating

Project Name:

Reference No:

Net Rating

P
age 156



 

Copy information from Register                                 

No Area of Concern / Risk Scenario Existing Controls
Gross Risk 

Score

Net Risk 

Score
Required Controls or Action Responsibility of Budget Constraint Target Date

1

2  

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Project Name:
Reference No:

Risk Action Plan

Project Manager:

P
age 157



Project Risk Categories and Risk Factors

WBC Risk Assessment Methodology

Formal Risk training is available through the WBC Assurance Service

Project conflicts (supplier)

The WBC Project Management Methodology (PMM) uses the same Risk Assessment Tools adopted corporately to manage day-to-

day operational risks

This methodology uses a Combination of two factors (Liklihood of the assessed risk occuring (on a scale of 1-4) and Impact on the 

business , or project, if the risk were to materialise (on a cale of 1-4).  These 2 factors are multiplied together and the resulting sum is 

assessed on a traffic light scheme of Red (Score 8-16), Amber (Score 4-6) or Green (score 1-3)

The risk assessment is applied twice.  Initially the Gross Risk is assessed i.e. the perceived risk if no mitigation measures are 

applied. The Net risk is an assessment of the risk after mitigation has been applied

Resource conflicts

Resourcing RisksFinancial Risks

Adequacy of budget

Project scope (no hidden costs?)

Availability of key resources

Dangerous equipment

Requirement to use hazardous materials

Untrained staff

Communications of benefits

Immature technology

Complex integration

Complex data migration

Cultural Risks

Technology incompatibility

Cost of unexpected delays?

Financial health of supplier

Organisational Change fatigue

Scope of change too ambitious

Technical Risks

Lack of Infrastructure

What is Risk Management?

What is a Risk?
A risk , in the context of Project Management, is an event or situation which can be forseen, but that will have a harmful or 

detrimental effect on the timeline, budget or project outcome

Risk Mangement is the proactive assessment of risk at the start of a project (and maybe throughout) together with the planned 

mitigation of those risks that are identified

Organisational buy-in

Unrealistic timeline

Project Management/Control

Experience of Project Manager

Quality\thoroughness of plans

Project Leadership

Health & Safety Risks

Dangerous working environment

P
age 158



 
 
  

Impact Extreme Impact - 

Rarely

Extreme Impact - 

Moderate

Extreme Impact - 

Likely

Extreme Impact - 

Almost certain

4 8 12 16

High Impact - 

Rarely

High Impact - 

Moderate

High Impact - 

Likely

High Impact - 

Almost certain

3 6 9 12

Medium Impact - 

Rarely

Medium Impact - 

Moderate

Medium Impact - 

Likely

Medium Impact - 

Almost certain

2 4 6 8

Low Impact - 

Rarely

Low Impact - 

Moderate

Low Impact - 

Likely

Low Impact - 

Almost certain

1 2 3 4

Likelihood

4x4 Risk Matrix Assessments

P
age 159



Appendix E 
 

Capital or Transformation Funding Request 
 

Guidance Notes:  
 
This form should be completed if you require either Capital Funding or Transformation funding.  If you are applying for 
Capital Funding, this form needs to be sent through to Claire.denner@westberks.gov.uk for consideration at the 
Capital Strategy Board.   
 
For Transformation Funding the form should be sent to melanie.best@westberks.gov.uk for consideration at the 
Corporate Projects’ Board and then onto the Corporate Programme Board who will approve the request.  However, if 
you are applying for transformation funding to support a project which involves ICT or Digital resource, you must first 
take both this form and your project brief to the Customer First Projects Board for a decision.  It will then go onto the 
Corporate Projects’ board and Corporate Programme Board for a decision on releasing the funding. 
 
If you are applying for funding in relation to a specific project, you must ensure your application accompanies a Project 
Brief (see Form 1 on intranet of PMM). 
 
If you request relates to Revenue – you must contact melanie.ellis@westberks.gov.uk to follow the Revenue Pressure 
bid route. 

 

Section 1 

Service  

Directorate:   

Applicant Name:  Job Title:  

Project Manager  
(if applicable) 

Name: Job Title: 

Project Sponsor Name: Job Title: 

Is this a new project?  

 
Section 2 
 
You are advised to complete and submit an expenditure forecast with your application to provide 
additional information.   
 
Phasing and Split of Spend/Funding (if known) 

 

 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

Funding Source (Revenue)) £ £ £ £ £ 

Funding Source (Capital) £ £ £ £ £ 

Funding Source (Transformation) £ £ £ £ £ 

TOTAL COST OF PROJECT £ £ £ £ £ 

 
  

Page 160

mailto:Claire.denner@westberks.gov.uk
mailto:melanie.best@westberks.gov.uk
mailto:melanie.ellis@westberks.gov.uk


Are there any other external funding sources i.e. partnership/third party/S106? Please note 
them below. 
 

 
 

 
 
Breakdown of Costs (examples shown – delete as necessary) 

Item Cost 
(Capital) 

Cost 
(Revenue) 

Cost 
(Trans) 

Cost 
(FTE) 

Feasibility/Other Studies £ £ £ £ 

Project Management £ £ £ £ 

Infrastructure (Highways/Railway etc) £ £ £ £ 

Buildings £ £ £ £ 

Refurbishment/minor works £ £ £ £ 

Vehicles/Plant/Equipment/Machinery £ £ £ £ 

ICT Hardware £ £ £ £ 

ICT Software & Licenses £ £ £ £ 

Required ICT support (People) £ £ £ £ 

Other (specify) £ £ £ £ 

TOTAL COST OF PROJECT £ £ £ £ 

 
Ongoing revenue implications of the project 

 

 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Total 

Salaries £ £ £ £ £ 

Premises/Expenses £ £ £ £ £ 

Supplies & Services £ £ £ £ £ 

Transport £ £ £ £ £ 

Annual maintenance & 
support costs (ICT) 

£ £ £ £ £ 

Other £ £ £ £ £ 

Income £ £ £ £ £ 

Net costs £ £ £ £ £ 

 

Is the project going to 
deliver savings? 

Yes  ☐  No  ☐ 

Are the savings part of 
the MTFS (do they form 
part of a future savings 
strategy which has 
been agreed by Budget 
Board? 

Yes  ☐  No  ☐ 

Page 161



 
 
If yes, demonstrate the savings put forward to Budget Board as part of budget build below. 

 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Total 

Existing Budget £ £ £ £ £ 

Revised Budget £ £ £ £ £ 

Savings £ £ £ £ £ 

 
Section 3 – ICT/Digital Impact & Governance 

Does this require ICT or 
Digital input? 

If yes, you are required to complete this funding request and submit it with 
your Project Brief (form 1) in the following order; 

Customer First Projects Group (chaired by Sarah Clarke) quality check -  
acceptance of Project Brief for onward transmission to Corporate Projects 
Board (chaired by Nick Carter)(approval to proceed) 
Corporate Programme Board (chaired by Cllr Hilary Cole) (approval to 
release funding) 

What is project size? (Use sizing calculator to help you) form 3 of PMM 

Governance Group Who will be overseeing the delivery of your project or BAU. 

What, if any, 
procurement 
requirements do you 
have? 

You are advised to speak with Procurement Board (chaired by Joseph 
Holmes) about how to deal with these requirements. 

Summary of Proposal (Summary of how the proposal will transform existing operations) (If 
appropriate attach the associated Project Brief). 

Estimated Start Date  

Estimated End Date  

 
  

Page 162



Section 4 – Priorities and Impact 

Which of the council 
objectives does the 
project align to? (tick all 
that apply) 

Ensure our vulnerable children and adults achieve better 
outcomes 

1. Support children, young people and vulnerable adults  
at an earlier stage, ensuring they are safe through  
prevention and early intervention services.   ☐ 

2. Improve outcomes for our looked after children and 
 other vulnerable children and adults.     ☐ 

3. Ensure better outcomes for social care users and 

improved satisfaction.      ☐ 

4. Safeguard against new and emerging risks.    ☐ 

5. Support more vulnerable young adults into  
employment       ☐ 

Support everyone to reach their full potential 

6. Support everyone on their learning journey to 

achieve their best.      ☐ 

7. Improve the health and wellbeing of our 
residents through appropriate interventions 

and policies.       ☐ 

8. Help people to help themselves and others.    ☐ 

Support businesses to start, develop and thrive in West 
Berkshire 

9. Improve the help and guidance for start-ups and 
existing small businesses to grow, including by  
facilitating access to business incubators, or similar 

resources/initiatives.      ☐ 

10. Ensure our planning policies enable start-up and  

growth of businesses in the District.    ☐ 

11. Provide incentives and opportunities to enable  
businesses to grow.      ☐ 

Develop local infrastructure, including housing, to support and 
grow the local economy 

12. Develop an Integrated Infrastructure Plan to 
deliver regeneration, housing, flood prevention 
and alleviation schemes, and travel and transport 
infrastructure.       ☐ 

13. Further develop digital infrastructure and  
information assets in the District.     ☐ 

14. Enhance the arts, culture and leisure offering in the  
District.        ☐ 

 
Maintain a Green District 

15. Develop more sustainable transport solutions 
 which protect the environment.    ☐ 

16. Promote and improve cycle ways in the District. 
17. Develop opportunities and expertise to take advantage  

of the production, storage and utilisation of green  

energy.        ☐ 

18. Minimise the impact on the environment in delivering  
services such as the use of assistive technologies in  
social care.       ☐ 

Ensure Sustainable services through innovation and 
partnerships 

19. Expand our work with partner organisations and  
communities to improve services for local residents.  ☐ 

Page 163



20. Increase the sustainability of our business models by 
expanding on the initiatives to generate income for  

supporting vital Council’s services.    ☐ 

21. Implement a Workforce Strategy which supports 
leadership development, recruitment and retention  
and employee wellbeing.     ☐ 

22. Use data to better understand our services’  
beneficiaries to improve the way we interact with them  
and the services we provide.     ☐ 
22 STRATEGY 2019 -23 STRATEGY 2019 

Is this a Business As 
Usual activity?  

 

Please outline the anticipated improvement in performance anticipated (an improvement plan can be 
attached if appropriate) 

 Yes/No Detail 

Other Priorities   

Local Transport Plan   

Asset Management Plan   

Parish Plan   

Service Plan   

Risks if not done   

Other (please specify)   

 
Section 5 - Authorisations 

Authorisations: Once this form is completed by the Budget Manager, it should be sent to your Finance 
Manager (revenue and capital) for review. It should then be signed off by the relevant Head of 
Service, Corporate Director and Portfolio Holder and submitted to either 
Claire.denner@westberks.gov.uk (capital strategy board) or melanie.best@westberks.gov.uk 
(corporate projects/programme board) 

Budget Manager Name: Sign off date: 

Head of Service Name: Sign off date:  

Revenue Finance 
Manager 

Name: Sign off date: 

Capital Finance Manager Name: Sign off date: 

Portfolio Holder Informed Name: Date Notified: 

Corporate Director Name: Sign off date:  

Comment by Finance on affordability of the project and impact on minimum Revenue 
Provision. 

 

 

Additional Comments. 

 
 

 

Page 164

mailto:Claire.denner@westberks.gov.uk
mailto:melanie.best@westberks.gov.uk


 
 For use by Capital Strategy or Corporate Programme Board Only 

Board recommendation: 
 
 
 
 

 
Proposal Supported by 
Capital Strategy/Corporate 
Programme Board* 
 *Delete as appropriate. 

 
Yes / No  (delete as appropriate) 

Date of meeting:  

Applicant notified:  

 

For Finance Use: For tracking purposes, please indicate the code and cost centre this has 
been paid to 

Cost Centre:  

Code:  

 
  

Page 165



Appendix F – Governing Bodies 

Executive

Executive Governance

Health & 

Wellbeing Board

Property Investment 

Board

Operations Board Budget  Board

Corporate Board

Strategy Board

Financial 

Challenge

Panel

Corporate

Projects Board

Corporate

Management 

Team

Schools

Funding

Forum

Accommodation 

Group

Health & Safety 

Committees

Procurement 

Board

Finance & 

Governance

Group

Capital Group

Asset 

Management 

Group

Devolution Group

Economic

Development

Board

Housing

Board

Environment

Board

Equalities & 

Diversity 

Board

Customer 

First

Programme

Board

Commercial

 Board

Partnership Boards

Primary decision  and strategy making bodies

Governance Groups

Project Boards

Directorate 

Management 

Teams

Board
Programme
Corporate

Workforce 

Board

Business as Usual 

Transformation

Children, Young 

People & 

Families 

Modernisation 

Board

Environment 

Strategy

Member

Development

Group

Modernising 

Adult Social 

Care Board

Note: a solid line between Groups represents a direct reporting line.  A broken line 
between Groups represents a link for specific items only.  This is discussed more fully in 
the accompanying text

Planning Advisory Group

Transport Advisory Group

Environment Advisory 

Group

Solar Panel

Housing 

Strategy

Service 

Improvement 

Plan

Digitisation 

Group

Children & 

Family 

Services

Adult Social 

Care

Budget 
Management

Group

Joint Venture 

(Sovereign)

Sandleford

School based 

projects
Market St Proj Board

Grazeley

London Rd

Project Board

 
  

Page 166



Appendix G – Process flow for Project initiation and Definition 

PMM Project Initiation and Definition v6 February 2020 – Capital & Revenue Process
In

it
ia

ti
on

No

Gate 2 & 3 Corporate Priority/Use of ResourcesInitiation/Viability Gate 1 

Project Brief, 
Sizing 

Calculator, 
funding 

considered

Sponsor Decision
 Gate 1

End

Do you need to 
procure services or 

systems?

Capital Board (Joseph 
Holmes)

Funding Form
Procurement Board

(Joseph Holmes)
Approved Yes

NB: Sometimes Procurement and 
Funding questions are interlinked 
i.e. you need to know what a new 
system is likely to cost before you 
can ask for the money so have 
these conversations early!!!

No

If no,  proceed to 
next gate via 

Governance Group

No

Declined

Action

Q2 Does the project require
ICT or Digital Resource or
 is it Customer focused?

Step 1 
Customer First Projects 

Group (Sarah Clarke)
Yes – Project Brief

Separate Procurement 
Process – but the same 

business case can be used 
as for funding/project 

approval for Procurement 
Mark Brown to advise

Move into Project 
Planning/Delivery

Step 2 (if req) 
Customer First 

Programme Board 
(Andy Sharp)

Step 3 (if required)
Corporate Projects Board 

(Nick Carter)

End

End

End

Approved

Approved

Approved

No

No

No

Escalation 
only

Escalation 
only

Q1.  Does the project 
require funding?

Governance Group
Approval

Declined

Approved

Capital?

Revenue?

Yes

Yes

Indicates early discussions required

Indicate key decision making groups

These are greyed out as they are only 
required if resolution cannot be 
found at the Customer First Projects 
Group and Board.

Governance Group i.e. Environment 
Board, Commercial Board, Customer 
First Programme Board etc.

Approved

Declined

For Transformation 
Funding – see 

separate process

Discuss with your Service Accountant 
– Budget Pressure Process (should be 

dealt with at budget build stage) 

Move into Project 
Planning/Delivery

No

Need to attend both CFPG 
& Capital Strategy

 

P
age 167



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 168



4 The Sector – new lease 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

4 The Sector – new lease  

Committee considering report: Executive 

Date of Committee: 15 October 2020 

Portfolio Member: Councillor Dominic Boeck 

Date Portfolio Member agreed report: 6 October 2020 

Report Author: Richard Turner 

Forward Plan Ref: Urgent Item 

1 Purpose of the Report 

1.1 West Berkshire Council has freehold ownership of an office building in Newbury, 4 The 
Sector, which forms part of the council’s commercial property portfolio. The building 
comprises 28,700 sq. ft. of high grade office space and is currently vacant. 

1.2 The purpose of this report is to recommend the creation of a new lease, for 8,000 sq. ft. 
(circa 28%). 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 That the Executive resolves: 

To delegate to the Service Director for Strategy and Governance to enter into the lease 
for 8,000 sq. ft. of office space in 4 The Sector on the terms described. 

3 Implications and Impact Assessment 

Implication Commentary 

Financial: Across the lease term the council will benefit from rental 
income and also benefit from the tenant contributing their 
proportion of the business rates, service charge, repairs and 
insurance. 

West Berkshire Council will be liable for a landlord fit out to 
carry out the necessary physical separation to create the 8,000 
sq. ft. of space on the first floor of the building. 

Human Resource: No identified impact. 

Page 169

Agenda Item 9.



4 The Sector – new lease 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Legal: The council’s internal Legal Services team has been appointed 
to provide the services to create the new lease, and it is 
expected with the agreement of the Executive that the Service 
Director for Strategy and Governance sign the lease on behalf 
of the council. 

Risk Management: With 4 The Sector currently empty, WBC is liable for the 
building, its condition and costs. 

The formation of the new lease will reduce that liability, but is 
also expected to help with the marketing of the remainder of 
the site by having an active tenant. 

Property: Once in place the lease will form part of the council’s 
commercial portfolio and ongoing management of its tenants. 

Policy: The lease will be held within the commercial property portfolio, 
in accordance with the council’s Property Investment Strategy. 

 

P
o

s
it

iv
e
 

N
e
u

tr
a

l 

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 Commentary 

Equalities Impact:  √   

A Are there any aspects 
of the proposed decision, 
including how it is 
delivered or accessed, 
that could impact on 
inequality? 

 √   

B Will the proposed 
decision have an impact 
upon the lives of people 
with protected 
characteristics, including 
employees and service 
users? 

 √   

Environmental Impact:  √   

Page 170



4 The Sector – new lease 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Health Impact:  √   

ICT Impact:  √   

Digital Services Impact:  √   

Council Strategy 
Priorities: 

√   By bringing the tenant into Newbury, this 
will positively support the priority to 
support businesses to start, develop and 
thrive in West Berkshire 

Core Business:  √   

Data Impact:  √   

Consultation and 
Engagement: 

 

4 Executive Summary 

4.1 The property was purchased by WBC with completion on 27th April 2018. 

4.2 The property although vacant, benefitted from a twenty four month ‘escrow’ agreement 
for the payment of rent, rates, and service charges by the vendor until April 2020. 

4.3 On the expiry of the escrow payments, the building remained vacant with cost liabilities 
falling to the council. For 2020/21 the cost pressure has been minimised by the final 
escrow payment and use of the risk fund which has accumulated within the portfolio 
during 2018/19 and 2019/20. 

4.4 The council’s property agents have been approached with interest in leasing 8,000 sq. 
ft. (28%) of the building.  

4.5 This will be a fully Insuring and Repairing lease (rates, repairs, insurance at tenants cost 
for their proportion of the building). 

4.6 WBC will carry out works necessary to separate the space to create 8,000 sq. ft. and 
associated adjustment to services. 

4.7 The tenant will also have further specific fit-out works funded themselves. 

  

Page 171



4 The Sector – new lease 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

4.8 This lease is not only expected to offer income but also transfer a proportion of the 
operational cost liabilities for the building to the tenant, to reduce the cost pressure.  

4.9 Feedback from the WBC property agents is that having a tenant in the building, even if 
only a partial occupation demonstrates interest in the building and can attract other 
prospective tenants. 

4.10 The tenant is keen to progress urgently to a position where the parties can formally 
exchange on the Agreement for Lease which will bind both parties to the lease, to 
enable each party to commit. 

5 Supporting Information 

Introduction 

Note, the information contained in the Executive Summary offers sufficient information for the 
purposes of this report 

Background 

See Executive Summary 

Proposals 

For WBC to enter into a new lease for 8,000 sq. ft. representing 28% of the total space at 4 
The Sector, Newbury. 

6 Other options considered  

6.1 To decline the proposed lease and continue to market the vacant property on the basis 
of letting 100% of the space to a single tenant. 

6.2 To dispose of the freehold, removing the property from the portfolio. 

6.3 To convert the office space under permitted development to residential. 

7 Conclusion 

7.1 It is recommended that WBC proceed with the lease for 8,000 sq. ft. at 4 The Sector. 

8 Appendices 

None 

 

Background Papers: 

None 

Page 172



4 The Sector – new lease 

West Berkshire Council Executive 15 October 2020 

Subject to Call-In: 

Yes:  No:  

The item is due to be referred to Council for final approval  

Delays in implementation could have serious financial implications for the 
Council 

Delays in implementation could compromise the Council’s position 

Considered or reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee or 
associated Task Groups within preceding six months  

Item is Urgent Key Decision 

Report is to note only 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Wards affected:  Newbury Clay Hill 

Officer details: 

Name:  Richard Turner 
Job Title:  Property Services Manager 
Tel No:  01635 503653 
E-mail:  Richard.Turner@westberks.gov.uk 

Document Control 
 

Document Ref:  Date Created:  

Version:  Date Modified:  

Author:  

Owning Service  

  Change History 
 

Version Date Description Change ID 

1    

2    

 

 

Page 173

mailto:Richard.Turner@westberks.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 174



Item 10: 
 

Member Questions to be answered at the Executive meeting on 15 
October 2020. 

Members of the Executive to answer questions submitted by Councillors in 
accordance with the Executive Procedure Rules contained in the Council’s 
Constitution. 

 

(a) Question submitted by Councillor Dennis Benneyworth to the Leader of the 
Council: 

“Can the Leader please provide assurance that with the ending of the furlough 
scheme, and possibility of greater redundancies to come as a result, that the 
Council is ready to support those in economic hardship?” 

(b) Question submitted by Councillor Tom Marino to the Portfolio Holder for 
Internal Governance: 

“Will West Berkshire Council be signing up to the government’s £2bn Kickstart 
scheme to help young people between the ages of 16 – 24 on Universal credit 
into the work place?” 

(c) Question submitted by Councillor Peter Argyle to the Portfolio Holder for 
Children, Young People and Education: 

“What is the Council’s role in helping young people in to employment?” 

(d) Question submitted by Councillor Rick Jones to the Portfolio Holder for 
Health and Wellbeing, Leisure and Culture: 

“Why is the Culture Strategy and the Leisure Strategy, which is also due out 
shortly for consultation, being developed in the midst of Covid-19?” 

(e) Question submitted by Councillor Garth Simpson to the Leader of the 
Council: 

“What provision is still in place in the district, after the ending of government food 
parcels, for those in our communities who are in clinical need of further support 
or experiencing food poverty?” 

(f) Question submitted by Councillor Dennis Benneyworth to the Leader of the 
Council: 

“Can the Leader advise what preparation the Council has made in order to deliver 
the £500 Test and Trace Support Payment announced by the Government as 
part of the more recent response measures to Covid-19?” 

(g) Question submitted by Councillor Tom Marino to the Portfolio Holder for 
Finance and Economic Development: 

“Can the portfolio holder advise how its commercial property portfolio has been 
performing over the sixth months or so since the Covid pandemic emerged?” 

(h) Question submitted by Councillor Peter Argyle to the Portfolio Holder for 
Children, Young People and Education: 

“Can the portfolio holder tell us how the Council is supporting young 
unaccompanied asylum seekers?” 

 

Page 175

Agenda Item 10.



Item 10: 
 

Member Questions to be answered at the Executive meeting on 15 
October 2020. 

Members of the Executive to answer questions submitted by Councillors in 
accordance with the Executive Procedure Rules contained in the Council’s 
Constitution. 

 
(i) Question submitted by Councillor Rick Jones to the Portfolio Holder for 

Health and Wellbeing, Leisure and Culture: 

“What reassurance can the portfolio holder give following recent shortages in 
Covid testing capacity in the district that this provision for West Berkshire 
residents will be restored?” 

(j) Question submitted by Councillor Phil Barnett to the Portfolio Holder for 
Transport and Countryside: 

“In view of recent animal injuries along Burys Bank road, can the Executive 
member for Highways and the Environment identify what measures are proposed 
to ensure the animals on Greenham Common are safe from vehicles along the 
perimeter roads?” 

(k) Question submitted by Councillor Carolyne Culver to the Portfolio Holder 
for Environment: 

“Does the Executive support the Climate and Ecological Emergency Bill?” 

(l) Question submitted by Councillor Steve Masters to the Leader of the 
Council: 

“Does the portfolio holder agree that we should reject approaches by private 
security companies to be covid wardens on the streets of West Berkshire?” 

(m) Question submitted by Councillor David Marsh to the Leader of the 
Council: 

“In what ways do businesses in Newbury town centre benefit from “people driving 
past their shops and restaurants”?” 

(n) Question submitted by Councillor David Marsh to the Portfolio Holder for 
Transport and Countryside: 

“The council’s Speed Limit Review on 9 October 2019 (more than a year ago) 
agreed to reduce the speed limit along Andover Road, between Gorselands and 
Conifer Crest, from 40mph to 30mph. How much longer will it be before this is 
put into effect?” 

(o) Question submitted by Councillor David Marsh to the Portfolio Holder for 
Transport and Countryside: 

“The 24-hour traffic-free zone in parts of Newbury town centre was introduced to 
“support the local economy”, to “support outdoor eating space”, and to “allow 
social distancing in a safe, traffic-free environment”. Which of these targets have 
been achieved, and which no longer apply?” 

 

 

Page 176



Item 10: 
 

Member Questions to be answered at the Executive meeting on 15 
October 2020. 

Members of the Executive to answer questions submitted by Councillors in 
accordance with the Executive Procedure Rules contained in the Council’s 
Constitution. 

 
(p) Question submitted by Councillor David Marsh to the Portfolio Holder for 

Transport and Countryside: 

“If the Transport Advisory Group at its meeting this month recommends 
reintroducing the 24-hour traffic-free zone in parts of Newbury town centre, will 
this be put into effect as a matter of urgency, bearing in mind the continuing and 
indeed escalating Covid-19 crisis?” 

(q) Question submitted by Councillor Lee Dillon to the Portfolio Holders for 
Adult Social Care and Children, Young People and Education: 

“What steps has WBC taken to ensure the impact of the withdrawal of services 
for clients and their carers (introduced in the March Coronavirus Act) has been 
understood and mitigated against?” 

(r) Question submitted by Councillor Alan Macro to the Portfolio Holder for 
Public Health and Community Wellbeing, Leisure and Culture: 

“Following the Council’s commitment to a local mental health concordat, what 
actions will it be taking with its partners to protect the mental health and wellbeing 
of its health and social care staff?” 

(s) Question submitted by Councillor Lee Dillon to the Portfolio Holder for 
Planning and Housing: 

“Will this Council be submitting a response to the Government consultation paper 
on Transparency and Competition (a call for evidence on data on land control)?” 

(t) Question submitted by Councillor Adrian Abbs to the Portfolio Holder for 
Planning and Housing: 

“What can be done to ensure that we don’t see other developers follow the 
precedent set by Newbury Racecourse and North Newbury and Sandleford Park 
building out large housing schemes with their ‘local centre’ delivered long after 
almost homes are occupied?” 

(u) Question submitted by Councillor Alan Macro to the Portfolio Holder for 
Transport and Countryside: 

“How does the Council propose to ensure that the proposal to create wildflower 
verges on our rural roads doesn’t threaten the safety of pedestrians and horse-
riders who often need to use verges to avoid traffic?” 

(v) Question submitted by Councillor Alan Macro to the Leader of the Council: 

“What does the executive think about covid marshals?” 

 

 

Page 177



Item 10: 
 

Member Questions to be answered at the Executive meeting on 15 
October 2020. 

Members of the Executive to answer questions submitted by Councillors in 
accordance with the Executive Procedure Rules contained in the Council’s 
Constitution. 

 
(w) Question submitted by Councillor Alan Macro to the Portfolio Holder for 

Adult Social Care: 

“How did the Council allow Walnut Close care home to deteriorate to such an 
extent that 20% of the rooms are unusable and it now faces closure?” 

(x) Question submitted by Councillor Erik Pattenden to the Portfolio Holder for 
Children, Young People and Education: 

“What support are children in West Berkshire getting if self-isolating at home?” 

(y) Question submitted by Councillor Erik Pattenden to the Portfolio Holder for 
Children, Young People and Education: 

“Can the executive please tell us how many early years providers in West 
Berkshire are at risk of closure due to financial difficulties?” 

(z) Question submitted by Councillor Adrian Abbs to the Portfolio Holder for 
Environment: 

“What additional solar capacity has been installed by the council since declaring 
a climate emergency that was not already planned?” 

 

Page 178



Document is Restricted

Page 179

Agenda Item 12.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	4. Public Questions
	6. Communications and Engagement Strategy 2020-2023 (EX3951)
	6a. Communications and Engagement Strategy

	7. Proposals for future Community Infrastructure Levy spending (EX3965)
	8. Response to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission Task Group Report on the London Road Industrial Estate (EX3956)
	8a. LRIE Response Appendix 3

	9. 4 The Sector - new lease (Urgent Item)
	10. Members' Questions
	12. 4 The Sector - new lease (Urgent Item)

